
 

 SOUTH FEATHER WATER & POWER AGENCY 
  

 
AGENDA 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the 
South Feather Water & Power Agency 

Board Room, 2310 Oro-Quincy Highway, Oroville, California 
Tuesday; July 24, 2018; 2:00 P.M. 

 
 

A. Roll Call –  
B. Approval of Minutes – Regular Meeting on June 26, 2018 (Tab 1) 
C. Approval of Checks/Warrants (Tab 2) 
D. Public Participation 

Individuals will be given an opportunity to address the Board regarding matters within the Agency’s jurisdiction that are 
not scheduled on the agenda, although the Board cannot take action on any matter not on the agenda.  Comments 
will be limited to 5 minutes per speaker.  An opportunity for comments on agenda items will be provided at the time 
they are discussed by the Board.  Comments will be limited to five minutes per speaker per agenda item. 

E. Staff Reports   (Tab 3) 

F. Directors’ Reports  
Directors may make brief announcements or reports for the purpose of providing information to the public or staff, or to 
schedule a matter for a future meeting.  The Board cannot take action on any matter not on the agenda and will refrain 
from entering into discussion that would constitute action, direction or policy, until such time as the matter is placed on 
the agenda of a properly publicized and convened Board meeting.   

G.  Business  (Tab 4)  
       Delinquent Accounts to be Added to 2018-2019 Taxes       
       This item is to seek approval to add delinquent accounts to the 2018-2019 Property Taxes. 
       
H.  Informational Item  (Tab 5)
       Annual Financial Report with Independent Auditor’s Report  
       This item is to present the 2017 external financial audit report.  
 
       Mid-Term Board Director Vacancy – Division 2 (Tab 6) 
       Information specific to the Board selecting a Mid-Term Director for Division 2. 
 
       General Election Calendar  (Tab 7) 
       Three Board of Directors position terms expire at the end of 2018. The Butte County election calendar provides  
       key dates and requirements for those seeking to pursue any of the Director positions. 
 
I. Closed Session   (Tab 8) 

Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation(Government Code §54956.9(d)(1)): 
Bay-Delta proceedings, including the California WaterFix, the associated environmental document and change petition 
pending before the State Water Resources Control Board, and the planned update to the Bay-Delta Water Quality 
Control Plan. 
Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation 

       (Paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9) 
       Name of case: Sierra Mountain Construction, Inc. v. South Feather Water and Power Agency, Butte 
       County Superior Court Case No. 18CV00896 

 
 
Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation 

       (Paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9) 
       Name of case: Holland. v. South Feather Water and Power Agency, Butte County Superior Court Case No.  

https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&pubNum=1000211&cite=CAGTS54956.9&originatingDoc=NBA587F500DE511E28A628CD7CECCD897&refType=LQ&originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.UserEnteredCitation)
https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&pubNum=1000211&cite=CAGTS54956.9&originatingDoc=NBA587F500DE511E28A628CD7CECCD897&refType=LQ&originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.UserEnteredCitation)


 

      16CVO2398.  
          
J. Open Session 
 Report of closed session actions. 
K. Adjournment  

 
 
 
 

“The Board of Directors is committed to making its meetings accessible to all citizens. 
Any persons requiring special accommodation to participate should contact the Agency’s secretary at 

530-533-2412, preferably at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting.” 
  



 
MINUTES of the REGULAR MEETING of the BOARD of DIRECTORS of 

SOUTH FEATHER WATER & POWER AGENCY 
Tuesday, June 26, 2018, 2:00 P.M., 

Agency Board Room, 2310 Oro-Quincy Hwy., Oroville, California 
 
 
DIRECTORS PRESENT: James Edwards, Tod Hickman, John Starr, Lou Lodigiani, Dennis Moreland 
    
DIRECTORS ABSENT:   None 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Rick McCullough, Foreman; Dan Shipman, Project Engineer; Steve Wong, 

Finance Division Manager; Art Martinez, Manager Information Systems; Rath 
Moseley, General Manager; Dan Leon, Power Division Manager; Dustin Cooper, 
Legal Counsel; John Shipman, Water Treatment Superintendent; Matt Colwell, 
Water Division Manager 

 
STAFF ABSENT:  None 
 
OTHERS PRESENT: Roger Bailey, Chris Pablano, Jenny Cavaliers, Gretchen Flohr, Bill Hall,  
   Ron Fink, Rick Wulbern, Tasha Levinson, Jack Kiely, Mike Phulps,  
   John Davis, Celia Hirschman, Brad Hemstalk     
 
CALL TO ORDER 
President Hickman called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m., and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
M/S/Unanimous  (Lodigiani/Edwards) approving the Minutes of the regular meeting of May 22, 2018. 
 
APPROVAL OF CHECKS AND WARRANTS 
M/S/Unanimous (Moreland/Starr) approving the total General Fund and Joint Facilities Operating 
fund expenditures for the month of May, 2018 in the amount of $1,388,097.36; approval of Power Division 
expenditures for the month of May,2018 in the amount of $119,476.21; and, authorize the transfer of 
$2,500,000.00 from the TCB General Fund to the TCB Accounts Payable and Payroll Fund for the payment 
of regular operating expenses. 
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
Ron Fink communicated that he knew the Forbestown ditch was down but also knows “Murphy’s Law” is 
always out there working. Mr. Fink has been cleaning out boxes and came across some historical 
documents that may be of interest to the Agency. The content goes back to the Union Mining days back in 
1853 and the government owned all the land. The documentation supports that our water rights are really 
well established and is a positive for the district. Mr. Finks main concern is keeping the ditch going and a lot 
of the documentation talks about all the ditches going down to Bangor and wonders how Yuba County 
interacts with South Feather and when did Yuba County start. He knows that they have been consistent 
with their customers and South Feather has not always been the same. For clarification when Mr. Fink 
references Yuba County that is now North Yuba. Mr. Fink wonders why all the old ditches disappeared as 
people today desperately want water. He knows that treated water is a desire in Bangor but would like to 
see Ag water used for that purpose. Mr. Fink would like us to go back in history and determine why ditches 
were eliminated.  
 
Roger Baily communicated that he is going to ratchet forward from 1853 to 2018 and asked about the 
November election coming up. Mr. Baily asked how many Board seats are up for re-election and asked if 
those currently holding the seats are going to re-file to run. Mr. Baily had a comment about having the 
experience of buying property that had two water ditches on it and the process of petitioning the district and 
they eventually got water restored to the property. The point of the story is that they bought the property 
because it had water and later they put in a well. He feels it is important to note that they paid more for that 
property because it had water availability. Mr. Baily told a story about the Antelope Valley area and land 
being bought up cheap to grow alfalfa and they ended up pumping all the water out of the ground and 
became no longer economically feasible to grow alfalfa and it went away. It is a story about trying to get 
water out a long-ways away. Another topic Mr. Baily covered was to state that the district was founded for 
the purpose of irrigation and over time it was a natural to go in the treated water and power businesses 



because it made sense to help balance the overall costs to the district. Mr. Baily closed by sharing an 
article in the Wall Street Journal about green power suppliers and their establishment of contractual 
requirements in order to move forward with supply to customers. A good business model lesson that would 
be worth reading. 
 
Jenny Cavaliere introduced herself as North Yuba Water District and newly formed Oregon House-Dobbins 
Water Association and stated that she had sent a letter and left a voice message saying that they have a 
Board meeting on Thursday and asked if SFWPA Agency Finance Manager would verify 2012, 2015, 2016 
and the most current payout to North Yuba Water District for net power generation dollars. Looking to 
confirm that her numbers were accurate. She stated that Oregon House-Dobbins Water Association was 
started about two months ago as a response to NYWD denying irrigation water. Ms. Cavaliere also wanted 
to introduce Gretchen Flohr to SFWPA as neighbors and partners of NYWD and she may be attending 
future Board meetings and hopes to get her elected to Division 4 of NYWD which represents irrigation.  
 
Dr. Gretchen Flohr wanted to communicate that they have made a number of requests for data and Donna 
Corson submitted a couple of Public Records Request to SFWPA and has asked for data on daily cfs that 
SFWPA is taking. Dr. Flohr stated that they have data that shows even though SFWPA is entitled to 11 cfs 
we have never actually taken all 11 historically. They are requesting this data to hold NYWD Board 
accountable for their actions.     
 
Rick Wulbern communicated that he is still interested in trying to improve the water in Palermo and the 
issues they have with contaminated wells. Continuing to look at different sources of funding for water 
connections. 
 
Bill Hall communicated that the people in Bangor want to have water brought down to them and was 
wondering if the Agency has looked in to different sources of funding from places like USDA and 
Department of Forestry and Cal Fire. Mr. Hall inquired if there were maps of the Bangor ditch and would 
like copies. Mr. Halls asked about the new regulations coming into effect January 1 of 55 gallons per 
person per household and how is it going to affect this Agency.   
 
Larre Kostenko provided an e-mail that he wished conveyed to the Board as follows: 
Thank to you Matt Colwell and his team for his visit to explore possibilities of getting irrigation water soon. 
Mr. Kostenko wishes to be respectful because he knows that this is not all the water agency is working on 
or needing to do, but appreciate the efforts being made. 
His fire insurance has nearly tripled. He has poison oak from doing extra brushing and mowing to try to 
increase fire safety margin but fear this is not enough without more water. 
A fire hydrant would help his rates come down and give more peace of mind. Irrigation water for agriculture 
would help his well. He is having the 4th meltdown today with his well. 
 
Note: A full audio recording is available on the Agency website which captures all public participation in its 
entirety. (southfeather.com/board agenda information) 
 
GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT 
The General Manager communicated the following: 
 
PG&E Community Wildfire Safety Program 
A letter was received from PG&E communicating “To help ensure the safety of our customers and 
communities we are taking action with our Community Wildfire Safety Program”. PG&E may turn off 
electricity to our areas when extreme fire danger conditions occur. Advance notice will be provided if 
possible prior to an outage. 
How does this affect SFWPA – Our Power Transmission lines are not on their list for emergency shutoff 
and our powerhouses should stay online during such a scenario. The 12KV Distribution circuits which 
supply auxiliary plant power for the powerhouses are on the shutoff list.  
 
Claims Submissions 
The water main breach on Mt. Ida Road in early June has resulted in a large number of customer inquiries 
and claims ranging from credits on water bills for flushing treated sediment to replacement costs of water 
heaters. In order for the Agency to make proper repairs to the 31” main, water was shut off for several 
hours and the line was depressurized. Once repairs were made and the line purged of air with full water 
pressure, treated sediment in the line traveled through the system until completely flushed. The U.S. 
Department of Energy produced a detailed report in 2013 titled “Impacts of Water Quality on Residential 
Water Heating Equipment” which defines proper maintenance and the relationship to life expectancy of 



water heaters. Claims submitted to Agency for replacement costs of water heaters are currently denied as 
there is no evidence that treated sediment in a main line creates a failure condition on hardware. In terms 
of crediting water bills for routine line maintenance, it would cost more in processing than the actual cost of 
running water to flush a residential line. Operationally the Agencies focus is on maintenance and uptime so 
when a situation arises that work needs to be performed on the transmission or distribution system the 
customer impact is minimized in every effort.  
 
Agency Tour 
Staff is planning an operational tour on September 19, 2018 for a group of 50-60 people. Each Board 
member will have the opportunity to invite 6 individuals and the balance of tour guests will be new 
employees to the Agency and public/political figures within the community. This year will highlight Water 
Hydrology, Upgraded Miners Ranch Treatment Facility, Sly Creek Reservoir and Woodleaf Power House. 
Details will follow in the upcoming months. 
 
 
Rules and Regulations Review 
Agency staff have been reviewing the current rules and regulations content for applicability to today’s 
needs. For example, meter size requirements on new construction with fire suppression has changed in 
recent years, up-front system capacity fee costs limit the number of new connections and language around 
how payment late fees are handled could all benefit from modifications. At July’s Board meeting the 
General Manager will be presenting proposed changes for consideration. 
 
Board Director Elections 
Applications to seek election for “end of term” Director positon with SFWPA will be accepted at the Butte 
County elections office July 16 – August 10th. 
As a reminder the following Divisions are up for re-election this year. 
Division 1(Tod Hickman) 
Division 3 (Dennis Moreland) 
Division 5 (John Starr) 
 
Lost Creek Project Phase II  
Work activities in June  

• Set Crest Wall and North Crest Footing 
• Place Crest Wall and North Crest Footing 
• Set and Place North Crest Wall – Backfill Crest Walls 
• Form and Place Pier 4 
• Form and Pour Pier Caps 2 and 3  
• Drill Holes for Scour Slab 
• Start Dam Facing Repair Plan 

 
 



 
 
 
 

 
  
Public Interest on Policy Link Article May 15, 2018 
An article published May 15, 2018 titled “Investing in Water Infrastructure Now is Critical for California 
Future” discusses the water problems impacting low-income communities. California became the first state 
to establish the human right to water and new requirements are being established to ensure that local 
planning processes identify water infrastructure deficits in disadvantaged communities and develop 
strategies to address these deficits. An interesting observation in the article is that over one million 
Californians live in communities that do not have reliable access to safe drinking water and many live in 
places where the cost of water is so high that residents are forced to forgo spending on other critical 
household needs in order to pay their water bill.  
 
SB 623 would establish the Safe and Affordable Drinking Water Fund which is a permanent source of 
funding for safe and affordable drinking water. The fund would provide grants to address critical operations 
and maintenance needs, fund repair and replacement of failing drinking water infrastructure, provide 
technical assistance, conduct lead pipe replacement, consolidate water systems, and other projects 
designed to secure long-term safe drinking water for all. ACWA, which SFWPA is a member of opposes 
this bill to tax California water residents for funding this effort.  
  
SFWPA supports the concept of safe and affordable drinking water, but strongly opposes any funding 
mechanism that includes a tax on water. The Agency would support the bill if it removed the proposed 
water tax and utilized funding from sources such as the State’s General Fund or bond proceeds.  
 
 
 
EH&S Manager Position 
Five applicants have been interviewed (1 internal, 4 external) with varying degrees of experience and 
education. The GM elected to extend recruitment for a larger selection of candidates and received eleven 
additional applications. Of the eleven screened, five will be interviewed (1 internal, 4 external) and a 
selection will be made in July. 
 
Basin Boundary Modification 
The attached letter is from participating irrigation districts in regards to the Butte County Subbasin under 
the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act. SFWPA has participated from a distance in these activities 
as the Agency is primarily a surface water district. Our historical efforts have been to support a “common 
sense” approach to groundwater sustainability and this proposal for boundary modifications aligns with our 
goals to support improvement efforts within Butte County.  
 
FINANCE DIVISION MANAGER’S REPORT 
The finance manager communicated the following: 



 
South Feather Relicensing Consulting Services 
No invoices have been submitted this month by HDR for relicensing consulting services. 
Total payments to HDR for 
relicensing services rendered through December 30, 2017 amount to $5,215,724. The 
budget balance remaining under 
Task Order 001, Management Plan Development, is $3,286. 
 
2017 Winter Storm Payments 
Seventeen individual checks totaling $404,000.00 have been received from FEMA, 
through the State of California Office 
of Emergency Services, for Agency expenses caused by the 2017 winter storms. The 
checks reimbursed Agency costs 
for six small projects and one large project. One small project and five large projects 
continue to be in process. Clarification 
on the most recent payment is in process. The payments are consistent with the formula 
for reimbursement of approved 
costs, 75% Federal monies, 18.75% State monies plus 10% of the State portion of the 
costs for administration. 
Also, documentation continues to be provided to ACWA/JPIA for the restoration of Kelly 
Ridge Powerhouse and is being 
reviewed and processed. An initial $800,000 has already been paid to the Agency for 
repair costs and loss of generation. 
 
2018-19 Workers Compensation Rates 
The Agency has its Workers Compensation insurance program through ACWA/JPIA. 
ACWA/JPIA has notified the Agency 
that the 2018-19 Program is being renewed with no changes in its rates. $224,000 was 
budgeted for Workers 
Compensation insurance in 2018. 
 
Policy #470 – Investments 
It is the Agency’s policy and practice for the Board of Directors to review Policy #470-
Investments on an annual basis. 
The policy follows this memo and provides direction to the Finance Division Manager for 
the management of Agency cash. 
The policy mirrors the provisions of California Government Code sections 53600 
through 53646. No changes are 
recommended to the Policy at this time. Incorporated into the review of this Policy is the 
delegation of investment authority 
to the Finance Division Manager and for the Finance Division Manager to serve as the 
Agency’s Treasurer. 
 
Supplemental Appropriations / Budget Modifications 
The following Supplemental Appropriation/Budget Modification has been incorporated 
into the Agency’s monthly financial 
statements. 
SA/BM #1, JFOF, Campgrounds, Outside Services $35,000 
  
     Policy #470 – INVESTMENTS 
Premise 
The Legislature of the State of California has declared that the deposit and investment of public 
funds by local officials and local agencies is an issue of statewide concern (California Government 
Code (CGC) §53600.6 and §53630.1); and, 
Government Code Sections 53600 and 53630, et seq., allow the legislative body of a local agency 
to invest surplus monies not required for the immediate necessities of the local agency; and, 
The Treasurer may be ordered by the Board of Directors to annually prepare and submit a 
statement of investment policy and such policy, and any changes thereto, is to be considered by 
the local agency’s legislative body at a public meeting (CGC §53646(a)). 
  
The Treasurer may be delegated the authority, for successive one-year periods, to act for the 
Board of Directors in the investment of Agency funds and to report fo the Board on the status of 



deposits and/or investments as may be determined appropriate by the Board. 
For these reasons, and to ensure prudent and responsible management of the public’s funds, it is 
the policy of the South Feather Water & Power Agency that, while meeting the daily cash flow 
demands of the Agency and conforming to all statutes governing the investment of South Feather 
Water & Power Agency funds, the Agency’s investment strategy will be prioritized to: 1) ensure 
safety of the investment; 2) maintain liquidity of the funds; and, 3) attain a reasonable rate of return 
on investments. 
   
Scope 
This investment policy applies to all financial assets of SFWPA. These funds are accounted for in 
the Independent Annual Financial Report and include: 
General Fund 
Joint Facilities Operating Fund 
System Capacity Fund 
Retiree Benefits Fund 
Local Agency Investment Fund 
 
Prudence 
Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, which 
persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs; 
not for speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety of their capital as well as 
the probable income to be derived. The standard of prudence to be used by investment officials 
shall be the “prudent investor” standard (CGC §53600.3) and shall be applied in the context of 
managing an overall portfolio. Investment officers acting in accordance with written procedures 
and this investment policy and exercising due diligence shall be relieved of personal responsibility  
for an individual security’s credit risk or market price changes, provided deviations for expectations 
are reported in a timely fashion and appropriate action is taken to control adverse developments.  
 
Objectives 
As specified in CGC §53600.5, when investing, reinvesting, purchasing, acquiring, exchanging, 
selling and managing public funds, the primary objectives of the investment activities, in order of 
priority, shall be: 
 
A. Safety: Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program. Investments 
of SFWPA shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation of capital in 
the overall portfolio. To attain this objective, diversification is required in order that potential 
losses on individual securities do not exceed the income generated from the remainder of the 
portfolio. 
 
B. Liquidity: The investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to enable SFWPA to meet all 
operating requirements that might be reasonably anticipated. 
 
C. Return on Investments: The investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective of 
attaining a market rate of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles, taking into 
account the investment risk constraints and the cash flow characteristics of the portfolio. 
 
Delegation of Authority 
Authority for the safekeeping of Agency funds, and to manage the investment program is derived 
from California Government Code Sections 53600, et seq. and 53630 et seq. Management 
responsibility for the investment program is hereby delegated to the Treasurer, which delegation 
shall be renewed annually in accordance with law. The Treasurer shall establish written 
procedures for the operation of the investment program consistent with this investment policy. 
Procedures should include references to: safekeeping, PSA repurchase agreements, wire transfer 
agreements, collateral/depository agreements and banking services contracts, as appropriate. 
Such procedures shall include explicit delegation of authority to persons responsible for investment 
transactions. No person may engage in an investment transaction except as provided under the 
terms of this policy and the procedures established by the Treasurer. The Treasurer shall be 
responsible for all transactions undertaken and shall establish a system of controls to regulate the 
activities of subordinate officials. Under the provisions of California Government Code §53600.3, 
the Treasurer is a trustee and a fiduciary subject to the prudent investor standard. 
 
Ethics and Conflicts of Interest 



The Treasurer and other officers and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain 
from personal business activity that could conflict with the proper execution of the investment 
program, or which could impair their ability to make impartial investment decisions. 
 
Authorized Financial Institutions and Dealers 
The Treasurer will maintain a list of financial institutions, selected on the basis of credit worthiness, 
financial strength, experience and minimal capitalization authorized to provide investment services. 
In addition, a list will also be maintained of approved security broker/dealers selected by credit 
worthiness that are authorized to provide investment and financial advisory services in the State of 
California. No public deposit shall be made except in a qualified public depository as established 
by state laws. 
For brokers/dealers of government securities and other investments, the Treasurer shall select only 
broker/dealers who are licensed and in good standing with the California Department of Securities, 
the Securities and Exchange Commission, the National Association of Securities Dealers or other 
applicable self-regulatory organizations. 
 
Before engaging in investment transactions with a broker/dealer, the Treasurer shall have received 
from said firm a signed Certification Form. This form shall attest that the individual responsible for 
SFWPA’s account with the firm has reviewed SFWPA’s Investment Policy, has reviewed 
Government Code Sections 53630 et seq. and 53600 et seq., and that the firm understands the 
policy and legal requirements, and intends to present investment recommendations and 
transactions to SFWPA that are appropriate under the terms and conditions of the Investment 
Policy and fully compliant with applicable law. 
 
Authorized and Suitable Investments 
The South Feather Water & Power Agency is empowered by California Government Code §53601 
to invest in the following: 
A. Bonds issued by the South Feather Water & Power Agency. 
B. United State Treasury Bills, Notes & Bonds. 
C. Registered state warrants or treasury notes or bonds issued by the State of California. 
D. Registered treasury notes or bonds of any of the other 49 states. 
E. Bonds, notes, warrants, or other evidences of indebtedness of a local agency within the State 
of California. 
F. Federal agency- or United States Government-sponsored enterprise obligations, 
participations, or other instruments, including those issued or fully guaranteed by the issuing 
agency. 
G. Bankers’ acceptances with a term not to exceed 180 days’ maturity. Not more than 40% of 
surplus funds can be invested in bankers’ acceptances and no more than 30% of surplus 
funds can be invested in the bankers’ acceptances of any single commercial bank. 
H. Prime commercial paper of U.S. corporations with assets greater than $500 million, with a 
term not to exceed 270 days and the highest ranking issued by NRSRO. Commercial paper 
cannot exceed 25% of total surplus funds. 
I. Negotiable certificates of deposit issued by federally or state chartered banks or associations. 
Not more than 30% of surplus funds can be invested in certificates of deposit. 
J. Repurchase/reverse re-purchase agreements of any securities authorized by this section. 
Securities purchased under these agreements shall be no less that 102% of market value. 
(See additional special requirements in CGC §53601(j)) 
Medium term notes (not to exceed 5 years) of U.S. corporations rated “A” or better by 
NRSRO. Not more than 30% of surplus funds can be invested in medium term notes. 
L. Shares of beneficial interest issued by diversified management companies (money market 
mutual funds) investing in the securities and obligations authorized by this Section. Such 
funds must carry the highest letter and numerical rating not less than two NRSROs. For 
additional restrictions and limits, see CGC §53601(l). 
M. Moneys held by a trustee or fiscal agent and pledged to the payment or security of bonds or 
other indebtedness, or obligations under a lease, installment sale, or other agreement of a 
local agency. 
N. Notes, bonds, or other obligations that are at all times secured by a valid first priority security 
interest in securities of the types listed in CGC §53651 and that are collateralized in amounts 
set forth in CGC § 53652. 
O. Any mortgage pass-though security, collateralized mortgage obligation, mortgaged backed or 
other pay-through bond, equipment lease-backed certificate, consumer receivable passthrough 
certificate or consumer receivable backed bond of a maximum maturity of five years. 



Securities eligible for investment shall be issued by an issuer having an “A” or higher rating for 
the issuer’s debt as provided by an NRSRO and rated in a rating category of “AA” or its 
equivalent or better by an NRSRO. Not more than 20% of surplus funds may be invested in 
this category of securities. 
P. Shares of beneficial interest issued by a joint powers authority that invests in the securities described 
above. The investment advisor of the joint powers authority must be registered or 
exempt from registering with the SEC; have not less than 5 years experience in investing in 
the above-described securities; and have assets under management in excess of 
$500,000,000. 
Q. Any other investment security authorized under the provisions of CGC§ 53600 et seq. or 
53630 et seq. 
(Also, see CGC §53601 for a detailed summary of the limitations and special conditions that 
apply to each of the above listed investment securities. CGC §53601 is included by reference 
in this investment policy.) 
 
Prohibited Investments. 
Under the provisions of CGC §53601.6, SFWPA shall not invest any funds covered by this 
Investment Policy in inverse floaters, range notes, interest-only strips derived from mortgage pools 
or any investment that may result in a zero interest accrual if held to maturity. 
 
Collateralization 
All certificates of deposits must be collateralized by U.S. Treasury Obligations. Collateral must be 
held by a third party trustee and valued on a monthly basis in amounts set forth in CGC § 53652. 
 
Safekeeping and Custody 
All security transactions entered into by the South Feather Water & Power Agency shall be 
conducted on delivery-versus-payment (DVP) basis. All securities purchased or acquired shall be 
delivered to SFWPA by book entry, physical delivery or by third party custodial agreement as 
required by CGC §53601. 
 
Diversification 
The South Feather Water & Power Agency will diversify its investments by security type and 
institution. It is the policy of the South Feather Water & Power Agency to diversify its investment 
portfolio. Assets shall be diversified to eliminate the risk of loss resulting from over concentration 
of assets in a specific maturity, a specific issuer or a specific class of securities. Diversification 
strategies shall be determined and revised periodically. In establishing specific diversification 
strategies, the following general policies and constraints shall apply: 
A. Portfolio maturities shall be matched versus liabilities to avoid undue concentration in a specific 
maturity sector. 
B. Maturities selected shall provide for stability of income and liquidity. 
C. Disbursement and payroll dates shall be covered through maturities investments, marketable 
U.S. Treasury bills or other cash equivalent instruments such as money market mutual funds. 
 
Reporting 
In accordance with CGC §53646(b)(1), the Treasurer shall submit to each member of the Board of 
Directors, and to the General Manager, a quarterly investment report. The report shall include a 
complete description of the portfolio, the type of investments, the issuers, maturity dates, par 
values and the current market values of each component of the portfolio, including funds managed 
for SFWPA by third party contracted managers. The report will also include the source of the 
portfolio valuation. As specified in CGC §53646(e), for funds placed in LAIF, FDIC-insured 
accounts and/or in a county investment pool, the foregoing report elements may be replaced by 
copies of the latest statements from such institutions. The report must also include a certification 
that: (1) all investment actions executed since the last report have been made in full compliance 
with the Investment Policy; and, (2) SFWP will meet its expenditure obligations for the next six 
months as required by CGC §53646(b)(2) and (3), respectively. The Treasurer shall maintain a 
complete and timely record of all investment transactions. The Treasurer shall maintain a 
complete and timely record of all changes in investments and shall report monthly to the Board of 
Directors of all transactions made in the preceding month (CGC §53607). 
 
Investment Policy Review 
This Investment Policy shall be reviewed on an annual basis, and modifications must be approved 
by the Board of Directors, at a regularly scheduled meeting of the Board. Delegation of investment 



authority to the Treasurer for the succeeding year shall also be considered at the time of the 
annual review. 
Adopted: 2/ 27/96 
Amended: 8/22/06, 4/23/13 
 
WATER DIVISION MANAGER’S REPORT 
Water Treatment Operations 
The total MRTP treated water production for the month of April totaled 175million gallons which is 106 
percent of average for the month (table at right).  The chart at the end of this report provides a historical 
perspective of cumulative water demand and production and shows the 2018 January through May 
demand at 102% percent of recent average. 
  
MRTP Improvement Project  
With some relief I am pleased to report that project activities have been minimal.  MRTP operators are 
diligently learning the new operations of the plant while directing minor corrective work. The design build 
team is working on modifications to the solids handling process.  There is still Initial acceptance testing that 
needs to be performed which starts the one year facilities commisioning period prior to final acceptance.  
The project invoice from C. Overaa & Co. for the period of 3/31/2018 to 5/31/2018 is $370,287 and as of 
May 31, 2017 approximately $24.8 million of the Phase I and Phase II contracted work budgeted for $25.5 
million have been expended.   
 
Irrigation System  
On Monday May 14th, the Irrigation system maintenance and operations were dedicated to meeting 
seasonal irrigation demands.  The current irrigation operations are:    

Forbestown Ditch    SF 14   =     5 cfs  
                NYWD   =     5 cfs  

                      SFWPA @ WD 6   =     0 cfs   
Bangor Canal     SF 25  =    13 cfs**  
Palermo Canal               SF30  =     0 cfs** 

 
**Water operations data provided above are impacted due to artificial demands resulting from 

water quality concerns at Miners Ranch Reservoir. 
 

Forbestown Ditch Failure  
On Tuesday June 12, 2018 it was discovered that a 120 foot section of the Forbestown ditch above Black 
Bart experienced a landslide failure (see photos below).  It is assumed that instability in the hillside created 
a leak further weakening the hillside.  Upstream water was immediately discharged and exposing the 
damage.  Cracks along the inside of the ditch and the supporting left bank indicate that the hillside is 
unstable and possibly could continue to move especially with the reintroduction of open conveyance ditch  
water.  It was concluded the most expeditious method of repair which should not contribute to further 
instability issues from saturation was to pipe and bridge the unstable portion of the ditch.  Water to WD6 
(Forbestown ditch) is shut off while the procurement of the 36 inch pipe and repairs are taking place.  The 
photo at above right shows the installation of a new headwall and the new pipe.  Pipe procurement caused 
a brief delay in returning back to normal irrigation operations now anticipated for Tuesday June 26th.   
 
Mount Ida Transmission Main Failure 
On Tuesday June 5th at approximately 12:15 Agency personnel were informed of a leak on Mt. Ida.  Crews 
were dispatched to find PG&E replacing a damaged joint utility pole and had augered into our 32 inch 
mortar coated spiral wrapped steel water main.  This location is extremely problematic because it is 
basically the beginning of our gravity distribution system serving two thirds of our customers.  Water was 
shut off isolating the damaged section and to minimize the amount of customers to be out of water.  The 
distribution system was valved to reroute the high service 1 million gallon tank on Kelly Ridge to back-feed 
the distribution system up to a point of isolation.  It was apparent that this was going to be a significant 
issue for the crew and the customers.  Field crews, office staff, MRTP operators, PG&E, and AT&T all 
worked cooperatively to minimize the work and the duration that the customers were out of water.  Water 
was returned to the system at approximately 7pm after a difficult repair.  For nearly two days stirred up 
sediment and dirty water complaints occurred.  Distribution crews effectively continued to flush the system 
and eventually the water quality returned to normal.    
  
Solar Plant Production; 
MRTP power demand for May was greater than the solar generation by 18,172 KWH.  The graph below 
provides a historical perspective of energy demand (from PG&E) compared to water production. 



  
 
 
POWER DIVISION MANAGER’S REPORT 
The Power Division Manager communicated the following:   

Operations 
 

The May 2018 Power Division Summary Report, Reservoir Storage Report, and Precipitation Report are 
attached.  The total precipitation measured this season at Sly Creek PH vicinity on May 16 is 66 inches.  
The 2012-2017 average rainfall through May for this location is 77 inches. The precipitation season ends 
on June 30, 2018. 
 

Ponderosa reservoir is spilling.  The South Fork tunnel is open and the Slate Creek tunnel is closed. 
 

Powerhouse availability and performance data for May 2018 summarized in the table below: 
 

Powerhouse Capacity 
(MW) 

Available for 
Generation 

(Hrs) 

Generation 
Dispatched at 

Full Output (Hrs) 

Additional Gen. not 
Dispatched at 

Full Output (Hrs) 

Generation 
Dispatched at 

Part. Output (Hrs) 
Woodleaf 60.0 100  2.0 742 50 

Forbestown 37.5 100 14 730 88 
Kelly Ridge 11.0 0 0 0 0 
Sly Creek 13.0 100 3.0 741 11 

  Calendar total hours in May 2018 is 744 Hrs. 
 
Maintenance 
 
Woodleaf Powerhouse 
 

• Outage to be planned later in year for NERC compliance testing. 
 
Forbestown Powerhouse 
 

• Outage to be planned later in year for NERC compliance testing. 
 Kelly Ridge Powerhouse 
 

• Information regarding the overall restoration is detailed in the Projects Section below. 
 
Sly Creek Powerhouse 
 

• No new update. 
 
Outlying Stations, Facilities, and Equipment 
 

• Perform seasonal inspections, maintenance, and cleaning of dams, access roads, canals, tunnels, 
penstocks, buildings, valves, gates, and other structures throughout Power Project. 

• Adjust valves and gates at dams to maintain water flows per FERC license requirements. 
• Move dumpsters to Little Grass Valley Campground. 
• Brush Sly Creek access road with assistance from Butte County inmate crew. 
• Repair lower outlet valve at South Fork Diversion. 
• Repair safety buoys at Slate Creek Diversion.  Repair hole in fence. 
• Repair and replace safety buoys at Little Grass Valley Reservoir. 
• Brush saplings on downstream face of Sly Creek Dam. 
• Install culvert on Forbestown PH access roadway. 
• Test and align vehicular repeaters. 
• Perform service and repairs of vehicle fleet. 

 
Hydro Energy Delivery Strategy 
 

• A Term Sheet for the SFPP Generation Project has been developed that summarizes financial 
terms, generator parameters, dispatch profiles, generator availability, reservoir storage, compliance 
requirements, and FERC license information.  The Term Sheet will be submitted to interested 
energy purchasers. 

• Agency staff and GridSME (GSME) have submitted a formal proposal to a joint powers authority. 



• Agency and GSME are actively engaged in holding discussions with other purchasers of hydro 
energy. 

 
Regulatory Compliance 
 
FERC 
 

• Annual FERC Inspections are scheduled for June 25-29 
• Staff continues to meet with Jim Lynch of HDR to continue preparing for license implementation 

and all of the environmental and recreational plans that the Agency is required to complete within 
the first year of implementation.  Jim provides continuity and expertise with the Agency’s license 
application, and interpretation of new license requirements. 

• Staff is in the process of preparing the Aquatic Monitoring Plan for license implementation.  The 
Aquatic Monitoring Plan will encompass several plan requirements, including fish monitoring, BMI 
monitoring, amphibian monitoring, minimum flows, ramping rates (intermediate and final), and 
riparian monitoring.  

• The Aquatic Monitoring Plan meetings have been focusing on intermediate ramping rates and the 
Agency’s ability to meet flow requirements and rates. 

 
•  Staff is working with the FERC as they have questions and comments on the Part 12D review. 
• Staff is currently updating the Dam Safety, Surveillance, and Monitoring Program as well as the 

Supporting Technical Information Documents for the project dams, in response to FERC comments 
from the Part 12D inspection. 

• Staff developing updated Security Plan per FERC recommendations. To be completed by August.   
• Owners Dam Safety Program is updated. 
• Agency is awaiting comments from FERC on Phase 1 of spillway assessments. 
• Staff starting to develop Phase 2 recommendations with McMillen Jacobs. 
• Staff will start planning for EAP and security trainings as well as EAP coordinator activities in the 

second half of the year. 
 
DWR 
 

• No new update. 
 
DSOD 
 

• DSOD dam safety inspections completed, and the inspections were favorable. 
• Agency awaiting comments from DSOD on Phase 1 of spillway assessments. 
• Staff starting to develop Phase 2 recommendations with McMillen Jacobs. 

 
SWRCB 
 

• The SWRCB announced that the issue date for the Final 401 certification for the project has been 
revised to September 30. This is the final approval needed for the new FERC license to go into 
implementation and the new project requirements becoming effective. 

 
NERC 
 

• No new update. 
 
WECC 
 

• No new update. 
 

Recreation 
 

• Staff coordinating with Forest Service on purchase and installation of campground animal resistant 
lockers, picnic tables, fire rings, dumpsters, and animal resistant trashcans. 

• Power Division Staff received and placed all of the recently procured dumpsters at Little Grass 
Valley Campgrounds.  Staff will install animal resistant lockers starting on the week of July 9.  Staff 
will have 157 lockers to install.  One hundred lockers were purchased by SFWPA, and 57 were 
purchased by the Forest Service through a Federal grant. 

• Butte County Inmate Crews have been working on brushing along the Sly Creek Campground 
Road, with the guidance from Agency staff. 

 



Forest Service 
 

• Fuel reduction and campground maintenance at Sly and Strawberry campgrounds has been 
completed.  The new operations relationship with the Forest Service staff is working well. 
 

• Agency personnel are currently teaming with the Forest Service to develop a pre/post License 
Implementation Schedule for capital improvement projects and annual maintenance requirements 
included in the new FERC license. 

• Agency personnel are engaged in meetings attended by SWRCB, US Fish and Wildlife, CA Fish 
and Wildlife, and Forest Service.  The meetings focus on development and completion of 
Recreation Management Plan, Invasive Vegetation Management Plan, and Aquatic Monitoring 
Plan.   

• The three above plans are the consolidation of approximately ten plans mandated under the new 
license.  The plans were combined to streamline and simplify the planning and approval process. 

 
Projects 
 
Kelly Ridge Powerhouse Restoration 
 

• Final commissioning and restoration to commercial operation is scheduled for week of July 9. 
• Mechanical alignment of the rotor/field, mainshaft, and runner is complete. 
• Generator bearings and remainder of plant equipment are being installed. This work is being 

performed by Agency personnel. 
• Contractors are performing specialty work including dynamic balancing, electro-mechanical testing, 

protection system testing, and recertification of revenue metering. 
Ponderosa Dam Low Level Outlet 
 

• Staff has extracted one of two hydraulic cylinders used to control outlet valves. 
• Cylinders were manufactured in 1961.  Estimates to refurbish were received from local machine 

shop.  Availability of components were questionable. 
• Agency has decided to purchase two new replacement cylinders from Parker Hydraulics for 

approximately $10,750 each. 
• Additional work and planning is underway to replace hydraulic fluid lines leading to Outlet 

Chamber. 
 
Sly Creek Powerhouse Penstock and PSV Recoat Project 
 

• Condensation on Penstock is causing delay of project until this Fall. 
• Request for Proposals will be submitted to Contractors in July. 

 
Lost Creek Dam Outlets 
 

• Low-Level Guard Valve has been received (Cameron 18” Ball Valve) and is scheduled to be 
installed in early July. 

• Mid-Level pipe and valve components scheduled for recoating next week. Installation of 
components scheduled for late July. 

 
MRC Road Station 7 Bridge Replacement 
 

• Contractor has mobilized all equipment to job site and begun concrete reinforcement of 
embankment below bridge.  Bridge deck will subsequently be removed, followed by a concrete 
backfill, and approximately 50 feet of hillside reinforcement for erosion control upstream. 

Project is scheduled for completion by July 7.  Upon completion, Agency will begin contractor 
 

• bidding process to complete remaining FEMA sites downstream along MRC. 
 
Personnel Updates 
 

• Hydro-Generation Operator Guy Mastelotto will be retiring in July.  He has been employed with the 
Agency for 33 years.  He is a highly valued member of our team, and he has consistently delivered 
excellent results in his work.  We will all miss his great sense of humor and cheerful manner, and 
truly wish him and his family the best in retirement. 

 
DIRECTORS’ REPORTS 
 



Director Lodigiani communicated that he has proudly served South Feather Water and Power Agency as a 
Board Director for 10 years. He has taken the role very serious and has done his best to serve all 
constituents. With that said, he and his wife have sold their mandarin ranch business and all property’s 
associate with the business including their personal home. He and his wife will be moving out of state in the 
upcoming months and as a result will be resigning his position on the Board. Unless something changes in 
the upcoming weeks, July 31st will be his last day as Board Director with the Agency. 
  
BUSINESS   
M/S/U (Hickman/Moreland) Approving the agreement with the U.S. Geological Survey for streamgage data 
collection and publication for SFWPA FERC Project 2088 in the amount of $27,390.00.     
 
M/S/U (Hickman/Moreland) Approving the adoption of Resolution 18-06-01 and establishing the appropriations limit 
at $1,023,315 for fiscal year 2018 pursuant to article XIIIB of the California Constitution.     
 
INFORMATIONAL ITEM   
The Oroville Region Water Service Study information presented by Northstar Engineering to LAFCO was shared with 
the Board. 
  
RECESS (5:02 p.m.) 
President Hickman offered opportunity for public comment on closed session items. 
 
CLOSED SESSION (convened at 5:12 p.m.)  
 
Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation (Government Code §54956.9(d)(1)):    
Bay-Delta proceedings, including the California WaterFix, the associated environmental document and change 
petition     pending before the State Water Resources Control Board, and the planned update to the Bay-Delta Water 
Quality Control Plan.    
Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation (Government Code §54956.9(d) (2) :)    
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) OF SUBDIVISION (D) OF Government Code section 
54956.9: one potential case; Existing Facts and Circumstances: Lost Creek Dam Crest Modification Pending and 
Potential Contractor Claims (Sierra Mountain Construction Inc.).  
 

OPEN SESSION (reconvened at 5:40 p.m.) – President Hickman announced that legal counsel was given 
direction during the closed session.  
 
ADJOURNMENT (5:41 p.m.) 
 
 
              
Rath T. Moseley, Secretary   Tod Hickman, President 
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TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Steve Wong, Finance Division Manager 
 
DATE: July 6, 2018  
 
RE: Approval of Warrants and Checks 
 Agenda Item for 7/24/18 Board of Directors Meeting 
  
 
June 2018 General Fund and Joint Facilities Operating Fund expenditures are summarized as follows: 
 
  
  Checks:  53589   to  53787 , $ 2,178,106.08 
 
Electronic Fund Transfers:  180601   to  180605 , $ 281,796.22 
                    
  Payroll Expenses:        $ 478,620.93  
 
 
TOTAL EXPENDITURES FOR JUNE, 2018:     $ 2,938,523.23  
 
 
June 2018 Power Division (“PG&E Legacy Projects”) expenditures are summarized as follows: 
 
  
 Checks:  68074   to  68076  $ 677,724.80 
 
TOTAL POWER DIVISION EXPENDITURES FOR JUNE, 2018: $ 677,724.80  
 
At June 30, 2018, the authorized balance available was $370,844.09. 
  
Action to approve all expenditures: 
 

“I move approval of the total General Fund and Joint Facilities Operating Fund 
expenditures for the month of June, 2018 in the amount of $2,938,523.23; approval 
of Power Division expenditures for the month of June, 2018 in the amount of 
$677,724.80; and, authorize the transfer of $2,000,000.00 from the TCB General Fund 
to the TCB Accounts Payable and Payroll Fund for the payment of regular operating 
expenses.” 



South Feather Water and Power Agency

Checks Paid, June, 2018

Date Check # Vendor Name Account Description Amount

6/6/2018 180601 CalPERS 01-50-50413 Employee retirement contributions PE 5/5/18 47,026.22

6/6/2018 180602 CalPERS 457 plan 01-00-22908 Employee 457 contributions PE 5/5/18 2,179.57

06/08/2018 53589 ABH Safety Consulting 07-62-62102 AED batteries and shock pads 1,984.00

06/08/2018 53590 Capra Environmental Services, Corp. 07-64-64201 Goat grazing services 6,000.00

06/08/2018 53591 Cresco Equipment Rentals 07-66-66171 Brush chipper rental 387.68

06/08/2018 53592 Dish Network 07-60-60201 Satellite service 6/8/18-7/7/18 50.03

06/08/2018 53593 Eagle Security 07-60-60201 Alarm monitoring service 6/1/18-8/31/18 306.00

06/08/2018 53594 Huntington's Sportsman 07-63-63102 Employee steel toed boots 26.43

06/08/2018 53595 Mobile Mini, LLC - CA 07-63-63171 Rental of office and storage units 459.58

06/08/2018 53596 Oroville Cable & Equipment Co. 07-66-66171 May 2018 tank rental, cable clamps 350.12

06/08/2018 53597 P G & E - Oroville 07-63-63250 Service 4/3/18-5/24/18 7,706.54

06/08/2018 53598 Recology Butte Colusa Counties 07-66-66250 May 2018 garbage service 278.23

06/08/2018 53599 Riebes Auto Parts 07-66-66150 Trailer hitch pins and clips 38.03

06/08/2018 53600 Talley Communications 07-62-62102 positioning assy, chain, hook 190.74

06/08/2018 53601 USDA - Forest Service 07-65-65201 Campground start up funding 35,000.00

06/08/2018 53602 Better Deal Exchange 01-54-54295 PVC pipe, shrub stakes, box valve, elbows,scissors 145.07

06/08/2018 53603 Chadbourne Office Supply 01-50-50106 Laserjet toner cartridges, chair, paper 2,065.80

06/08/2018 53604 Leroy Christophersen 01-58-58394 May 2018 employee health benefit 49.00

06/08/2018 53605 Copy Center 01-58-58201 Shipping fees 65.64

06/08/2018 53606 Cresco Equipment Rentals 01-54-54104 Diamond blades, caution tape 215.45

06/08/2018 53607 Del-Mar Equipment Rentals 01-00-11202/2013-0135Concrete 983.48

06/08/2018 53608 Dish Network 01-50-50251 Satellite service 6/8/18-7/7/18 93.68

06/08/2018 53609 Eagle Security 01-53-53201 Alarm monitoring service 6/1/18-8/31/18 583.50

06/08/2018 53610 Grid Subject Matter Experts 07-60-60201 May 2018 professional services 5,225.00

06/08/2018 53611 Hach Co. 01-53-53260 MRTP supplies 325.19

06/08/2018 53612 Hemming Morse, LLP 07-60-60208 Apr 2018 professional services 35,088.00

06/08/2018 53613 Rick Hess 07-63-63394 May 2018 employee health benefit 40.00

06/08/2018 53614 Evan Larson 01-53-53394 May 2018 employee health benefit 35.00

06/08/2018 53615 Robert Major 01-53-53394 May 2018 employee health benefit 35.00

06/08/2018 53616 Mendes Supply Company 01-56-56100 Paper products 56.84

06/08/2018 53617 Metal Works Supply 01-00-11202/2013-0135Flat bars, steel tubes 395.55

06/08/2018 53618 Oroville Cable & Equipment Co. 01-54-54104 Brake hose, adapter, zerks, equip insp books 114.73

06/08/2018 53619 Oroville Ford 01-56-56150 Screen assembly, brake pads, door handles 94.97

06/08/2018 53620 Oroville Power Equipment 01-56-56150 Mower blades 107.23
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South Feather Water and Power Agency

Checks Paid, June, 2018

Date Check # Vendor Name Account Description Amount

06/08/2018 53621 Pace Supply Corp. 01-00-22300 Tapping saddles, valves 6,117.18

06/08/2018 53622 R&B Company 01-00-22300 Full circle clamp 450.45

06/08/2018 53623 Ramos Oil Co., Inc. 01-56-56160 Fuel, diesel 4,997.12

06/08/2018 53624 Ray Morgan Company 01-58-58201 Records conversion services 10,921.42

06/08/2018 53625 Recology Butte Colusa Counties 01-56-56250 May 2018 garbage service 709.25

06/08/2018 53626 Riebes Auto Parts 01-56-56150 V-belt, auto trans fluid, brake cleaner, alternator belt 385.32

06/08/2018 53627 Dan Shipman 07-60-60394 May 2018 employee health benefit 35.00

06/08/2018 53628 John Shipman 01-53-53394 May 2018 employee health benefit 35.00

06/08/2018 53629 Michael Stark 01-00-14404 Employee computer purchase 1,260.78

06/08/2018 53630 Thatcher Company 01-53-53102 MRTP supplies 2,207.22

06/08/2018 53631 U S A Blue Book 01-53-53200 MRTP supplies 699.55

06/08/2018 53632 Vista Net, Inc. 01-58-58360 Hardware support (5/29/18-5/29/19), internet filtering 3,780.78

06/08/2018 53633 Wilbur-Ellis Company LLC 01-54-54295 MRTP supplies 1,695.09

06/08/2018 53634 North Yuba Water District 07-69-69990 Jan-Mar 2018 JFOF minimum annual payment 177,250.00

06/08/2018 180603 CalPERS 01-50-50400 June 2018 employee health insurance 141,158.69

06/15/2018 53635 Accela, Inc. #774375 01-58-58360 Annual software license fees 20,150.23

06/15/2018 53636 Access Information Management 01-50-50201 May 2018 shredding service 111.35

06/15/2018 53637 All Metals Pipe & Supply 01-53-53260 Hex cap screws 72.72

06/15/2018 53638 AT&T Long Distance 07-60-60251 Service 4/25/18-5/24/18 11.29

06/15/2018 53639 Basic Laboratory 01-53-53201 Coliform and E. coli water testing 88.00

06/15/2018 53640 Better Deal Exchange 01-54-54104 Brass gate valves, PVC adapters & couplings 239.64

06/15/2018 53641 Bobcat of Chico 01-56-56150 Track drive motor 3,724.79

06/15/2018 53642 Butte Co. Sheriff's Office 07-65-65201 May 2018 inmate work crew services 2,325.00

06/15/2018 53643 C. Overaa & Co. 01-00-11204/2013-0135Feb and Mar 2018 design/build services 215,695.60

06/15/2018 53644 Chemtrade Chemicals US LLC 01-53-53102 Liquid aluminum 5,515.02

06/15/2018 53645 Comcast 01-53-53251 May 2018 communications service 2,275.99

06/15/2018 53646 Cresco Equipment Rentals 01-54-54170 Drum gas roller, trailer rental 482.20

06/15/2018 53647 Eagle Security 01-56-56370 Alarm service equipment maintenance 824.08

06/15/2018 53648 Francotyp-Postalia, Inc. 01-50-50171 Postage machine rental, 5/24/18-8/23/18 145.27

06/15/2018 53649 Franklin Construction 01-00-15213 Aggregate base 164.52

06/15/2018 53650 HDR Engineering, Inc. 07-67-67201 May 2018 aquatic monitoring plan 6,117.09

06/15/2018 53651 Home Depot Credit Service 01-54-54104 Batteries, lumber, light bulbs, cleaning supplies 606.48

06/15/2018 53652 Industrial Power Products-Oroville 01-56-56150 Fuel premix, bar oil, weedeater heads 138.28

06/15/2018 53653 K-Gas, Inc. 01-56-56160 Propane 33.65
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South Feather Water and Power Agency

Checks Paid, June, 2018

Date Check # Vendor Name Account Description Amount

06/15/2018 53654 Knife River Construction 01-54-54104 Pea gravel 1,752.51

06/15/2018 53655 Zenaido Martinez 01-00-14404 Employee computer purchase 1,138.63

06/15/2018 53656 Matco Tools 01-56-56274 Socket 26.80

06/15/2018 53657 McMaster Carr Supply Co. 01-00-11202/2013-0135Flexible shaft picks 64.11

06/15/2018 53658 Mechanics Bank 01-00-11204/2013-0135Feb and Mar 2018 design/build services retention 11,352.40

06/15/2018 53659 Cory Nevers 07-63-63394 May 2018 employee health benefit 40.00

06/15/2018 53660 Normac Inc. 01-54-54104 Backflow repair kit 652.69

06/15/2018 53661 North Valley Barricade, Inc. 01-54-54295 Employee work shirts, paint 2,774.30

06/15/2018 53662 NorthStar Engineering 07-67-67201 May 2018 professional services, UWMP 2,216.30

06/15/2018 53663 Todd Richie 01-56-56394 May 2018 employee health benefit 35.00

06/15/2018 53664 Riebes Auto Parts 01-56-56150 Oil filters, battery 188.39

06/15/2018 53665 Royal Aire Inc 01-56-56370 Refrigerant for AC unit, warehouse server room 149.00

06/15/2018 53666 SNF Polydyne, Inc. 01-53-53102 MRTP supplies 1,665.06

06/15/2018 53667 Michael Stark 01-54-54394 May 2018 employee health benefit 60.00

06/15/2018 53668 Tractor Supply Credit Plan 01-54-54295 Rubber boots, tri fold ramp 235.92

06/15/2018 53669 WalMart Community/SYNCB 01-56-56100 Light bulbs, cleaning supplies 198.05

06/15/2018 53670 William Wong 01-50-50394 May 2018 employee health benefit 49.00

06/15/2018 53671 All Metals Pipe & Supply 07-63-63260 Keystock, wire brush, sanding discs 106.25

06/15/2018 53672 Alpine Portable Toilet Service 07-63-63171 June 2018 portable toilet and sink service 270.00

06/15/2018 53673 Basic Laboratory 07-65-65201 Campground water testing 64.00

06/15/2018 53674 Better Deal Exchange 07-63-63100 Air filters, duct tape 49.17

06/15/2018 53675 CAL-JUNE Inc. 07-64-64100 Orange tape for buoy labels 42.87

06/15/2018 53676 Dan's Electrical Supply 07-63-63260 Connectors receptacles, cord 42.67

06/15/2018 53677 Huntington's Sportsman 07-63-63102 Employee steel toed boots 159.57

06/15/2018 53678 Hust Brothers Inc. 07-63-63260 Anaerobic gasket maker 23.60

06/15/2018 53679 Hytorc, Div. UNEX Corporation 07-63-63270 Torque gun rental 176.15

06/15/2018 53680 Martin Crane & Rigging 07-63-63201 KPH turbine runner crane service 600.00

06/15/2018 53681 Mobile Mini, LLC - CA 07-63-63171 Office unit rental 6/8/18-7/5/18 347.55

06/15/2018 53682 O'Reilly Auto Parts 07-63-63260 Brake cleaner, super glue 37.51

06/15/2018 53683 Oroville Cable & Equipment Co. 07-63-63100 Nitrogen, chain hooks 57.02

06/15/2018 53684 Ramos Oil Co., Inc. 07-66-66160 Gas and diesel 4,451.84

06/15/2018 53685 Recology Yuba-Sutter 07-65-65250 Campground garbage service, June 2018 1,451.37

06/15/2018 53686 Riebes Auto Parts 07-66-66150 Oil filters, permatex for gaskets, hand cleaner 122.23

06/15/2018 53687 Jose Romero 07-66-66160 Fuel purchased for truck 30.00
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South Feather Water and Power Agency

Checks Paid, June, 2018

Date Check # Vendor Name Account Description Amount

06/15/2018 53688 Talley Communications 07-64-64100 Stream gaging equipment material, Sunset repeater 1,729.22

06/15/2018 53689 Thomas Hydraulic & Hardware 07-00-11204/2015-0899Hydraulic ram inspection 166.25

06/15/2018 53690 WalMart Community/SYNCB 07-63-63100 Batteries, paper and office supplies 104.26

06/15/2018 53691 Western Renewable Energy Generation Inf. Sys. 07-63-63201 June 2018 WREGIS 5.13

06/15/2018 53692 A D P,  Inc. 01-50-50201 Payroll processing, PE 5/5/18, 5/19/18, 6/2/18 1,552.97

06/15/2018 53693 ACWA-JPIA 01-50-50400 July 2018 employee vision & dental insurance 8,985.72

06/15/2018 53694 AFLAC 01-00-22915 Employee supplemental ins, PE 4/21/18 & 5/5/18 1,111.14

06/15/2018 53695 IBEW #1245 01-00-25207 June 2018 member dues 6,032.28

06/15/2018 53696 Lincoln Financial Group 01-00-22908 Employee 457 contributions, PE 5/19/18 & 6/2/18 3,129.02

06/15/2018 53697 MassMutual Financial Group 01-00-22908 Employee 457 contributions, PE 5/19/18 & 6/2/18 200.00

06/15/2018 53698 Nationwide Retirement 01-00-22908 Employee 457 contributions, PE 5/19/18 & 6/2/18 1,079.72

06/15/2018 53699 Reliance Standard Life 01-50-50402 June 2018 employee life insurance 1,020.08

06/15/2018 53700 Standard Insurance 01-50-50403 Jun 2018 employee disability insurance 3,312.23

06/15/2018 53701 Vantage Transfer Agents - 303705 01-00-22908 Employee 457 contributions, PE 5/19/18 & 6/2/18 6,644.56

06/15/2018 180604 CalPERS 01-50-50413 Employee retirement contributions PE 5/19/18 & 6/2/18 86,623.79

06/15/2018 180605 CalPERS 457 plan 01-00-22908 Employee 457 contributions, PE 5/19/18 & 6/2/18 4,807.95

06/22/2018 53702 Advanced Document Concepts 07-60-60380 May 2018 copier/printer maintenance 76.52

06/22/2018 53703 AT&T 07-66-66251 Local calls, 6/10/18-7/6/18 2,305.45

06/22/2018 53704 AT&T 07-60-60251 Circuits service 6/10/18-7/9/18 251.72

06/22/2018 53705 Bank of America - Bank Card 07-63-63260 Epoxy, ASDSO membership, campground faucet 364.02

06/22/2018 53706 Better Deal Exchange 07-64-64100 Utility knife and blades 19.47

06/22/2018 53707 Cresco Equipment Rentals 07-66-66171 Brush chipper rental 1,006.53

06/22/2018 53708 Dawson Oil Company 07-63-63100 Hydraulic oil, turbo 46 oil 2,645.92

06/22/2018 53709 Grainger Inc. 07-66-66100 Truck box, hydrometer 999.75

06/22/2018 53710 Home Depot Credit Service 07-63-63100 Batteries, lumber, light bulbs, cleaning supplies 25.68

06/22/2018 53711 Martin Crane & Rigging 07-63-63201 KPH thrust & upper guide crane service 2,500.00

06/22/2018 53712 McMaster Carr Supply Co. 07-63-63260 Steel taper pin 23.30

06/22/2018 53713 Mendes Supply Company 07-63-63100 Paper products 201.57

06/22/2018 53714 Mt. Shasta Spring Water 07-63-63100 Bottled water 126.12

06/22/2018 53715 Oakland Machine Works, Inc. 07-63-63201 Thrust runner plate and collar modification 2,731.25

06/22/2018 53716 Oroville Cable & Equipment Co. 07-66-66150 Oil plugs, tap set 55.73

06/22/2018 53717 P G & E - Sacramento 07-63-63501 Gen interconnection agreement, June 2018 7,010.37

06/22/2018 53718 Ray's General Hardware 07-63-63100 Solder, flux paste, tape, utility knives 49.76

06/22/2018 53719 Rental Guy 07-63-63171 Towable generator rental 5/23/18-6/22/18 1,703.13
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South Feather Water and Power Agency

Checks Paid, June, 2018

Date Check # Vendor Name Account Description Amount

06/22/2018 53720 Riebes Auto Parts 07-63-63260 Permatex for gaskets, sealant, coolant conditioner 181.19

06/22/2018 53721 Sage Engineering, Inc. 07-63-63201 KPH stratup support support and commissioning 7,880.34

06/22/2018 53722 Syblon Reid 07-64-64201 MRC wall repair 33,908.46

06/22/2018 53723 Talley Communications 07-68-68100 Sunset repeater material 85.09

06/22/2018 53724 Tehama Tire Service, Inc. 07-66-66150 New tires for T#113, tire repair 2,153.51

06/22/2018 53725 Trimark Associates, Inc. 07-00-11204/2018-0939Meter certifications, KPH 28,820.76

06/22/2018 53726 WalMart Community/SYNCB 07-63-63100 Employee retirement lunch supplies 62.29

06/22/2018 53727 Western Renewable Energy Generation Inf. Sys. 07-63-63201 Nov 2017 WREGIS 28.90

06/22/2018 53728 Advanced Document Concepts 01-50-50380 May 2018 copier/printer maintenance 280.60

06/22/2018 53729 AT&T 01-50-50251 Local calls, 6/10/18-7/6/18 3,346.56

06/22/2018 53730 AT&T Long Distance 01-53-53251 Service 5/1/18-6/2/18 251.11

06/22/2018 53731 Automated Network Controls 01-53-53201 Clarifiers sequencing 1,528.10

06/22/2018 53732 Dawn Cook 01-56-56394 May 2018 employee health benefit 35.00

06/22/2018 53733 Cresco Equipment Rentals 01-54-54170 Drum gas roller, trailer rental 244.60

06/22/2018 53734 Eagle Security 01-56-56200 Alarm monitoring service 6/1/18-8/31/18 388.06

06/22/2018 53735 Gemini Group 01-53-53201 Consumer confidence reports 2,617.00

06/22/2018 53736 Home Depot Credit Service 01-54-54295 Concrete mix, lumber, light bulbs 667.88

06/22/2018 53737 Jackson Equipment Services Inc. 01-56-56370 Awning window operators 426.91

06/22/2018 53738 Knife River Construction 01-54-54104 Pea gravel 1,049.57

06/22/2018 53739 Mendes Supply Company 01-56-56100 Gloves, paper products, cleaning supplies 212.93

06/22/2018 53740 Normac Inc. 01-00-22300 Backflows and backflow boxes 6,112.47

06/22/2018 53741 Orkin Pest Control 01-53-53201 June 2018 pest control services 82.00

06/22/2018 53742 R&B Company 01-00-22300 Tapping saddles 42.49

06/22/2018 53743 Riebes Auto Parts 01-56-56150 Brake rotors, wheel bolts 127.01

06/22/2018 53744 Royal Aire Inc 01-56-56370 Ceiling vent leaking 360.25

06/22/2018 53745 U.S. Bank 01-53-53260 Motor oil, pump grease, encroachment permit 581.34

06/29/2018 53746 Ginno Construction, Inc. 01-00-22200 Refund check 889.43

06/29/2018 53747 George Glenn 01-00-22200 Refund check 36.72

06/29/2018 53748 Stanley Jaworski 01-00-22200 Refund check 15.42

06/29/2018 53749 Frank A Jimenez 01-00-22200 Refund check 18.36

06/29/2018 53750 J.W. & Mary Ruth Kerbow 01-00-22200 Refund check 15.42

06/29/2018 53751 William & Maria Macomber 01-00-22200 Refund check 132.11

06/29/2018 53752 Todd McAllister 01-00-22200 Refund check 31.72

06/29/2018 53753 Cheryl Frame & Peter Minarick 01-00-22200 Refund check 15.88
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South Feather Water and Power Agency

Checks Paid, June, 2018

Date Check # Vendor Name Account Description Amount

06/29/2018 53754 Michael Neal 01-00-22200 Refund check 27.56

06/29/2018 53755 Travis Parsons 01-00-22200 Refund check 26.34

06/29/2018 53756 Martha Sanders 01-00-22200 Refund check 20.13

06/29/2018 53757 Villalovos Liiving Trust 01-00-22200 Refund check 15.84

06/29/2018 53758 Phillip L Wilson 01-00-22200 Refund check 15.00

06/29/2018 53759 Judy Young 01-00-22200 Refund check 23.48

06/29/2018 53760 Allied Electronics, Inc. 07-63-63260 Fuses and fuse holders 406.72

06/29/2018 53761 AT&T 07-60-60251 KPH circuits service 1,242.72

06/29/2018 53762 Bearicuda, Inc. 07-00-11202/2018-0941Animal resistant trash can enclosures 10,898.52

06/29/2018 53763 Cresco Equipment Rentals 07-66-66171 Brush chipper rental 333.73

06/29/2018 53764 Fastenal Company 07-63-63260 Bolts, battery 188.83

06/29/2018 53765 K-Gas, Inc. 07-64-64260 Propane lines, fittings 80.44

06/29/2018 53766 O'Reilly Auto Parts 07-63-63260 Copper sealants, marine weld sealants 37.38

06/29/2018 53767 Oroville Cable & Equipment Co. 07-63-63270 Hydraulic hoses, tap kit 96.55

06/29/2018 53768 Riebes Auto Parts 07-63-63260 Permatex gasket sealant 27.86

06/29/2018 53769 Talley Communications 07-68-68100 Sunset Hill radio upgrade materials 1,065.65

06/29/2018 53770 Trimark Associates, Inc. 07-00-11204/2018-0939Meter certifications, KPH 3,588.00

06/29/2018 53771 Advanced Document Concepts 01-50-50380 Apr 2018 copier/printer maintenance 254.60

06/29/2018 53772 AT&T 01-53-53251 MRTP internet connection 6/14/18-7/13/18 60.83

06/29/2018 53773 Better Deal Exchange 01-53-53260 Brass plugs, elbows, valves, hammer hardware 216.17

06/29/2018 53774 C.O.M.P. 01-52-52226 DOT certification 125.00

06/29/2018 53775 Consolidated Electrical Distributors, Inc. 01-56-56100 Ballasts, light bulbs 314.67

06/29/2018 53776 ERIKS North America, Inc. 01-54-54295 Sponge seal gasket 90.59

06/29/2018 53777 Future Ford Fleet Center 01-00-22300 AC compressor 396.63

06/29/2018 53778 Grating Pacific, Inc. 01-53-53260 Aluminum grating and stair tread material 4,623.55

06/29/2018 53779 HDR Engineering, Inc. 07-67-67201 Relicensing management plan development 1,225.82

06/29/2018 53780 InfoSend, Inc. 01-55-55114 May 2018 statement billing 4,023.09

06/29/2018 53781 Nelson's Footwear 01-56-56102 Employee work boots 198.52

06/29/2018 53782 Normac Inc. 01-00-22300 Backflows and backflow boxes 2,814.77

06/29/2018 53783 North Yuba Water District 07-69-69991 2017 JFOF net revenue, 50% distribution 1,393,737.00

06/29/2018 53784 Oroville Ford 01-56-56150 AC compressor clutch 279.97

06/29/2018 53785 Oroville, City of 01-00-22907 May 2018 city utility tax 1,334.90

06/29/2018 53786 Petty Cash Reimbursement 01-50-50255 Safety bucks 30.32

06/29/2018 53787 Thatcher Company 01-53-53102 MRTP supplies 2,094.72
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South Feather Water and Power Agency

Checks Paid, June, 2018

Date Check # Vendor Name Account Description Amount

Total June, 2018 checks 2,459,902.30
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SOUTH FEATHER WATER AND POWER AGENCY

JUNE, 2018

PAYROLL STATE & FED TAXES 164,002.34$           
PAYROLL NET 314,618.59$           

TOTAL JUNE, 2018 478,620.93$           

CREDIT CARD DETAIL

JUNE 2018 PAYMENTS

Check # Date Description Amount

53705 6/22/2018 Bank of America

Campground faucet 111.97$                 

ASDSA membership 55.00$                   

Astro epoxy 197.05$                 

364.02$                 

53745 6/22/2018 U.S. Bank

Utility encroachment 107.61$                 

MRTP pump oil 286.68$                 

MRTP pump grease 187.05$                 

581.34$                 

PAYROLL
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SOUTH FEATHER WATER AND POWER AGENCY

Name or Company

Date Check # or Person Account Description Amount

06/15/2018 68074 AECOM USA, Inc. 06-00-11204/2010-0828 Engineering services, 4/14/18-5/11/18 107,154.38

06/15/2018 68075 Granite Construction 06-00-11204/2010-0828 Apr 2018 construction services 569,305.55

06/15/2018 68076 P G & E - Sacramento 06-00-11204/2010-0828 Batch plant electric service 5/8/18-6/6/18 1,264.87

Total June, 2018 Power Division Checks 677,724.80$            

POWER DIVISION
Checks Paid, June, 2018
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 SOUTH FEATHER WATER & POWER AGENCY 
  

 
  

 
 
 
 

  
TO:              Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Steve Wong, Finance Division Manager 
 
DATE: July 18, 2018 
 
RE: General Information (regarding matters not scheduled on the agenda) 
 7/24/18 Board of Directors Meeting 
 
South Feather Relicensing Consulting Services 
No invoices have been submitted this month by HDR for relicensing consulting services.  Total payments to HDR for 
relicensing services rendered through December 30, 2017 amount to $5,215,724.  The budget balance remaining under 
Task Order 001, Management Plan Development, is $3,286. 
 
2017 Winter Storm Payments 
Seventeen individual checks totaling $404,000.00 have been received from FEMA, through the State of California Office 
of Emergency Services (CalOES), for Agency expenses caused by the 2017 winter storms.  The checks reimbursed 
Agency costs for six small projects and one large project.  One small project and five large projects continue to be in 
process.  The payments are consistent with the formula for reimbursement of approved costs, 75% Federal monies, 
18.75% State monies plus 10% of the State portion of the costs for administration.  One of the small projects, repair of the 
Forbestown Power Passive Repeater, received notification that the financial reconciliation has been completed and that 
an audit of the expenditures is not warranted at this time.    
 
Also, documentation continues to be provided to ACWA/JPIA for the restoration of Kelly Ridge Powerhouse and is being 
reviewed and processed.  An initial $800,000 has already been paid to the Agency for repair costs and loss of generation. 
   
Five Star Bank 
Five Star Bank President and CEO James Beckwith visited the Agency and reported on the bank’s improved procedures 
for maintaining and documenting the collateral requirements for the Agency’s deposits of over $1,053,000.  
 
FERC 
A $172,983.73 invoice from the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) for annual charges for administration has 
been received and will be paid on or before August 31, 2018.  The invoice amount is based on estimated KWH generation.  
This payment will be in addition to the $52,930.97 charge for US Land fees, a total of $225,914.70 paid to FERC in 2018.   
 
Springbrook 
An upgrade to the Agency’s utility billing and accounting system is scheduled for Friday, July 27 through Monday, July 30.  
The utility billing and financial systems will not be available to the public or the staff during the upgrade.  This time was set 
aside as the end of the month is typically the period when the fewest transactions and inquiries take place.  Among other 
things, the upgrade will transition the Agency’s database to the current industry standard.       
 
CalPERS Annual Unfunded Accrued Liability Payment 
The Agency has been invoiced by CalPERS for its annual payment towards its unfunded accrued liability.  The required 
contribution for this year is $226,551.  In 2017, the amount was $166,144.   



South Feather Water and Power Agency

Joint Facilities Operating Fund Financial Report

July 24, 2018 Board Meeting

2018

2015 2016 2017 2018 ACTUAL

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGET THRU 6/30/18

REVENUE:
41150 Sale of Electricity 11,278,062 15,492,754 16,287,654 15,750,000 3,928,654

41502 Water Sales 7,431,740 335,678 0 0 0

42305 Current Service Charges 10,302 6,699 12,748 12,750 12,748

42331 Concession Income 20,602 30,625 30,293 0 0

49250 Interest Income 71,807 156,622 165,327 100,000 0

49321 State of CA, DWR 0 0 0 0 0

49405 Insurance Reimbursement 0 0 822,581 1,900,000 74,144

49521 JFOF FEMA 0 0 0 1,500,000 404,000

49929 Miscellaneous Income 10,894 2,621 509 1,000 425,000

Total Revenue 18,823,407 16,024,999 17,319,112 19,263,750 4,844,546

EXPENSES:
JFOF Administration, 7-60

Salaries & Benefits 739,378 937,257 817,472 927,235 409,327

Supplies 7,302 5,981 5,549 6,850 809

Services 150,812 147,200 155,041 206,500 253,078

Utilities 49,807 61,057 56,133 73,100 31,790

Training/Dues 33,004 42,493 21,979 26,150 255

JFOF Administration, 7-60 980,303 1,193,988 1,056,174 1,239,835 695,259

Risk Management, 7-62

Salaries & Benefits 75,130 70,438 92,334 95,803 25,067

Supplies 13,401 19,754 6,102 18,550 4,386

Services 169,039 160,513 161,631 198,500 52,459

Training/Dues 22,700 3,457 3,738 19,250 198

JFOF Risk Management, 7-62 280,270 254,162 263,805 332,103 82,110

Power Plant Operations, 7-63

Salaries & Benefits 2,255,969 2,148,483 2,836,781 2,715,657 1,330,522

Supplies 105,142 77,386 148,375 132,600 53,888

Services 167,101 182,079 562,954 231,000 162,447

Utilities 55,908 44,571 92,168 81,400 27,938

Training/Dues 6,118 14,905 23,946 26,000 1,180

JFOF Power Plant Operations, 7-63 2,590,238 2,467,424 3,664,224 3,186,657 1,575,975

Water Collection, 7-64

Salaries & Benefits 353,895 417,930 518,855 484,337 167,212

Supplies 39,186 75,282 47,288 55,350 22,203

Services 208,582 258,868 1,965,372 427,000 325,781

Utilities 4,332 3,657 3,840 4,000 2,114

Fuel, Oil, Auto 0 0 8,896 0 58

Training/Dues 0 1,845 140 1,450 0

JFOF Water Collection, 7-64 605,995 757,582 2,544,391 972,137 517,368

Campgrounds, 7-65

Salaries & Benefits 57,445 60,377 58,274 70,636 25,461

Supplies 5,594 8,963 7,381 11,600 464

Services 4,250 7,250 17,795 100,500 43,209

Utilities 6,192 6,337 7,202 6,000 3,109

Fuel, Oil, Auto 0 696 0 1,000 0

Training/Dues 8,158 720 0 1,750 0

JFOF Campgrounds, 7-65 81,639 84,343 90,652 191,486 72,243
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South Feather Water and Power Agency

Joint Facilities Operating Fund Financial Report

July 24, 2018 Board Meeting

2018

2015 2016 2017 2018 ACTUAL

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGET THRU 6/30/18

EXPENSES (CON'T):
JFOF Plant & Shop, 7-66

Salaries & Benefits 344,539 324,001 424,775 416,761 122,692

Supplies 14,473 18,132 37,434 43,200 4,175

Services 27,050 18,571 74,336 25,200 5,454

Utilities 60,802 68,718 76,388 72,000 39,322

Fuel, Oil, Auto 86,550 69,924 92,543 93,000 39,363

Training/Dues 0 0 0 0 0

JFOF Plant & Shop, 7-66 533,414 499,346 705,476 650,161 211,006

Regulatory Compliance, 7-67

Salaries & Benefits 173,000 168,251 101,233 135,464 22,076

Supplies 901 915 171 1,650 0

Services 328,790 301,920 456,825 675,000 136,634

Utilities 0 0 0 0 0

Training/Dues 3,729 6,102 2,947 14,600 3,953

JFOF Regulatory Compliance, 7-67 506,420 477,188 561,176 826,714 162,663

Communications & IT, 7-68

Salaries & Benefits 222,288 217,926 201,415 237,947 65,319

Supplies 18,725 84,065 31,160 84,750 26,139

Services 21,492 24,711 34,412 90,250 21,904

Utilities 1,647 801 1,082 1,000 178

Training/Dues 5,785 1,037 2,491 11,000 0

JFOF Communications & IT, 7-68 269,937 328,540 270,560 424,947 113,540

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 5,567,946 5,808,411 8,892,653 7,824,040 3,348,054

SUB-TOTAL, REVENUES OVER OPER EXP 13,255,461 10,216,588 8,426,459 11,439,710 1,496,492

Other Non-Operating Expenses:

North Yuba Water District (709,000) (709,000) (709,000) (709,000) (354,500)

Interest Expense (90,602) (76,200) (57,643) (25,000) 0

Pension Expense 0 (36,862) (298,067) 0 0

Captial Outlay
2014-0893 KPH TSV reinstallation 66,577 0 8,202

2015-0899 Ponderosa Dam low level valve operators 0 350,000 1,560

2015-0903 Forbestown HQ Radio upgrade 0 0 0

2016-0908 Update Preventative Maintenance server 1,103 0 0

2016-0909 Virtualization & offsite backup 18,904 0 0

2016-0910 SCADA replacement 0 0 0

2016-0915 Buoy Tender Barge 30,089 0 0

2016-0815 SFPP Vehicle Replacements, replace 2003 T-98 30,828 0 0

2016-0917 Station 7 Standby Generator 18,876 0 0

2016-0918 KPH Upper and Lower Seal Rings 0 0 0

2016-0815 SFPP Vehicle Replacements, replace 2007 T-108 34,501 0 0

2017-0920 JFOF PP-FPH-#2 Cooling Water Pump & Motor 10,721 0 0

2017-0921 JFOF PP-WPH-#1 Cooling Water Pump & Motor 0 18,000 0

2017-0922 JFOF PP-FPH PRV Rebuild for 2018 0 50,000 0

2017-0923 JFOF PP-Coating of Little Grass Valley Tainter Gate Mechanisms 70,267 0 0

2017-0924 JFOF PP-KPH PRV Rebuild 0 0 0

2017-0926 JFOF PP-FPH Wicket Rebuild for 2018 0 130,000 0

2015-64d / CapitalBangor Canal pipe and outlet works sealing project 0 0 0

2017-0927  JFOF WC-SCD-A/C unit & auxiliary equipment 3,424 0 0

2017-64g JFOF WC-Station 4 Bridge Rating 0 0 0

2017-0929 JFOF WC-SCD-30KW Propane Generator 0 28,000 0

2017-0930 JFOF CM-Strawberry Campground Picnic Tables and Fire Rings - Phase 1 of 3 14,420 0 0

2017-67g JFOF RC-700G Protection Relay for FPH 0 0 0
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South Feather Water and Power Agency

Joint Facilities Operating Fund Financial Report

July 24, 2018 Board Meeting

2018

2015 2016 2017 2018 ACTUAL

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGET THRU 6/30/18

Capital Outlay (con't)

2017-0935 JFOF CO-Radio Engineering and Propogation Study 0 50,000 0

2017-0936 JFOF CO-Mobile Repeaters 4,701 0 0

2017-0171 JFOF CO-Firewall 3,081 0 0

2017-0174 JFOF CO-Sharepoint 4,800 0 0

2017-68h JFOF CO-Backup LAN Connection 0 0 0
2017-0937 LCD Fixed Cone Valve 12,005 220,000 12,269
2017-0938 JFOF WC-Oversnow vehicle 39,903 0 0
2018-0939 JFOF PP-KPH Stator Rewind 1,850,000 1,134,021
2018-0940 JFOF PP-KPH oil bearing tub level devices 15,000 745
2018-0941 JFOF CM-LGV campground, dumpsters, trash bins, food lockers 150,000 151,961
2018-0942 JFOF WC-Station 7 Bridge design, repair & rating 250,000 0

2018-0943 JFOF PP-FPH Slope stabilization and penstock repair 0 61

2018-63b JFOF PP-KPH Bathroom 50,000 0
2018-63k JFOF PP-40kw portable generator 0 0
2018-63g JFOF PP-KPH #1 sump pump and motor 10,000 0
2018-63l JFOF PP-FPH security camera front gate 0 0
2018-63m JFOF PP-KPH security camera front gate 0 0
2018-63h JFOF PP-WPH standby generator built-in receptacle 7,500 0
2018-63i JFOF PP-KPH nitrogen cyl lift truck 1,600 0
2018-64g JFOF WC-10KW propange generator ATS and installation, MRC & PD 35,000 0
2018-66a JFOF JS-Work truck and utility body, replace T-119 70,000 0
2018-66b JFOF JS-Woodchipper, gas powered 20,000 0
2018-67f JFOF RC-Load bank for compliance testing of station batteries, standby generators 10,000 0

Total Capital Outlay (716,977) (1,030,086) (364,200) (3,315,100) (1,308,819)

Transfers:

General Fund-Minimum Payment (709,000) (709,000) (709,000) (709,000) (354,500)

General Fund-Relicensing (1,143,261) (1,143,261) 0 0 0

General Fund-Overhead (544,685) (559,350) (549,067) (575,000) 0

Retiree Benefit Trust 0 0 0 (232,000) 0

Net Non-operating, Capital Outlay

            and Transfers (3,913,525) (4,263,759) (2,686,977) (5,565,100) (2,017,819)

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENSES 9,341,936 5,952,829 5,739,482 5,874,610 (521,327)

Beginning Balance 21,084,654 28,881,590 26,248,874 22,847,512 23,678,928

NYWD-Additional Payment 0 0 (2,214,644) (2,000,000) (1,393,737)

General Fund-Additional Payment 0 0 (2,214,644) (2,000,000) (1,393,737)

Loan Payable to PG&E (1,125,000) (8,585,545) (3,880,140) (7,000,000) 0

Water Transfer Accomodation Fee to PG&E(420,000) 0 0 0 0

Ending Balance 28,881,590 26,248,874 23,678,928 17,722,122 20,370,127

NOTE:  Per NYWD agreement, 15% working capital reserve of $1,200,000, and $18,000,000 

contingency reserve is required.  Repayment to PG&E for loan for dam crest 

modification projects estimated to be $28,000,000 ($21,078,308 paid thru 12/31/2017).
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South Feahter Water and Power Agency

General Fund Financial Report

July 24, 2018 Board Meeting

2018

2015 2016 2017 2018 ACTUAL

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGET THRU 6/30/18

REVENUE:

Water Sales Rev

41100 Domestic Water 2,172,247 2,051,320 2,116,336 2,100,000 927,867

41400 Irrigation Water 242,306 227,744 228,098 225,000 79,024

41420 Water Sales, NYWD to Yuba City 0 0 173,468 0 0

Sub-Total Water Sales Rev 2,414,553 2,279,064 2,517,902 2,325,000 1,006,891

Power Revenue

41305 Sly Cr Pwr Generation 980,584 1,652,335 1,969,191 1,700,000 641,697

41306 Surplus Wtr 104,982 108,232 107,593 105,000 13,980

Sub-Total Power Rev 1,085,566 1,760,567 2,076,784 1,805,000 655,677

Water Serv Chgs

42301 Sundry Billing (Job Orders) 41,429 32,384 21,303 10,000 13,210

   Other Water Serv Charges 55,191 60,516 60,205 60,000 26,114

Sub-Total Water Serv Chgs 96,620 92,900 81,508 70,000 39,324

Non-Oper Revenue

49250 Interest Earnings 4,809 (15,420) 46,690 10,000 70,895

49311 Property Taxes 517,354 531,695 568,094 540,000 250,262

49405 ACWA/JPIA RPA 34,400 476 26,205 0 41,973

49625 Back Flow Installation 19,270 13,020 14,859 15,000 7,050

49630 Back Flow Inspection 106,460 111,858 115,842 112,000 59,330

  Other Non-Oper Rev 16,702 1,658 32,409 2,000 8,288

Sub-Total Non-Oper Rev 698,995 643,287 804,099 679,000 437,798

TOTAL GENERAL FUND REVENUE 4,295,734 4,775,818 5,480,293 4,879,000 2,139,690

EXPENSES:

General Administration, 1-50

Salaries & Benefits 1,087,843 1,040,417 886,436 994,635 343,122

Supplies 35,493 52,588 45,278 22,500 6,771

Services 267,513 245,527 170,203 196,150 43,331

Utilities 75,941 80,304 83,878 97,000 31,637

Fuel, Oil, Auto 0 64 0 0 0

Training/Dues 33,361 43,304 24,812 49,500 34,493

General Admin, 1-50 1,500,151 1,462,204 1,210,607 1,359,785 459,354

Water Source, 1-51

Source of Supply 13,213 13,582 13,852 13,900 15,891

Water Source, 1-51 13,213 13,582 13,852 13,900 15,891

Risk Management, 1-52

Salaries & Benefits 115,227 109,503 114,283 122,440 81,764

Supplies 13,757 14,727 12,005 17,000 2,195

Services 136,889 129,779 125,319 140,000 21,571

Training/Dues 11,979 1,979 954 7,500 260

Risk Management, 1-52 277,852 255,988 252,561 286,940 105,790

GF Page 1 of 3



South Feahter Water and Power Agency

General Fund Financial Report

July 24, 2018 Board Meeting

2018

2015 2016 2017 2018 ACTUAL

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGET THRU 6/30/18
OPERATING EXPENSES (Con't)

Water Treatment, 1-53

Salaries & Benefits 925,930 938,851 1,088,526 1,094,407 524,580

Supplies 82,114 90,194 78,481 107,600 54,302

Services 77,319 54,458 46,291 47,000 38,965

Utilities 47,158 67,187 84,515 80,000 41,775

Fuel, Oil, Auto 0 0 262 500 0

Training/Dues 6,751 6,685 449 15,500 0

Water Treatment, 1-53 1,139,272 1,157,375 1,298,524 1,345,007 659,622

Transmission & Distribution, 1-54

Salaries & Benefits 1,720,100 1,734,715 1,996,673 2,086,330 785,574

Supplies 90,284 88,213 95,578 175,000 62,140

Services 7,234 22,592 3,290 9,500 834

Utilities 35,593 43,223 43,546 52,500 14,181

Fuel, Oil, Auto 92 0 0 0 0

Training/Dues 1,736 2,978 1,847 3,000 1,240

Transmission & Distribution, 1-54 1,855,039 1,891,721 2,140,934 2,326,330 863,969

Customer Accounts, 1-55

Salaries & Benefits 582,692 511,636 600,840 631,423 260,566

Supplies 96,735 79,390 150,661 180,000 37,404

Services 23,604 12,743 21,065 40,000 12,222

Training/Dues 0 0 375 500 0

Customer Accounts, 1-55 703,031 603,769 772,941 851,923 310,192

General Plant & Shop, 1-56

Salaries & Benefits 390,217 378,310 392,029 406,226 194,571

Supplies 14,281 44,044 19,993 55,500 26,142

Services 6,286 1,255 7,093 6,500 3,232

Utilities 31,528 22,772 35,335 30,000 10,206

Fuel, Oil, Auto 144,294 91,153 115,657 128,750 47,591

Training/Dues 0 0 0 0 0

General Plant & Shop, 1-56 586,606 537,534 570,107 626,976 281,742

Sundry & Expense Credits, 1-57

Salaries & Benefits 6,249 9,285 8,208 5,000 9,510

Supplies 17,208 17,413 11,301 5,000 5,348

Services 7,228 181 0 0 0

Sundry, 1-57 30,685 26,879 19,509 10,000 14,858

Information Technology, 1-58

Salaries & Benefits 255,545 258,699 294,607 325,535 130,081

Supplies 15,922 19,739 15,357 21,500 9,969

Services 33,677 42,454 50,823 75,000 45,485

Utilities 4,023 2,900 3,419 4,000 1,158

Training/Dues 9,512 5,994 4,798 9,300 33

Information Systems, 1-58 318,679 329,786 369,004 435,335 186,726

Sly Creek Power Plant, 1-61

Salaries & Benefits 412,726 254,511 207,829 372,400 97,658

Supplies 12,340 15,881 16,700 25,400 7,413

Services 37,565 33,186 29,609 39,500 20,680

Utilities 26,629 12,878 15,824 16,400 4,999

Training/Dues 0 0 0 0 0

Sly Creek Power Plant, 1-61 489,260 316,456 269,962 453,700 130,750

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 6,913,788 6,595,294 6,918,001 7,709,896 3,028,894
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South Feahter Water and Power Agency

General Fund Financial Report

July 24, 2018 Board Meeting

2018

2015 2016 2017 2018 ACTUAL

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGET THRU 6/30/18

SUB-TOTAL, REVENUES OVER OPER EXP (2,618,054) (1,819,476) (1,437,708) (2,830,896) (889,204)

Other Non-Operating Expenses

Supplies & Servces 0 0 1,000 1,000 0

Interest 67,679 48,372 857,821 864,925 218,369

Principal 309,904 317,914 250,000 570,000 570,000

Pension Expense 0 41,567 336,118 0 0

CAPITAL OUTLAY:

2012-0126 Shop HVAC 0 20,000 0

2014-0138 GP-Shop drill press 0 7,500 0

2015-0144 Lwr Forbestown Ditch Improvement 0 0 0

2016-0904 SPH penstock corrosion mitigation 0 200,000 0

2016-0905 SPH oil vapor recovery system 0 0 0

2017-0160 WT-Stand alone switch and backup plant control 0 5,500 0

2017-0163 WT-Hart 475 field communicator 0 0 0

2017-0164 TD-Replace Quad w/ trailer, Suzuki 8,340 0 0

2017-0056 TD-Vehicle replacement, 1 ton flat bed, 63,782 0 0

2017-0166 CA-Folder/Stuffer 3,963 0 0

2017-0056 TD-Vehicle replacement, Meter reader PU, 29,831 0 0

2017-0167 GP-Pipe locators 9,999 0 0

2017-0168 GP-Standby generator replacement 0 0 0

2017-0169 GP-Admin Offices parking lot paving and striping 0 0 0

2017-0170 Update Switches 10,670 0 0

2017-0171 Firewall 3,081 0 0

2017-0172 Two New VMWare Servers 17,377 0 1,403

2017-0174 Sharepoint 4,800 0 0

2017-0175 MRTP Offsite Storage 0 0 0

2017-0176 TD-Railroad/North Villa to Williams Palermo 18,506 0 0

2017-0177 Bobcat Trailer 9,036 0 0

2017-0178 Drobish Road, 6" steel 18,137 0 0

2017-58d Document Management software 0 0 7,776

2018-53e MRTP entry road paving 50,000 0

2018-0056 MRTP vehicle replacement, forklift, E-926 15,000 11,798

2018-54a TD-Westwood Way pipeline replacement 95,000 0

2018-54b TD-Rockridge and Coventry Dr pipeline replacement 130,000 0

2018-54c TD-MRTP high service 24" extension 15,000 0

2018-56h IT-Camera security system 35,000 0

Total Capital Outlay 260,061 151,315 197,522 573,000 20,977

Transfers:

SFPP Jt Facil Oper Fd-Minimum Payment 709,000 709,000 709,000 709,000 354,500

SFPP Jt Facil Oper Fd-Additional Payment 0 0 2,214,644 2,000,000 1,393,737

SFPP Jt Facil Oper Fd-Relicensing 1,143,261 1,143,261 0 0 0

SFPP Jt Facil Oper Fd-Overhead 544,685 559,350 549,067 575,000 0

Retiree Benefit Trust Fund 0 0 0 (370,000) 0

Net Non-operating, Capital Outlay and Transfers 1,759,302 1,852,443 1,830,250 905,075 938,891

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENSES (858,752) 32,967 392,542 (1,925,821) 49,687

Beginning Balance 1,612,854 754,102 787,069 673,759 1,179,611

Ending Balance 754,102 787,069 1,179,611 (1,252,062) 1,229,298
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South Feather Water & Power Agency

Irrigation Water Accounting

For The Period Of 1/1/2018 - 6/30/2018

ACCT CODE DESCRIPTION REVENUE EXPENSES

2018-0504 Palermo Canal 30,209$               142,425$             

2018-0505 Bangor Canal 36,619$               114,170$             

2018-0506 Forbestown Canal 3,484$                 103,437$             

2018-0507 Community Line 8,712$                 13,871$               

Totals 79,024$               373,903$             

South Feather Water & Power Agency

System Capacity Fund Financial Report

July 24, 2018 Board Meeting

2018

2015 2016 2017 2017 ACTUAL

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGET THRU 6/30/18

REVENUE:
42341 System Capacity Charges 31,051 63,925 30,429 35,000 13,089

49250 Interest Income 7,860 17,117 1,162 5,000 0

Total Revenue 38,911 81,042 31,591 40,000 13,089

CAPITAL OUTLAY:
2013-0135 MRTP Expansion/Improvement 360,925 7,008,353 16,434,927 0 695,010

2013-0136 MRTP Control System 5,064 0 0 0 0

Total Expenses 365,989 7,008,353 16,434,927 0 695,010

TRANSFERS

2016 Certificates of Participation 0 5,954,000 16,322,570 0 1,959,185

Net Revenue over Expenses (327,078) (973,311) (80,766) 40,000 1,277,264

Beginning Balance 1,727,351 1,400,273 426,962 1,400,273 346,196

Ending Balance 1,400,273 426,962 346,196 1,440,273 1,623,460

Irrig Page 1 of 1



SOUTH FEATHER WATER AND POWER AGENCY

SCHEDULE OF CASH AND INVESTMENTS

June 30, 2018 

General Fund Cash and Savings Account 530,655$        

Power Division/PGE Account 559,833

LAIF 14,252,362

CalTrust 1,308,323

Five Star Bank 1,053,693

Fixed Income portfolio Rate Purch Date Purch Price Face Value Maturity Mkt Value Est Ann Income

Cash 22,358 -$                     

American Express Federal Savings CD 1.650% 7/8/2015 240,000 240,000 7/9/2018 239,974 3,960

American Express Centurion Bank CD 2.000% 7/28/2014 98,614 97,000 8/1/2018 97,009 1,940

Discover Bank CD 1.450% 8/2/2017 150,008 150,000 8/9/2018 149,919 2,175

Sallie Mae Bank CD 1.800% 9/10/2014 240,000 240,000 9/10/2018 239,921 4,320

Key Bank CD 1.350% 10/29/2015 240,000 240,000 10/29/2018 239,726 3,240

Merrick Bank CD 1.100% 11/16/2016 245,008 245,000 11/19/2018 244,091 2,695

BMW Bank North America CD 1.400% 12/23/2016 245,000 245,000 12/26/2018 244,103 3,430

Federal Farm Credit Bonds 1.270% 1/28/2016 250,000 250,000 1/28/2019 248,427 3,175

Goldman Sachs CD 1.650% 2/11/2015 150,000 150,000 2/11/2019 149,498 2,475

FNMA 1.250% 2/23/2017 99,901 100,000 2/26/2019 99,295 1,250

Community Bank of Texas CD 1.100% 3/16/2016 235,008 235,000 3/18/2019 233,061 2,585

Centrue Bank CD 1.100% 4/29/2016 240,008 240,000 4/29/2019 237,593 2,640

Peoples United Bank CD 1.600% 5/10/2017 240,000 240,000 5/10/2019 238,507 3,840

Wells Fargo Bank CD 1.350% 6/1/2016 245,000 245,000 6/17/2019 242,224 3,308

FNMA 1.125% 7/26/2016 247,000 247,000 7/26/2019 243,614 2,779

FNMA 1.100% 8/23/2016 250,000 250,221 8/23/2019 246,242 2,752

Everbank CD 1.250% 9/16/2016 228,000 228,000 9/16/2019 224,662 2,850

RFCSP 1.330% 11/15/2016 104,873 109,000 10/15/2019 105,509 1,450

Investors Bank CD 1.250% 11/28/2016 245,008 245,000 11/29/2019 240,529 3,063

Berkshire Bank CD 1.800% 12/15/2017 50,000 50,000 12/16/2019 49,438 900

First Merchants Bank CD 1.600% 12/30/2016 200,000 200,000 12/30/2019 197,060 3,200

First Bank PR Santurce CD 1.700% 1/13/2017 245,000 245,000 1/13/2020 241,621 4,165

Morton Community Bank CD 1.600% 4/13/2017 245,008 245,000 3/13/2020 240,573 3,920

Federal Farm Credit Bonds 1.580% 4/27/2017 250,292 250,000 4/27/2020 245,318 3,950

Synchrony Bank CD 1.900% 5/26/2017 245,000 245,000 5/26/2020 241,036 4,655

Stearns Bank CD 1.800% 6/23/2017 245,000 245,000 6/23/2020 240,254 4,410

Jacksonville Bank CD 1.800% 7/19/2017 245,008 245,000 7/15/2020 240,053 4,410

Luana Savings Bank CD 1.700% 8/11/2017 245,008 245,000 8/11/2020 239,321 4,165

Texas Exchange Bank CD 1.900% 8/31/2017 245,008 245,000 8/31/2020 240,137 4,655

Capital One Bank CD 1.950% 9/27/2017 245,000 245,000 9/28/2020 240,171 4,778

Berkshire Bank CD 1.850% 11/24/2017 235,000 235,008 11/24/2020 229,355 4,348

Quaint Oak Bank CD 2.050% 12/29/2017 245,000 245,000 12/29/2020 239,948 5,023

East Boston Savings Bank CD 2.250% 1/30/2018 245,000 245,000 1/29/2021 240,913 5,513

Ally Bank CD 2.500% 2/1/2018 245,000 245,008 2/1/2021 242,425 6,125

Connectone Bank CD 2.550% 3/13/2018 245,000 245,008 3/15/2021 242,479 6,248

Southwest National Bank CD 2.600% 4/17/2018 245,000 245,008 4/19/2021 242,606 6,370

Mid-America Bank CD 2.700% 5/11/2018 245,000 245,008 5/11/2021 243,153 6,615

Comenity Capital Bank CD 2.950% 5/31/2018 228,000 228,000 6/1/2021 227,774 6,726

Morgan Stanley Bank CD 2.950% 6/14/2018 245,000 245,000 6/14/2021 244,706 7,228

Total Fixed Income Portfolio 8,554,603 151,328$        

1.77%

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS AT 6/30/2018 26,259,469$   

I certify that all investment actions have been made in full compliance with Policy #470- Investments, and that South Feather Water and Power

Agency will meet its expenditure obligations for the next six months.

Submitted by: Steve Wong, Finance Division Manager 7/18/18
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South Feather Water and Power Agency

Power Sold By Month
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South Feather Water and Power Agency

Cumulative Power Purchases

All Powerhouses
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 SOUTH FEATHER WATER & POWER AGENCY 
  

 
  

  
 
 
 

  
  
TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Dan Leon, Power Division Manager 
 
DATE: July 18, 2018 
 
RE: General Information (regarding matters not scheduled on agenda) 
 July 24, 2018 Board of Directors Meeting 
 
 
Operations 
 
The June 2018 Power Division Summary Report, Reservoir Storage Report, and Precipitation Report are 
attached.  The total precipitation measured this season at Sly Creek PH vicinity on July 18 is 0 inches.  The 
2012-2017 average rainfall through May for this location is 0 inches. Total precipitation for the 2017-18 
season was 66.6 inches.  The new precipitation season began on July 1, 2018. 
 
Forbestown Diversion Reservoir is spilling.  The South Fork tunnel is open and the Slate Creek tunnel is 
closed. 
 
Powerhouse availability and performance data for June 2018 summarized in the table below: 
 

Powerhouse Capacity 
(MW) 

Available for 
Generation 

(Hrs) 

Generation 
Dispatched at 

Full Output (Hrs) 

Additional Gen. not 
Dispatched at 

Full Output (Hrs) 

Generation 
Dispatched at 

Part. Output (Hrs) 
Woodleaf 60.0 720  25.0 695 118 

Forbestown 37.5 609 48.0 561 89 
Kelly Ridge 11.0 0 0 0 0 
Sly Creek 13.0 720 52.0 668 41 

  Calendar total hours in June 2018 is 720 Hrs. 
 
Maintenance 
 
Woodleaf Powerhouse 
 

• Powerhouse taken offline due to 115-kV transmission line outage, to clear rockfall at Forbestown 
Powerhouse and perform repairs.  Outage planned later in year for NERC compliance testing. 



Forbestown Powerhouse 
 

Rock Fall Incident and Restoration to Operation 
 

• Evening of June 25, a large rock (about 7 feet in diameter) fell from hillside about 100 feet up the 
slope impacting the lower portion (83-inch diameter) of penstock.  The rock damaged the last 
downstream Dresser coupling on the penstock producing a slow leak of about one drip per 45 
seconds at the coupling.   

• The rock also hit two concrete pedestals on the edge of the electrical switchyard.  These pedestals 
provide mounting for a wave trap device that is non-functional (this will be removed during the 
outage), and the line-side potential transformer (CCVT) that is used for generator synchronization, 
line protection, and metering. 

• June 26 at 0900, Forbestown PH was taken offline.  Initial outage notifications were communicated 
to PG&E, and the PH was taken out of the Operations schedule. 

• June 26 at 1400, SFWPA met with Syblon Reid Construction to assess site condition and discuss 
scope of services to: scale back remaining loose rock material on slope; install metal screening on 
slope to contain future possible rock falls; and repair damaged penstock pipe and coupling. 

• Syblon Reid has completed: 
o Scaling the hillside to remove additional loose rock and debris,  
o Removal of large rock from penstock area, 
o Internal and external visual inspection of penstock and coupling. 

• Communication to FERC (required Incident Report) was delivered via email July 12.  The Agency 
also submitted a written interim operating plan to FERC.  The interim plan includes installation of 
real-time monitoring on the penstock and restoration of the powerhouse to operation, until 
permanent repairs can be completed during the next scheduled maintenance outage. 

• Agency plans to procure replacement coupling from Dresser, and install during February 2019 
planned outage. 

• The Agency is currently procuring a replacement CCVT, and it will be installed in the next few 
days. 

• The Agency intends to restore the powerhouse to operation on or before July 31. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Large Rock from Hillside Approx. 100’ Above          Contractors Scaling Hillside Slope  



Kelly Ridge Powerhouse 
 

Restoration to Operation 
 

• Final commissioning of mechanical and electrical systems completed on July 12.  Final assembly 
of equipment completed on July 18.  Powerhouse is available to return to commercial operation, 
pending completion of the following: 

• Agency awaiting receipt of formal notification from PG&E approving Agency to reconnect the 
generator to the PG&E transmission line.  Agency has sent PG&E several requests to reconnect 
since July 12. 

• Agency awaiting completion of commissioning of new revenue metering by Trimark and CAISO, 
with completion date to be determined. 

 
Replacement of Turbine Shutoff Valve 

 
• The Agency is releasing a Request for Proposal package to selected vendors for removal of the 

existing turbine shutoff valve (TSV) and installation of a new TSV.  The project scope defines a 
comprehensive turnkey system from one vendor that will assume complete project responsibility 
including design, engineering, construction, functionality, commissioning, and closeout.   

• The Agency will schedule the replacement project during the maintenance outage scheduled in 
October 2019. 

 
Sly Creek Powerhouse 
 

• Powerhouse taken offline due to 115-kV transmission line outage, to clear rockfall and perform 
repairs at Forbestown Powerhouse. 

 
Hydro Energy Delivery Strategy 
 

• Agency staff and GridSME (GSME) are arranging discussions with entities that provide control 
center facilities, energy bidding, and dispatching services. 

• Agency is also considering providing hydro energy to community choice aggregation entities, and 
selected corporate entities. 

 
Regulatory Compliance 
 
FERC 
 

• FERC Inspections were completed.  Staff working with the FERC on follow-up questions and 
preparing for anticipated comments.  

• Staff continues to meet with Jim Lynch of HDR to continue preparing for license implementation 
and all of the environmental and recreational plans that the Agency is required to complete within 
the first year of implementation.  Jim provides continuity and expertise with the Agency’s license 
application, and interpretation of new license requirements. 

• Staff started the process of preparing the Aquatic Monitoring Plan as part of preparation for license 
implementation.  The Aquatic Monitoring Plan will encompass several plan requirements, including 



fish monitoring, BMI monitoring, amphibian monitoring, minimum flows, ramping rates (intermediate 
and final), and riparian monitoring.  

• The intermediate ramping rates portion of the Aquatic Monitoring Plan meetings are complete. 
• Staff is working with the FERC as they have questions and comments on the Part 12D review. 
• Staff is currently updating the Dam Safety, Surveillance, and Monitoring Program and the 

Supporting Technical Information Documents updates for the project dams taking into account the 
comments from the Part 12D inspection. 

• Staff working on updated Security Plan per FERC recommendations. To be completed by August.   
• Awaiting comments back on Phase 1 of spillway assessments. 
• Staff starting to develop Phase 2 recommendations with McMillen Jacobs. 
• Staff will start planning for EAP and security trainings as well as EAP coordinator activities in the 

second half of the year. 
 
DWR 
 

• No New Update 
 
DSOD 
 

• DSOD dam safety inspections completed. 
• Awaiting comments back on Phase 1 of spillway assessments. 
• Staff starting to develop Phase 2 recommendations with McMillen Jacobs. 
• Staff working with DSOD on approval of the inundation maps for LGVD, SCD, LCD, MRD.  This is 

the first step in fulfilling the DSOD EAP directive for High Risk Dams.  After the inundation maps 
are approved, DSOD will next review the EAPs.  This is a new requirement following the Oroville 
Dam Spillway Incident. 

 
SWRCB 
 

• The SWRCB released a new date of September 30 for the final 401 Certificate to be issued on the 
project. This is the final approval needed for the new FERC license to begin implementation and 
the new project requirements becoming effective.   

• At a recent SWRCB meeting with the Agency, SWRCB staff read the newest version of the 401 
certification to the Agency and consultant for verbal commenting. 

 
NERC 
 

• No new update. 
 
WECC 

• CDMS Quarterly Reporting completed. 
 
Recreation 
 

• Staff coordinating with Forest Service on purchase and installation of campground animal resistant 
lockers and trashcans, picnic tables, fire rings, and dumpsters. 



• Power Division Staff received all bear lockers the week of July 9. Forest Service and Agency staff 
have staged all 157 lockers for install, and installation work will begin the week of the July 23.  The 
installation is a joint effort between Forest Service and the Agency. One hundred lockers were 
purchased by SFWPA and 57 additional purchased through a grant by Forest Service. 

• Butte County Inmate Crew continues to work, under the direction of Agency Maintenance crew on 
road brushing. 

 
Forest Service 
 

• The new operations relationship with the Forest Service has been a success. 
• Staff working to prepare for the August and September meetings, which will be attended by 

SWRCB, US Fish and Wildlife, CA Fish and Wildlife, and Forest Service.  Objectives of meetings 
are to complete the Recreation Plan (95% complete), Integrated Vegetation Management Plan 
(95% complete), and the Aquatic Monitoring Plan (50% complete). 

• Agency is seeking final approval from Forest Service for the Recreation Plan and Integrated 
Vegetation Management Plan. The Hazardous Substance Plan and Fire Prevention Response 
Plan were completed July 2017.  

• The above five plans encompass approximately fifteen of the twenty-seven Plans required in the 
new FERC License, and the objective of combining the Plans is to simplify the review and approval 
process. 

 
Facility Projects 
 
Ponderosa Dam Low Level Outlet 
 

• Agency has placed purchase order for one of two new replacement cylinders from Parker 
Hydraulics for approximately $10,750 each. 

 
Sly Creek Powerhouse Penstock and PSV Recoat Project 
 

• Condensation on Penstock is causing delay of project start until this fall. 
• Updated Request for Proposal was submitted to Contractors earlier this month. 

 
Lost Creek Dam Outlets 
 

• Low-Level Guard Valve has been installed (Cameron 18” Ball Valve). 
• Low-Level Control Valve is scheduled to arrive February 2019 (Adams 18” Fixed-Cone Valve). 
• Mid-Level pipe and valve components have been recoated (interior and exterior).  Installation of 

components scheduled for late July to early August. 
 
MRC Road Station 7 Bridge Replacement 
 

• Contractor (GSI) has completed concrete reinforcement of embankment below bridge.  Bridge 
Deck has been removed, and back-filled with concrete material intended for backfill of roadway 
bases. 

• Approximately 50 feet of hillside reinforcement (shotcrete with soil-anchor system) for erosion 



control upstream has been completed. 
• Agency has started bid process to complete remaining two MRC Road FEMA sites downstream. 

 
Personnel Updates 
 

• No new update. 
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2018

Release to SFFR Release to SFFR Release to Release to 
Maximum Elevation 5,045.50 Feet 3,530.00 Feet Below LGV Below Diversions Lost Creek Slate Creek
End of Month 
Conditions

January 5,019.87 Feet 3,467.88 Feet 42.40 cfs 7.45 cfs 6.33 cfs 15.50 cfs

February 5,020.81 Feet 3,481.55 Feet 6.25 cfs 7.66 cfs 6.33 cfs 46.90 cfs

March 5,033.78 Feet 3,509.30 Feet 9.09 cfs 8.32 cfs 10.80 cfs 509.00 cfs

April 5,042.79 Feet 3,515.91 Feet 11.30 cfs 12.00 cfs 8.37 cfs 169.00 cfs

May 5,043.89 Feet 3,520.56 Feet 10.40 cfs 11.30 cfs 8.37 cfs 54.50 cfs

June 5,043.38 Feet 3,515.47 Feet 11.30 cfs 11.30 cfs 8.37 cfs 20.00 cfs

July Feet Feet cfs cfs cfs cfs

August Feet Feet cfs cfs cfs cfs

September Feet Feet cfs cfs cfs cfs

October Feet Feet cfs cfs cfs cfs

November Feet Feet cfs cfs cfs cfs

December Feet Feet cfs cfs cfs cfs

Forbestown

January 798.36 MWH 8,286.04 MWH 5,851.80 MWH 0.00 MWH $805,511.43
February 112.72 MWH 1,654.51 MWH 1,529.42 MWH 0.00 MWH $387,926.26
March 2,175.75 MWH 10,519.91 MWH 10,627.77 MWH 0.00 MWH $986,402.21
April 4,188.63 MWH 21,777.05 MWH 16,792.94 MWH 0.00 MWH $1,394,675.80
May 150.88 MWH 1,747.80 MWH 2,006.72 MWH 0.00 MWH $423,973.59
June 1,006.35 MWH 5,891.90 MWH 3,428.81 MWH 0.00 MWH $595,681.07
July MWH MWH MWH MWH

August MWH MWH MWH MWH

September MWH MWH MWH MWH

October MWH MWH MWH MWH

November MWH MWH MWH MWH

December MWH MWH MWH MWH

8,432.69 MWH 49,877.21 MWH 40,237.46 MWH 0.00 MWH $4,594,170.36

Powerhouse Operations

Woodleaf

SOUTH FEATHER WATER AND POWER
SOUTH FEATHER POWER PROJECT

Reservoir  and Stream Operations

STREAM RELEASES

Energy Revenue

Sly Creek
RESERVOIR ELEVATIONS

Little Grass Valley

Sly Creek Kelly Ridge

Restriction from 5047.00 
feet for PMF

POWER DIVISION MANAGER'S REPORT                
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TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Matt Colwell, Water Division Manager 
 
DATE: July 18, 2018 
 
RE: General Information (regarding matters not scheduled on the agenda) 
 7/24/18 Board of Directors Meeting 
 
Water Treatment Operations  

The total MRTP treated water production for the 
month of June totaled 235 million gallons which is 104 
percent of average for the month (table at right).  The chart at 
the end of this report provides a historical perspective of 
cumulative water demand and production and shows the 
2018 January through June demand at 107% percent of 
recent average. 
 
Irrigation System  

The current irrigation operations are:    
Forbestown Ditch    SF 14   =    22.6 cfs  

                NYWD   =    11.2 cfs  
                      SFWPA @ WD 6   =    11.4 cfs   

Bangor Canal     SF 25  =    13 cfs  
Palermo Canal               SF30  =    15 cfs 

 
Solar Plant Production; 

MRTP power demand for June 2018 was greater than the solar generation by 65,015 KWH.  The 
graph below provides a historical perspective of energy demand (from PG&E) compared to water 
production. 

     Miners Ranch Production June 2018 

Total (MG) 235 (104% of Avg) 

High (MGD) 9.1 

Low (MGD) 7.0 

Avg. (MGD) 7.9 
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TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Rath Moseley, General Manager 
 
DATE: July 12, 2018 
 
RE: General Information (regarding matters not scheduled on the agenda) 
 7/24/18Board of Directors Meeting 
 
 
Butte County Hazardous Materials Inspection 
A three-day audit was conducted by Butte County Environmental Health July 16th, 17th and 19th at all 
physical locations within the Agency. Each location received an official CUPA (Certified Unified Program 
Agencies) Inspection report listing any violations or suggested corrections. There were a number of Minor 
Violations documented during the inspections primarily in two categories (Labeling and SPCC 
documentation). Most items require correction within 30 days and the SPCC updates have been approved 
for a 60-day submission. There were no documented penalties or immediate Health and Safety threats. 
 
ACWA  
A meeting was held on July 13th with the Association of California Water Agencies to discuss issues that 
may be of interest to SFWPA. 
Among the issues discussed were the following: 

A. Safe Drinking Water Without a Water Tax 
B. Bay-Delta Flows and Conveyance 
C. Storage 
D. Sound Energy Policies 
E. Long-Term Conservation 

Increased Agency involvement on these topics is critical to the overall strategies of SFWPA and Leadership 
will be actively engaged. 
 
North Yuba Water District 
A letter was received on July 20, 2018 from North Yuba Water District in regards to the public comment 
period of the April 24, 2018 SFWPA Board Meeting. The letter is attached and I will highlight the content of 
letter as you read it. 
 
Rules and Regulations  
Attached are proposed edits to the current Rules and Regulations for review and feedback at August’s 
Board Meeting. The primary focus area pertains to system capacity fees with the upgraded Water 
Treatment plant and proposed options for payment.  
 
 
 
 
 
 



Lost Creek Project Phase II  
A question on weight of each bridge deck was asked at June’s Board meeting and I guessed at 22 tons per 
deck which generated a fair amount of doubt to the accuracy of that estimate. 
Below are the technical weight specifications for each bridge deck showing a range of 22 – 26 tons not 
including railing. 

 
Work activities in July 

• Railing posts installed on Bridge Decks 
• Transport Bridge Decks 
• Placed Piers 2 and 3 Caps 
• Form Abutment 1 and Retaining Wall 2 Footing 
• Install Upper CARPI Liner 
• Scour Slab 
• Install Bridge Decks 

 
Figure 1:  Vertical Railing Posts Being Installed on Bridge Decks. 
 



 
Figure 2:  Preparing Bridge Deck for Transport to Project Site. 
 

 
Figure 3:  Bridge Deck Span #1 Being Installed. 



 
Figure 4:  Looking North at Bridge Deck Spans Being Set. 
 

 
Figure 5:  Entering Bridge from North Side. 
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RULES AND REGULATIONS ADOPTED 
February 13, 1990 

 
These Rules and Regulations have been adopted by the Board of Directors under the authority of the Water Code of the State 
of California, are part of the law governing this Agency, and may be amended as required for the operation of the Agency. 
 
All records of the Agency are open to public inspection during the hours when the office of the Agency is open.  Officials and 
employees will furnish information concerning the affairs of the Agency in accordance with statutory procedures and 
requirements.  Reproduction of any documents will be charged at cost. 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION 
 

Agency Telephone Numbers 
Agency Office (530) 533-4578 

Emergency (530) 533-4578 
Irrigation Water (530) 533-7240 

OWNERSHIP OF WATER 
 
All water and water rights belonging to the State within the Agency have been dedicated and set apart for the uses and purposes 
of the Agency.  No purchaser of water from the Agency acquires any proprietary right therein or any right to resell such water, 
or to use it on premises or for a purpose other than stated in the written application to the Agency for service.  The Agency 
asserts the right to recapture, reuse, and resell all water that passes from the premises of the person to whom the water was 
sold, or from the premises stated in the application to the Agency for services.  All water introduced into the Agency by Agency 
works is Agency water and is subject to diversion, rediversion, and use by the Agency.  All such water intercepted and used or 
impounded will be charged to the person using or impounding it at the rates established by the Agency, irrespective of whether 
the water is diverted from a conduit or taken from, or impounded in a natural channel or ravine, or whether it is waste, spill, 
seepage, or other water. 
 
 

ANNEXATION PROCEDURES1 
 
Property must be annexed to SFWPA prior to receiving domestic or irrigation water service.  If the property qualifies for 
irrigation service by virtue of Railroad Commission Order No. 11334, or will receive irrigation service on a surplus basis, it 
may receive irrigation water without annexation, but no domestic water service will be supplied to parcels that are not 
annexed to the Agency. 
 
Property outside the sphere-of-influence boundary established for the Agency by the Local Agency Formation Commission 
(LAFCo), and/or outside the place-of-use boundary designated by the State Water Resources Control Board, may not be 
annexed to SFWPA unless those boundaries are modified to include the property proposing annexation. 
 
Determination of a parcel’s suitability for development and/or connection to SFWPA’s domestic or irrigation distribution 
system is the responsibility of the parcel’s owner.  Information regarding annexation procedures, sphere-of-influence and 
place-of-use boundaries, the location of existing distribution facilities, and available excess treatment and distribution system 
capacity will be provided by Agency staff upon request. 
 

Annexation Application 
 
Initiating Application.  A property owner may initiate the annexation application process by filing an Application for Water 
Service.  Agency staff will use the information provided on the form to determine the specific requirements for providing 
domestic or irrigation water service to the subject parcel, including the costs associated with the annexation process 
(SFWPA, County Clerk, LAFCo, and State Board of Equalization fees). 

                                                 
1 Section added 8/22/00 
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Payment of Fees.  The applicant will be informed of the requirements for receiving service, including the costs associated 
with the annexation process.  Thereafter, if the applicant wants to proceed with annexing their property, they must deposit 
funds equal in amount to the total of the Agency’s processing fee and the fees to be charged by the County Clerk, LAFCo, 
and the State Board of Equalization (SBE).  These fees will be paid based on the annexation of the entire parcel to the 
Agency.  (Payment of SFWPA’s annexation fee is not required until just prior to the initial activation of water service.) 
 
In addition to the deposit, the property owner will need to complete the Annexation Information Form that staff will supply, 
providing information about their property required by LAFCo.2   
 
Approval by Board of Directors.  Once the deposit and information form have been received, staff will submit the annexation 
application information to a consultant that has been retained by the Agency to provide CEQA documentation services and to 
prepare LAFCo applications and boundary plats and descriptions.  Said consultant will conduct an initial study in 
conformance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), prepare the annexation application documents required 
by LAFCo, as well as the necessary boundary plat and description in conformance with State Board of Equalization 
specifications.  Consideration of approval of the annexation shall be included on the agenda of a regular meeting of 
SFWPA’s Board of Directors as soon after the consultant has prepared the necessary documents as possible.3 
 
LAFCo Approval.  After approval by the Board of Directors, the annexation application will be submitted for LAFCo’s 
consideration.  The Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo) has been established by the State Legislature to, among 
other duties, review and approve or disapprove proposals for annexation of territory to special districts.  Approval by LAFCo 
of any annexation proposal is required before the Agency can provide water service.  
 

Annexation Processing Fee 
 
In addition to fees levied by the County Clerk, LAFCo, State Board of Equalization, and any other  public agency having 
jurisdiction over the annexation approval process, SFWPA shall require payment by the applicant of a Processing Fee prior to 
engaging its annexation-processing consultant.  The Annexation Processing Fee shall be that amount estimated by the 
consultant to be its total cost to process a standard parcel annexation.  The Processing Fee is intended to cover the 
annexation-processing consultant’s costs to prepare the annexation application documents.4 
 
When the annexation process is complete and the annexation-processing consultant’s final invoice has been received by the 
Agency, the applicant will be reimbursed the difference between the invoice amount and the Annexation Processing Fee they 
originally deposited, if said fee is greater.  If the consultant’s invoice is greater than the deposited fee, the applicant will be 
sent a request for payment of the difference. Water service shall not be provided to applicant’s property until payment of any 
additional cost to process the annexation has been made by the applicant.5 

EASEMENT ABANDONMENT 
 
Abandonment by the Agency of its interest in public utility, irrigation, and other easements dedicated to the Agency for 
installation, maintenance, repair, etc., of facilities, shall require approval of the Board of Directors.  Staff will prepare a detailed 
analysis and recommendation for consideration by the Board of Directors. 
 
Commitments to abandon easements or assurances that easements will be abandoned may be provided by staff only after 
approval of same by the Board of Directors. 
 

                                                 
2 Paragraph amended 11/22/11 
3 Paragraph amended 11/22/11 
4 Paragraph amended 11/22/11 
5 Paragraph added 11/22/11 
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PART A - DOMESTIC WATER SERVICE 
  
The Agency provides domestic water from the Miners Ranch and the Bangor water filtration plants and their piped distribution 
systems.  The two systems are operated by the Agency with permits from the State of California, Department of Health Services. 
 
WARNING:  untreated or raw water is provided from the Agency’s ditch system for irrigation purposes only.  Ditch water or 
piped raw water does not meet federal or state standards for domestic water. 
 

Section 1 - Applying For Service 
 
Application for water service shall be made in person by the property owner.  To open an account for water service the signature 
of the property owners is required. 
 
Applications for service are taken at the business office of the Agency.  The Agency’s requirements for the type of service 
desired must be met before an application will be approved. 
 
If a principal part of the premises to be serviced does not front on an available and adequate main, or if these premises are 
outside the Agency’s boundaries, or if unusual conditions exist, the applicant will be advised of terms and conditions which 
must be met before an application for service may be accepted.  In determining whether the portion of an applicant’s premises 
lying directly along a main constitutes principal frontage, the Agency’s decision shall be final. 
 
Continuance of service is dependent on compliance with the Agency’s regulations governing service. 
 

Section 2 - Standard Service6 
 
Payment of a System Capacity Charge will be required prior to the installation of a water service for a parcel that has not 
previously been served and for which the System Capacity Charge has not previously been paid.  The amount of the System 
Capacity Charge is dependent on the size of meter requested (see Part D of these Rules and Regulations for the amount of the 
Charge per meter size). 
 
On single-family residential parcels up to four acres in area, even if a meter size greater than a ⅝” standard residential meter is 
needed to satisfy the flow demands of a fire-suppression system, the amount of the System Capacity Charge applied shall be 
the same as for a ⅝” standard residential meter.  If a larger meter is requested for fire-suppression systems in non-single-family-
residential structures, or for purposes other than to satisfy the flow demands of a residential fire-suppression system, the System 
Capacity Charge for the requested meter size shall apply, regardless of the parcel area. 
 
On single-family residential parcels between four and ten acres in area, the General Manager shall have discretion to apply the 
System Capacity Charge of a ⅝” standard residential meter where it is clear that the only purpose for a meter size greater than 
⅝” is to satisfy the flow demands of a fire-suppression system, and not for other purposes (e.g., irrigation, commercial 
enterprises, manufacturing processes, etc.).  
 
On single-family residential parcels greater in area than ten acres, the Board of Directors may consider individual requests from 
builders and/or property owners to apply the System Capacity Charge of a ⅝” standard residential meter where it is clear that 
the only purpose for a meter size greater than ⅝” is to satisfy the flow demands of a fire-suppression system. 
 
A. Service Connection Exists at Time Application Received 

A standard service may be granted where a complete service connection for the premises exists provided the Agency’s 
requirements are met as stated in these regulations.  In such cases, if sufficient advance notice is furnished to the 
Agency, the service will be turned on at the meter on the date required by the customer, excepting Saturdays, Sundays, 
and holidays. 
 

                                                 
6 Amended 4/24/12 regarding fire-suppression systems.  
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B. Service Connection Does Not Exist at Time Application Received 
When an application is received for a standard service to premises where a service connection does not exist, a standard 
service may be granted provided the applicant meets the Agency’s general requirements as stated elsewhere in these 
regulations, and: 

 
1. A principal part of the premises to be served fronts upon, and may be served by a water main of adequate capacity, 

under proper pressure, and available for service; 
 

 2. The size of the service connection is approved by the Agency; and 
 

 3. The applicable Agency charges have been paid. 
 

The installation of the service pipe, including meter and backflow prevention assembly, shall be made by the Agency 
at the expense of the applicant.7 

 

Section 3 - Main Extensions 
 
A. Extending Mains 

In general, an extension of a water main is required when a parcel needing water service is not contiguous to an 
available water main with adequate capacity and proper pressure.  Main extensions are required to, at least, the closest 
point on the frontage of the parcel to be served or, in the case of multiple parcels, to the closest point on the frontage 
of the parcel farthest from the point of commencement of the extension.  The alignment and size of the main extension 
and the location of the terminus of said extension shall be subject to approval by the General Manager, and shall 
accommodate installation of the extension and water services in conformance with these Rules & Regulations and 
standard engineering practices, as well as allowing for reasonable access by meter readers.8  When the General 
Manager determines that reasonable access for meter readers cannot be provided, or when domestic water facilities 
are constructed for a subdivision of five or more parcels, installation of a radio-read meter (or other type of meter 
facilitating automated data collection) will be required.9 

 
B. Project Approval 

Developers or owners of residential, commercial, industrial or other type projects shall first obtain approval from the 
Agency prior to: 

 
1. Construction of domestic water facilities which they proposed to connect to the Agency’s domestic water 

distribution system; or, 
 
2. Relocation of existing Agency facilities. 
 
‘Project’ shall be defined as the proposed construction of any development involving the extension of the Agency’s 
domestic water distribution system and/or alterations to provide additional capacity in existing facilities in order to 
obtain domestic water service.  The installation of a water service line from an existing water main for a new structure 
or the reconstruction of an existing water service line shall not be considered a ‘project’ as defined herein. 

 
A request for project approval is initiated by submitting plans and specification of the proposed improvements for 
review by Agency staff.  The plans and specifications shall be prepared by a registered civil engineer in conformance 
with these Rules & Regulations and the Agency’s Development Standards for Treated Water Systems and shall contain 
sufficient information to completely describe all aspects of the project work.  Agency staff shall review the project 
plans for general conformance with these Rules & Regulations and the Agency’s Development Standards, good 
engineering practice and the best interests of the Agency.  Review of plans by the Agency, and inspection of the work, 
shall be for general conformance with its rules only and shall not constitute a detailed design review and 
approval of the project design.  Review of the plans and specifications by Agency staff shall not relieve the Developer, 
or the Developer's engineer, of full responsibility for the proper engineering, design, and installation of the project, 

                                                 
7  Paragraph amended 2/27/96 and 2/27/01 
8  Paragraph amended 3/22/94 
9  Paragraph amended 2/27/01 
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nor shall it relieve Developer of the duty to defend and indemnify Agency for claims or liability arising out of the 
design and installation of the project.10 

 
The developer will pay for all Agency engineering, plan-check and inspection services.  The developer’s engineer will 
estimate the cost of the water system improvements and submit it for review and approval by the Agency’s engineer.  
Payment of the Plan Check Fee (3% of approved engineer’s estimate) will be required initially.  Payment of the 
Inspection Fee (3% of approved engineer’s estimate) will be required prior to the Conveyance Agreement being 
approved by the Board of Directors. 11 

 
C. Financial Responsibility for Cost of Extending Mains12 

It is the policy of the Agency to allow reasonable extensions of its facilities for a growing community, provided that 
such extensions do not place an unfair burden on property owners already receiving service. All costs associated with 
the extension of Agency facilities, together with the installation of private service lines from said facilities, shall be 
the responsibility of the owner(s) of the parcel(s) to be served or the developer of a project to be served. 
 
When a parcel owner or developer extends main, other parcels that front on the extended main will be eligible to take 
service therefrom.  When other such parcels have the opportunity to take service from such an extended main, it is 
reasonable that the parcel owner or developer that extended the main be reimbursed a portion of their cost within a 
specified period of time.  The provisions by which the Agency will collect a reimbursement fee from parcels 
connecting to such an extended main are as follows: 
 
1. No reimbursement fees will be collected unless the parcel owner or developer (hereafter in this subsection referred 

to as “developer”) has executed a reimbursement agreement with the Agency prior to Agency acceptance of the 
main extension. 

 
2. Agency will attempt to collect and recover a reimbursement fee in an amount that reflects each parcel’s reasonable 

share of the cost of installation of the main.  The Agency is neither liable for nor responsible for any share of 
reimbursements to the developer.  The Agency will attempt to collect said reimbursement fee from lands fronting 
the extended main at the time they request service therefrom, and the Agency will not bear any responsibility for 
any share of the main-extension expenses in the event it is unsuccessful in reimbursement-fee collection efforts.  
The Agency will not litigate and/or enforce reimbursement of the main-extension expenses through judicial or 
administrative actions. 

 
3. After receiving reimbursement fees, the Agency will disburse said collected fees to the developer.   
 
4. Reimbursement agreements will have a maximum term of ten years.  The agency will not attempt to collect 

reimbursement fees or disburse collected fees to the developer for more than ten years under any reimbursement 
agreement. 

 
4. Parcels from which a reimbursement fee is collected are not relieved of the responsibility to pay all other 

applicable fees and charges of the Agency in connection with water service from the Agency. 
 
5. Water service connections made to future extensions of a main that is the subject of a reimbursement agreement 

will not be required to pay a reimbursement fee, neither is the developer entitled to receive any reimbursement 
for such connections. 

 
6. The reimbursement fee for any parcel taking service from an extended main that is the subject of a reimbursement 

agreement shall be determined by one of the following methodologies:  (1) by a front-foot charge; or, (2) by a 
proportionate-benefit charge.  The General Manager shall determine the methodology to be used on a case-by-
case basis by the length (lineal feet) of that parcel’s frontage lying along the extension. 

 
a. The front-foot charge will be determined by dividing the cost of the extension by the length of frontage along 

the extension of all parcels that may be served directly from the extension (without additional main line 

                                                 
10  Paragraph amended 7/26/05 and 5/22/07 
11  Paragraph amended 6/26/01 and 7/26/05 
12  Subsection amended 7/26/05 
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extension).  All parcels whose frontage length was utilized in the front-footage cost calculation will be subject 
to the reimbursement fee.  The reimbursement fee for any parcel shall be determined by multiplying the 
length of the parcel’s frontage by the front-foot charge.  

 
b. The proportionate-benefit charge shall be based on the development potential of all parcels that may be served 

directly from the extension.  The development potential of any parcel is the number of residential units that 
could be developed on the parcel, based on its zoning and general plan designations, topography, and access 
limitations, as estimated by the Agency’s engineer and approved by the General Manager.  A parcel that is 
too small to divide and that could not be utilized for apartments or other multi-family units, will be considered 
to have a development potential of one residential unit.  The proportionate-benefit charge will be determined 
by dividing the cost of the extension by the cumulative potential residential units on all parcels that may be 
served directly from the extension. 

 
c. A parcel fronting the extension, that is receiving Agency treated water at the time the reimbursement 

agreement is executed will only be required to pay a reimbursement fee if its existing service is expanded or 
upsized, or if it is divided.  In the case of a parcel split or subdivision, the existing service will be assigned, 
at the sole discretion of the Agency, to one of the newly created parcels.  The remaining new parcel(s) that 
lie along and may be served directly from the extension will be subject to the reimbursement fee based on 
that parcel(s) front footage along the extension or its proportionate benefit as determined by the Agency. 

 
7. A reimbursement fee will not be charged more than once to any parcel, and no single parcel will be required to 

pay a reimbursement fee in excess of 50% of the cost of the extension. 
 
9. The cost of the extension will be considered to be the developer’s out-of-pocket expenses directly and solely 

related to the installation of the extension, subject to the approval of Agency’s engineer or General Manager.  The 
developer’s cost for rights-of-way acquisition, employment of engineers and other consultants for planning and 
design, and for construction of on-site improvements will be excluded from the front-foot-charge calculations. 

 

Section 4 - Project Requirements for Main Extensions 
A. Project Design and Planning 

The project developer shall be responsible and bear the cost for the preparation of plans and specifications for the on-
site and off-site domestic water system being proposed in accordance with the Agency’s Development Standards for 
Treated Water Systems.  Preparation of the plans and specifications shall include amendments, revisions and additions 
as specified by the Agency’s engineer.  The plans and specifications shall be deemed complete when they are in a 
form acceptable to the Agency’s engineer.  Thereafter, all changes to the plans and specifications impacting the 
domestic water system shall be subject to the written approval of the project developer and the Agency’s engineer.13 
 
After completion of plans and specifications as specified above, and prior to commencement of construction, the 
developer shall enter into a Conveyance Agreement with the Agency, approved by the Board of Directors, describing 
the conditions upon which the Agency will accept the developer’s completed water system improvements.  If the 
project site is not annexed to the Agency, the developer shall provide all necessary annexation documents (e.g., CEQA 
compliance certification, legal description, annexation plat, etc.) required by the Butte Local Agency Formation 
Commission (LAFCo) and shall pay all annexation-related fees prior to approval of the Conveyance Agreement by 
the Board of Directors.14 

 
B. Construction 

The project developer shall obtain an encroachment permit from the county or city (depending on jurisdiction) Public 
Works Department, and comply with all requirements thereof, including trench restoration and street resurfacing 
requirements for any portion of the project located within existing or proposed public rights of way. 

 

                                                 
13  Paragraph amended 7/26/05 
14  Paragraph added 7/26/05 
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The project’s domestic water facilities shall be constructed by a California State licensed contractor without expense 
to the Agency in accordance with the Agency’s Development Standards for Treated Water Systems, these Rules and 
Regulations and the approved plans and specifications, and approved modifications thereof.15 

 
All construction contracts relating to the water system executed by the developer shall include the requirement that 
any contractor’s or materials supplier’s guarantees thereunder, including warranties on the completed improvements, 
shall inure to the benefit of the Agency after the works constructed thereunder have been conveyed to the Agency.  
The developer shall also provide in any such contract that the contractor’s public liability and property damage 
insurance shall be extended to cover developer and Agency and their agents, officers and employees as additional 
insured.  Liability and bodily injury limits shall not be less than $500,000 for projects with construction costs less than 
$50,000, and for projects above $50,000, bodily injury limits of $1,000,000 per person and $2,000,000 aggregate; and 
property damage coverage shall not be less than $250,000 for projects with construction costs less than $50,000, and 
$1,000,000 for projects above $50,000. 

 
C. Payment of Prevailing Wages 

The State’s Attorney General has opined that, in certain circumstances, construction of facilities for provision of public 
utility service, with the understanding and agreement that said facilities will be turned over to the Agency for 
ownership, operation and maintenance at the conclusion of construction, may be subject to the prevailing wage laws 
of the State of California. 

 
It is the developer’s responsibility to determine if the Attorney General’s opinion affects the wages paid by him/her 
to workers employed on water facilities constructed for their project.  However, should it be determined that the 
prevailing wage laws of the State (Labor Code 1770, et seq.) apply to the work performed for the project, then the 
developer will be required and shall agree to defend and hold the Agency harmless from any liability, claims, damages, 
or costs in any way associated with said determination by the State.  Further, the developer shall take all necessary 
and appropriate action, including payment of back wages, and any associated penalties that may be required, due to 
enforcement of the prevailing wage law in connection with construction of the water system. 

 
The Agency will not represent or advise the developer in connection with this matter except to advise him/her of their 
potential liability.  The developer should not rely upon any opinion or information of the Agency in making his/her 
determination in connection with the payment or nonpayment of wages. 

 
D. Inspection of Construction 

The Agency’s engineer or his/her agent(s) shall inspect the construction of the project’s domestic water system to 
assure that the works are installed in accordance with the approved plans and specifications. Said inspection shall be 
funded by a Plan Check Fee and Inspection Fee paid by the developer as specified in these Rules & Regulations.  
Construction of the water system shall not commence until said fee is paid. 

 
The Agency’s engineer shall notify the developer and owner as to any deviation or failure to construct pursuant to the 
approved plans and specifications as soon as such deviation or failure is brought to his/her attention.  Developer shall 
correct such deviation or failure. 

 
The Agency is not, by inspection of the construction or installation of the domestic water system, representing the 
developer and/or owner or providing a substitute for inspection and control of the work by the developer.  Any 
inspections and observations of the work by the Agency are for the sole purposes of providing notice of stage and 
character of the work.  Any failure of the Agency to note variances in the work from the plans and specifications does 
not excuse or exempt the developer from complying with all terms of the plans and specifications.  The fact that the 
Agency inspects the construction of work and notifies the developer of deviations or failure to construct them pursuant 
to the approved plans and specifications shall not be deemed to constitute a guarantee by the Agency that the works 
have been built in accordance with the approved plans and specifications. 

 
During construction, and prior to conveyance of the facilities to, and acceptance thereof by the Agency, the developer 
shall hold the Agency harmless against any and all claims, demands and charges by third parties arising out of alleged 
deviations or failures to construct pursuant to the approved plans and specifications. 

 

                                                 
15  Paragraph amended 7/26/05 
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E. Conveyance 
Upon completion of construction of the project’s domestic water system in accordance with the Agency’s 
Development Standards for Treated Water systems and the approved plans and specifications therefore, the following 
events shall occur.16 

 
1. Developer shall provide to the Agency, in a form acceptable to the Agency’s engineer, appropriate easements for 

those domestic water facilities for which the Agency will assume operation and maintenance responsibilities.  The 
General Manager may request that reasonable documentation of title be provided at Developer’s expenses to 
confirm authority to convey the easements and facilities.  Easements will not be needed for facilities that will be 
located within public rights of way.17 

 
2. Approval by LAFCo that the project site has been annexed to the Agency.18 

 
3. Developer shall convey title of the completed works to the Agency without cost and free and clear of all liens and 

encumbrances, by appropriate conveying documents, acceptable in form to the General Manager. 
 
4. Developer shall provide the Agency with one set of 24"x 36" reproducible ‘As Built’ drawings on matte mylar (5 

mil minimum) of the completed facilities, together with a digital copy (in Drawing Interchange Format -.dxf) on 
media prescribed by the Agency’s engineer. 

 
5. Developer shall furnish to the Agency a bond, irrevocable letter of credit, cash deposit, or other form of surety 

meeting the General Manager’s approval in an amount being equal to 25% of the cost to construct the water 
system, based either on the estimate of the developer’s project engineer or upon the amount of a contract whereby 
the facilities were built.  Said surety shall protect the Agency against any failure of the work due to natural 
phenomenon or catastrophe, faulty materials, poor workmanship, or defective equipment within a period of one 
(1) year after acceptance of the water system by the Agency.  Said bond or irrevocable letter of credit shall name 
the developer as ‘Principal’ and the Agency as ‘Obligee.’ 

 
After completion of the preceding events and upon written certification by the developer and the developer’s engineer 
that the water system improvements have been completed in conformance with the Agency’s Rules and Regulations, 
its Development Standards and the approved plans and specifications, and that the developer has complied with the 
terms and conditions of the Conveyance Agreement, the General Manager is authorized to accept conveyance of title 
of the completed domestic water system and include it as part of the Agency’s system, and shall thereafter operate and 
maintain such water system.19 

 
F. Application and Delivery of Water Service 

No water shall be delivered to or conveyed by or through a project’s water system, other than for testing and 
disinfecting purposes, until the water system is conveyed to the Agency and formally accepted by the Agency, as 
discussed above.  Prior to water being delivered to individual water service lines, proper applications shall have been 
filed with the Agency. 

 
G. Obligation for Pipeline and/or Facilities 

The Agency shall be under no obligation to provide additional pipelines and/or facilities in order to serve a project.  
Upon acceptance of the water system by the Agency, it shall become the sole property of the Agency and shall be 
used and operated at the Agency’s sole discretion. 

 
H. Rates and Charges for Service 

All domestic water service made available by the Agency to users within a project shall be at the established rates and 
charges as fixed by the Agency’s Board of Directors from time to time.  Projects requiring the Agency to own, operate 
and maintain pumping stations or other project-specific facilities may be charged a special rate which will be 
commensurate with the expense of operating said facilities, together with other water service costs. 
 

                                                 
16  Paragraph amended 7/26/05 
17  Paragraph added 7/26/05 
18  Paragraph added 7/26/05 
19  Paragraph amended 7/26/05 
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Prior to physically connecting any domestic service to the water system, payment of the Agency’s System Capacity 
Charge and any other outstanding fees or charges affecting the property to be served shall be made.  For projects of 
more than ten ⅝”-meter service connections (or larger service connections of comparable potential cumulative 
consumption), payment of the System Capacity Charge may be required by the General Manager prior to approval of 
the service application if he/she determines that the funds may be needed for expansion of treatment plant capacity to 
ensure adequate service for the project.20 

 

Section 5 - Public Fire Hydrants 
 
A fire hydrant can be installed, relocated, or removed when the following requirements have been met: 
 

1. A written application for the installation, relocation, or removal has been received by the Agency; 
 

2. The hydrant site has been approved by the responsible public agency. 
 
Fire hydrants installed under the preceding provisions shall belong to the Agency.  Fire hydrants shall be installed, relocated 
or removed by the Agency at the expense of the applicant. 
 

Section 6 - Non-standard Service21 
 
Under certain conditions, the Agency may grant a service classified as ‘non-standard’ which generally falls within the following 
classifications: 
 
A. Temporary Building-Construction Service 

The Agency may grant a temporary building-construction service for the purpose of providing water to building 
construction sites prior to their completion and occupancy.  Temporary building-construction service may only be 
provided after a service line, meter set, and approved backflow device have been installed in accordance with these 
Rules and Regulations for the parcel upon which the building is to be constructed.  Water for this service will be 
billed on a flat-rate basis as specified under “Fees & Charges” in Part D, herein.  The maximum time for a 
temporary building-construction service shall be six (6) months. 

 
An application for temporary building-construction service must be submitted on a Agency service-application form 
and approved before service is initiated.  

 
B. Bulk Service  

The Agency may provide bulk-water service from its reservoirs and open ditches/canals, from a Agency filling 
station, or through fire hydrants for haulage and/or construction purposes.  An application for bulk water service 
must be submitted on a Agency application form and approved before service is initiated.    

 
Bulk raw-water customers may only draft water at Agency facilities from locations for which prior approval by 
Agency personnel has been received. 

 
Bulk potable-water customers who do not utilize Agency filling stations may only draft water from fire hydrants; 
may only draft water through an approved bulk-service meter appropriately attached to the fire hydrant; and, may 
only draft water with an approved backflow-protection assembly in place.  Before drafting water, bulk potable-water 
customers will advise the Agency by telephone (530-533-4578) of the location(s) of the fire hydrant(s) they will be 
using. 

 
1. Meter Deposit – Before being issued a bulk-service meter, applicants will deposit with the Agency an amount 

equal to the cost of the meter being issued (see Part D, “Fees & Charges”).  This deposit will be refunded to the 
applicant when the meter is returned in good condition (as verified by qualified Agency personnel).  If the meter 

                                                 
20  Paragraph amended 6/26/01 
21  Section amended 11/27/01 
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is damaged at the time it is returned, the cost of repairs will be deducted from the deposit before the balance is 
refunded to the applicant. 

 
2. Backflow Protection – Before being issued a bulk-service meter, qualified Agency personnel will inspect all 

trucks or containers into which applicant or his/her agents will be drafting potable water to ensure they are 
equipped with appropriate backflow-protection assemblies.  Trucks or containers must be inspected for 
appropriate backflow-protection assemblies on an annual basis.  Acceptable types of backflow protection required 
to protect the Agency’s water supply are double-check-valve (DC) assemblies, reduced-pressure-principle (RP) 
assemblies, and air-gap separation devices.   If a DC or RP assembly is used, it must be installed as close to the 
bulk-service meter as is practical.  When an air-gap device is used, the water inlet piping shall terminate a distance 
of at least two and one-half (2½) pipe diameters of the inlet, but in no case less than one (1) inch, above the 
overflow rim of the receiving vessel. 

 
The applicant will pay an inspection fee (see Part D, “Fees & Charges”) for each truck or container that requires a 
backflow-protection inspection. 

 
3. Fees & Charges 

 
a. Bulk potable-water customers shall be billed on a monthly basis on a volume-of-usage basis in addition to a 

monthly service charge (see Part D, “Fees & Charges”).  A minimum monthly charge for ten (10) units (7,480 
gallons) of water will be assessed.  The bulk potable-water customer is responsible for calling the Agency 
office (530-533-4578) before the end of each month and reporting their meter’s current reading.  Agency 
personnel may periodically check a meter’s reading when they come upon a bulk-service customer drafting 
water.   

 
b. Bulk raw-water customers shall be billed on a monthly basis on a per-load basis (see Part D, “Fees & 

Charges”).  The bulk raw-water customer is responsible for calling the Agency office (530-533-4578) before 
the end of each month to report the number of loads they have taken. 

 
c. Filling-station customers shall pay in advance for each load they receive (see Part D, “Fees & Charges”). 

 
4. Delinquent Accounts – Bulk potable-water customers who fail to report their meter’s reading for more than sixty 

(60) days, or whose bill remains unpaid for more than sixty (60) days, will no longer be permitted to draft water 
from any SFWPA facility.  Any attempt by the customer or his/her agents to draft water thereafter will be 
considered theft and will be reported to the appropriate law enforcement agency.  Bulk raw-water customers may 
be denied service if it is determined that they fail to report or report less than the total number of loads taken. 

 
5. Damaged Meters – Bulk potable-water customers will be assessed the actual cost to repair damaged meters.  The 

minimum assessment will be as shown in Part D, “Fees & Charges”.  A customer’s bulk-service privilege may 
be revoked if his/her meter is repeatedly damaged. 

 

Section 7 - Low Pressure Service 
 
An applicant for water service cannot be assured of a supply of adequate pressure where the meter(s) serving the premises will 
be located at an elevation of less than 100 feet below the overflow level of the reservoir providing such service.  As heretofore 
stated in these Regulations, such premises are not entitled to a main extension resulting in low pressure conditions.  However, 
a Low Pressure Service (or a water main extension resulting in low pressure conditions) may be granted for premises located 
at such elevations if all of the following conditions exist: 
 

1. The Agency has determined that a standard, gravity-type distribution system to provide the premises with 
adequate pressure is neither presently feasible nor contemplated within the foreseeable future. 

 
2. The owner(s) agrees to install individual storage and pumping facilities and a backflow device necessary to ensure 
an adequate water supply at the premises at all times.  In such cases, the equipment shall be installed and maintained 
on the applicant’s side of the meter at his own risk and expense. 
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In no event will a Low Pressure Service (or an extension resulting in low pressure conditions) be granted if, in the opinion of 
the Agency, the premises are not situated within the immediate vicinity of existing Agency facilities containing sufficient water 
storage to ensure an adequate volume of water to serve said premises. 
 
 

Section 8 - Reading of Meters 
 
All water supplied by the Agency will be measured by means of water meters.  The cubic  foot will be the unit of measure, and 
the amounts charged for service shall be based on the current rates established by the Agency. 
 
In general, meters shall be read on a monthly basis.  As it is not always practicable to read meters at equal intervals, the period 
between reading dates may vary as much as five days. 

 

Section 9 - Unreadable Meters 
 
Bills for service will be based on an estimate if a meter fails to register the volume of water consumed or cannot be read.  In 
estimating consumption, due consideration will be give to fluctuations in usage caused by seasonal changes or known service 
interruption. 
 
Where a meter cannot be read without undue difficulty because of obstruction, the customer will be notified and requested to 
correct the condition.  The Agency has the right to discontinue the service if the condition is not corrected.  Where services is 
turned off for such cause, the Agency may require payment of a turn-on charge as provided for in the Schedule of Rates and 
Charges. 

 

Section 10 - Payment of Bills 
 
Bills are due and payable on the date they are mailed from the Agency Office, and are delinquent 25 days thereafter.  A 
delinquency penalty charge, as determined by the Board of Directors and as shown herein in the schedule of Fees and Charges, 
will be applied to each account’s unpaid balance when it becomes delinquent and monthly thereafter until paid.22 
 
Customers may make advance payments to maintain water service during their absence.  The billing will reflect the current 
credit balance until expended.  Monies placed on deposit will not bear interest. 
 
Water service accounts will only be established in the name of the property owner.  Landlords who make arrangements with 
their tenants to pay the monthly water bill may request that the bill be sent to their tenant’s address.  Nevertheless, the landlord 
is ultimately responsible for payment delinquencies.  Delinquency notices will be sent to landlords upon their request.23 
 
The Manager and Treasurer, at their discretion, may sign term payment agreements with individual property owners under the 
following guidelines:24 
 
Up to a one hundred twenty (120) month period and a maximum amount of $10,000 may be authorized for Agency fees and 
charges related to a new treated water service, including but not limited to system capacity charges, meter and backflow 
prevention device installation costs, and service line installation costs.  The interest rate to be charged on all term payment 
agreements will be 10% per annum. 
 
Failure by the property owner to comply with a term payment agreement will subject them to termination of water service until 
the full amount covered by the agreement is paid. 
 
The term payment agreement will be recorded, will constitute a lien on the affected property, and will bind the heirs, successors 
and assigns of the property owner initiating the agreement. 

                                                 
22  Paragraph amended 10/27/98 
23  Paragraph amended 7/28/94 
24  Paragraph and sub-paragraphs added 7/23/96, amended 8/27/96 and 1/27/98 
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Section 11 - Delinquent Accounts 
 
Accounts are delinquent twenty-five (25) days after the bill is mailed from the Agency Office.  Water services shall 
be discontinued if an account remains delinquent fifty (50) days after the bill is mailed from the Agency Office.  A 
delinquency ‘shut-off’ notice will be mailed to the customer and the property owner (if the customer is not the 
owner) stating the date the water service will be discontinued if the delinquent portion of the account remains 
unpaid.  The notice will provide a minimum of five (5) days warning.  A second shutoff notice will be posted 
conspicuously at the account address a minimum of forty-eight (48) hours prior to the scheduled delinquency 
shutoff.25 
 
A water service shall be discontinued if the delinquent account balance has not been paid prior to the scheduled shutoff date.  
Once a service has been discontinued, the entire account balance must be paid prior to service being restored.26 

 

Section 12 - Service Fees 
 
When a shutoff notice is posted at the account address. When a shut off notice is created, a charge for processing and delivering 
the notice a ‘Shutoff Notice Service Fee’ shall be added to the account and included in the delinquent balance.  Said fee shall 
be determined by the Board of Directors, and is shown herein in the schedule of Rates and Fees.27 
 
When a water service is discontinued for delinquency a ‘Meter Lock Service Fee’ shall be added to the account and included 
in the delinquent balance.  Said fee shall be determined by the Board of Directors, and is shown herein in the schedule of Rates 
and Fees. No additional fee will be assessed to restore service if the entire account balance is paid prior to said balance being 
assigned to the Butte County Tax Roll.28 
 
Agency staff may approve a special written payment arrangement for a customer which will provide an additional seven (7) 
calendar days in which payment of the delinquent portion of their account may be paid. Written payment arrangements may be 
approved which will provide an additional fourteen (14) calendar days in which payment of their entire account balance may 
be paid.  In either case, the customer must sign the payment arrangement and, by so doing, acknowledge that they are aware 
that their failure to abide by the terms of the payment arrangement will result in their water service being discontinued 
immediately and without further notice.29 
 
In the case where a delinquent bill is paid by check or credit card after the shutoff notice has been mailed, and the check is 
returned unpaid by the bank, service will be immediately discontinued without further notice.  Prior to restoration of service, 
the account’s entire balance and any bank charge for a returned check must be paid in cash before service will be continued. 30  

 

Section 13 - Discontinuance of Service 
A. Reasons for Discontinuation of Water Service: 
 

1. At Customer’s Request 
 

Water service will be turned off on the date requested by the customer, excepting Saturdays, Sundays, and 
holidays, provided 24-hour advance notice is furnished to the Agency.  The customer will be held responsible for 
all service rendered to his premises until the Agency has received notice to terminate such service.  Only written 
requests by the property owner will be accepted. 

 
2. For Nonpayment of Bills 

                                                 
25  Paragraph amended 10/27/98 and 7/22/08 
26  Paragraph added 10/27/98 
27  Paragraph added 10/27/98 
28  Paragraph amended 10/27/98 
29  Paragraph added 10/27/98 
30  Paragraph amended 10/27/98 
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Water service shall be discontinued by the Agency if an account remains delinquent fifty (50) days after the bill 
is mailed from the Agency Office.31 

 
3. For Noncompliance with These Regulations 

 
Water service will be discontinued, reclassified, or removed by the Agency for failure to comply with any of the 
regulations governing water service to customers. 

 
If service is turned off for violation of regulations, the Agency may require payment of a turn-on charge as 
determined by the Board of Directors and set forth herein in the schedule of Fees and Charges in addition to other 
amounts due from the customer before restoring water service.32 

 
B33. Circumstances Under Which Service May Not Be Discontinued 
 

1. During the pendency of an investigation of a customer dispute or complaint; 
 

2. When a customer has been granted an extension of time for payment of a bill; 
 

3. On certification of a licensed practitioner that termination of service will be life threatening to the customer and 
the customer is financially unable to pay for service within the normal period, but is willing to enter into an 
amortization agreement. 

 
C. Continuation of Monthly Service Charge34 
 
The monthly service charge assessed to all accounts is for expenses incurred by the Agency which are not related to amount of 
usage - account maintenance, administration, distribution system maintenance, fire flow, maintenance of the service line on the 
Agency’s side of the meter, etc.  These expenses continue throughout the year regardless of the volume any specific account 
uses.  It is appropriate, therefore, that the monthly service charge be applied to each account on a monthly basis, regardless of 
usage, unless service is discontinued. 

 
Unless water is unavailable for a period of time in excess of thirty (30) days, or unless service is physically discontinued by 
Agency personnel - at either the owner’s request or the Agency’s own initiative - the monthly service charge shall continue to 
be assessed to each account. 

 
D.35 Termination of Water Service to Residential Occupants Served through a Master Meter Implementing Public 

Utility Code Section 16481.1 B 
 

South Feather Water and Power Agency serves water to residential occupants through a master meter in multi-unit residential 
structures and mobile home parks, where the owner, manager, or operator is listed as the customer of record. 

 
These rules and regulations establish the procedure by which South Feather Water and Power Agency will inform the residential 
occupants of their rights when the master meter account is in arrears and service to the master meter is threatened with 
termination. 

 
1. Notice to Residential Occupants 
 

Where the owner, manager or operator of a multi-unit residential structure or mobile home park or similar facility 
is listed by South Feather Water and Power Agency as the customer of record and the account is in arrears, every 
good faith effort will be made to inform the residential occupants by means of a written notice posted on the door 
of each residential unit at least fifteen days prior to service termination that service will be terminated on a date 
specified in the notice.  If it is not reasonable or practicable to post the notice on the door of each residential unit, 

                                                 
31  Paragraph amended 10/27/98 
32  Paragraph amended 10/27/98 
33  Subsection added 10/27/98 
34  Standby charge on inactive accounts deleted 2/24/09 
35 Subsection added 11/23/04 
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two copies of the notice will be posted in each common area and at each point of access to the structure or mobile 
home park or similar such area.  The notice will be in English and to the extent practical in any other language 
that South Feather Water and Power Agency determines is the primary language spoken by a significant number 
of the residential occupants.  The notice will be in bold type and in a large font, at least 14 pitch.  A copy of the 
form notice to be provided is attached to these Rules and Regulations. 
 
The notice will inform the residential customers of the following: 

 
a. That they have the right to become direct customers of South Feather Water and Power Agency to whom the 

service will be billed. 
 
b. That they can become direct customers in this way without being required to pay the amount due on the 

delinquent account. 
 
c. That in order to prevent the termination of service or to re-establish service, the residents must contact South 

Feather Water and Power Agency to sign up for service as set forth below. 
 
  
2. Guidelines for Residential Occupants to Become Direct Customers of South Feather Water and Power Agency 
 

Residential occupants of a multi-unit residential structure, mobile home park, or similar facility can become direct 
customers of South Feather Water and Power Agency and avoid termination of service, or reestablish service by 
becoming direct customers.  The residential occupant should contact South Feather Water and Power Agency at 
its office located at 2310 Oro-Quincy Highway, Oroville, telephone number 530-533-4578, to request service. 
 
South Feather Water and Power Agency may request the residential occupant to demonstrate creditworthiness as 
a condition for establishing credit.  Creditworthiness will be established by the residential occupant by providing 
proof of prompt payment of rent or other credit obligations which have accrued during a six-month period of time 
prior to application for service. 
 
The residential occupant may also want to contact the Community Legal Information Center at 25 Main Street, 
Suite 102, Chico, telephone 530-898-4354, which has been recommended by the Butte County Bar Association 
to provide legal advice in connection with these matters. 
 
South Feather Water and Power Agency is not required to make service available to the residential occupants 
unless each residential occupant or a representative of the residential occupants agrees to the terms and conditions 
of service and meets the requirements of these Rules and Regulations.  If one or more of the residential occupants, 
or a representative of the residential occupants are willing and able to assume responsibility for subsequent 
charges to the master meter account to the satisfaction of South Feather Water and Power Agency, service will 
be made available to the residential occupants who have met those requirements or on whose behalf those 
requirements have been met.  A representative of the residential occupants does not include a tenants’ association. 

 
3. Liberal Construction 
 

South Feather Water and Power Agency will liberally construe these Rules and Regulations to accomplish the 
purpose of ensuring that service to the residential occupants of a multi-unit residential structure, mobile home 
park or similar facility provided service through a master meter is not terminated due to non-payment unless 
South Feather Water and Power Agency has made every reasonable effort to continue service to the residential 
occupants. 

 
4. Limitations on Termination of Service 
 

Notwithstanding delinquency in the master meter account, South Feather Water and Power Agency will not 
terminate water service for non-payment: 

 
a. During the pendency of an investigation of a customer dispute or complaint; 
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b. Where the customer has been granted an extension of the period for payment of the bill; 
 
c. For indebtedness owed by the customer to any other public agency, or when the obligation represented by 

the delinquent account or other indebtedness was incurred with any public agency other than South Feather 
Water and Power Agency; 

 
d. When a delinquent account relates to another property owned, managed or operated by the customer; or, 
 
e. When a public health or building officer certifies that termination would result in a significant threat to the 

health or safety of the residential occupants or the public. 
 
5. Compliance with Law 
 

By these Rules and Regulations, South Feather Water and Power Agency intends to comply with the requirements 
imposed by Public Utility Code §16481.1.  The procedures outlined in that statute, as may be amended from time 
to time, take precedence over these Rules and Regulations. 

 

Section 14 - Removal of Meter or Service Lateral 
 
When the service is discontinued for any reason, the Agency has the right to remove the meter and other equipment. 
 
Where the meter alone has been removed, there will be a charge for resetting a meter provided for in the Schedule of Rates and 
Charges. 
 
Where the service lateral has been removed, the property owner will be responsible for having the service restored at his 
expense.36 

 

Section 15 - Change in Size of Service 
 
Changes in the size of standard service requested by the owner of the premises or required by the Agency will be made subject 
to the following provisions: 
 
A. Reduction in Size of Service 

A requested change to a smaller size service must be approved by the Agency and will be made without charge to the 
applicant. 

 
Customers will be allowed to reduce the size of their water meter, without relinquishing their right to the original 
larger service size.  When water service is originally established, all connection fees and system capacity charges 
relating to that size service are paid to the Agency.  If, at a later date, a customer elects to reduce the size of the service, 
they will continue to have the right to the larger service size.37 

 
B. Increase in Size of Service 

A requested increase in the size of a service must be approved by the Agency.  The installation of the larger service 
shall be made by a licensed contractor at the property owner’s expense. 

 
If the customer’s rate of consumption results in excessive wear of the meter or is such that the meter is unable to 
measure the flow of water accurately, the Agency may increase the size of the service and require the customer to pay 
the actual installation costs. 38 
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It is the responsibility of the Agency to recover the cost of providing service to a customer.  As such, at the time a 
meter is reinstalled or enlarged in size at the request of the customer, the Agency will apply the charges established 
by the Board of Directors in effect at the time for resetting a meter and/or turning on the service, and any other 
applicable charges. 39  

 
In addition, interim compliance with the Agency’s Rules and Regulations, Section 24, ‘Control of Backflow and 
Cross-Connections,’ involving voluntary removal of a meter, shall not constitute the abandonment of the customer’s 
right to the larger size service. 40  

 

Section 16 - Location of Service 
 
In general, the meter shall be installed in the area between the curb line and the customer’s premises, within the street right of 
way, at the point specified by the applicant.  In all cases, whether initial installation or relocation of existing service, the specific 
location of the meter shall be subject to Agency approval. 
 
All meters installed outside the street right of way will require easements for access and maintenance dedicated to the Agency. 
 
When the location of a meter is outside the street right of way, installation of a radio-read meter (or other type of meter 
facilitating automated data collection) will be required.41 

 
Section 17 - Service Line Replacement42 
 
Whenever it is known to Agency personnel that scheduled work on a main line (replacement, leak repair, branching, etc.) will 
require disconnecting a service line for an account that has been inactive for more than twelve (12) months, the owner of the 
affected property will be notified in writing and advised that their service line will be disconnected.43 
 
For emergency work on a main line which requires disconnecting a service line for an account that has been inactive for more 
than twelve (12) months, or when the existence of a service line for an account that has been inactive for more than twelve (12) 
months is not known to Agency personnel and its disconnection is required as a part of scheduled main line work, the owner 
of the affected property will be notified in writing that their service line has been disconnected.  If the property owner requests 
that service be reactivated within six (6) months of the date of the service line disconnection, it will be reconnected by Agency 
personnel at no expense to the property owner.  If service reactivation is not requested within six (6) months of the date of the 
service line disconnection, the property owner will be responsible for the expense of reconnecting or replacing (at the Agency’s 
discretion) the service line, if needed in the future, in accordance with the Agency's Rules & Regulations, except that a System 
Capacity Charge will not be levied if it had been previously paid. 
 
When a customer’s service line and meter are moved to a new location as part of a Agency maintenance or pipe replacement 
project, the Agency will guarantee the new line against defects or failure for a period of one year from the date the relocation 
is completed.  Thereafter, the property owner will be responsible for its maintenance or replacement, as specified in Section 
23, hereof..44 

 

Section 18 - Use and Resale of Water 
 
Where two adjoining parcels that are owned by the same individual and both parcels have a residence built on them, each parcel 
must be served by a separate meter. 
 

                                                 
39  Paragraph added 7/28/94 
40  Paragraph added 7/28/94 
41  Paragraph added 2/27/01 
42  Section added 6/27/95, amended 3/26/96 
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Rules and Regulation – Part A 
 

 
South Feather Water and Power  Page 21 

Where two adjoining parcels are owned by the same individual with a residence or other appropriately zoned structure(s) built 
on one and the other being vacant, both parcels may be served from a single meter as long as both parcels are within the 
boundaries of the Agency and have an approved application for service specifying all of the parcels that will be served by the 
single meter. 
 
Where two or more adjoining parcels that are within the boundaries of the Agency are owned by the same individual and used 
for multi-residential, commercial or industrial purposes, all parcels may be served from a single meter with an approved 
application for service specifying all of the parcels that will be served by the single meter. 
 
The customer shall not permit the use of any of the water received by him from the Agency on any premises other than those 
specified in his application for service. 
 
No water received from the Agency may be resold without special approval from the Agency. 

 

Section 19 - Use of Unusually Large Quantities of Water 
 
Arrangements shall be made with the Agency prior to using an unusually large quantity of water (e.g., filling swimming pools).  
Agency approval may be given provided delivery of the unusually large amount of water through the Agency’s facilities can 
be accomplished safely and without inconvenience to other customers.45 

 

Section 20 - Meter Tests 
 
A customer who questions the accuracy of the meter serving his premises may request a test of its registration and witness the 
test if he so desires. 
 
A meter test will be performed at Agency expense if, in the opinion of the Agency, preliminary examination reveals evidence 
of inaccuracy.  Any demand for a meter test in the absence of such evidence will require pre-payment of the testing charge set 
forth in the Schedule of Rates and Charges. 
 
If the meter is found to register more than two percent fast, the Agency will return the charge for the test and adjust the billing.  
The period covered by the billing adjustment shall not exceed the preceding three (3) months, unless the duration of fast meter 
registration can be determined. 
 
If the meter registers within the limit of error specified above, the testing charge will be retained by the Agency to offset the 
costs. 

 

Section 21 - Water Supply and Interruption of Delivery 
 
The Agency will exercise reasonable diligence and care to deliver to customers a continuous and sufficient supply of water 
under proper pressure at the meter.  However, the Agency will not be liable for interruption, shortage, or insufficiency of supply 
of for any loss or damage occasioned thereby. 
 
For purposes of making repairs or installing improvements to the systems, the Agency shall have the right to temporarily 
suspend the delivery of water.  Repairs or improvements will be performed as rapidly as may be practicable and so far as 
possible at times that will cause the least inconvenience to the customers concerned.  The Agency shall not be liable for any 
loss or damage occasioned by such suspension of service. 

 

Section 22 - Agency Equipment on Customers Premises 
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All service pipe and equipment needed to serve a customer up to and including the meter and backflow prevention assembly 
shall be owned by the Agency whether installed:  (1) on public or private property; or, (2) at applicant or Agency expense.46 
 
Agency equipment required for service that is installed on customer’s premises may be repaired, replaced, or removed by the 
Agency without the consent of the customer.  Authorized representatives of the Agency shall have the right of access to such 
equipment for any purpose reasonably connected with furnishing service.  The Agency will make no payment for placing or 
maintaining such equipment on the customer’s premises. 
 
The customer shall exercise care to prevent damage to or interference with the operation or servicing of Agency equipment.  
The customer shall be liable for any damage to Agency-owned meters, backflow prevention assemblies, locks, or other 
equipment that is caused by himself or his tenants, agents, employees, contractors, licensees, or permittees, and must promptly 
reimburse the Agency on presentation of a bill for any such damage.47 
 
The Agency shall not be responsible for any loss or damage caused by the negligence, want of proper care, or wrongful act of 
the customer or any of his tenants, agents, employees, contractors, licensees, or permittees in installing, maintaining, using, 
operating, or interfering with any water receiving equipment.  Furthermore, the Agency shall not be responsible for damage 
caused by faucets, valves, and other equipment that may be open at any time that water is turned on at the meter. 

 

Section 23 - Responsibility for Water Receiving Equipment 
 
The customer shall furnish and install at his own risk and expense that portion of the water system that begins at the outlet side 
of the meter.  Such water receiving equipment shall remain the property of the customer and he shall be responsible for its 
maintenance and repair.  The Agency shall have the right to require the customer to adjust, replace, or discontinue using any 
water receiving or regulating equipment on his side of the meter which disturbs or inconveniences other customers. 
 
The customer shall be responsible for connecting his pipeline to the Agency’s meter. 
 
The customer shall be responsible for installing and maintaining water pressure regulators and relief valves.  The equipment 
shall be installed on the customer’s side of the meter and at his own risk and expense. 
 
The Agency shall not be responsible for any loss or damage caused by the negligence, want of proper care, or wrongful act of 
the customer or any of his tenants, agents, employees, contractors, licensees, or permittees in installing, maintaining, using, 
operating, or interfering with any water receiving equipment.  Furthermore, the Agency shall not be responsible for damage 
caused by faucets, valves, and other equipment which may be open at any time that water is turned on at the meter. 

 

Section 24 - Prevention of Ground Wire Attachments 
 
The Agency is not responsible for providing an electrical ground through water service equipment.  Accordingly, customers 
are cautioned not to attach any ground wiring to plumbing that is or may be connected to Agency service equipment.  The 
Agency may hold the customer liable for any damage to its property resulting from a ground wire attachment. 

 

Section 25 - Control of Backflow and Cross-connections48 
 
The South Feather Water and Power Agency has been directed by the State of California to institute a cross-connection control 
program - California Administrative Code, Title 17, Chapter V, Section 7583-7622, inclusive.  In accordance therewith, the 
Agency will maintain no water connection to any property unless the public water supply is adequately protected.  This 
regulation supplements local plumbing regulations, codes or regulations of the State Board of Public Health relating to water 
supply. 
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A. Purpose.  The purpose of this Ordinance is: 
 

1.  To protect the potable water supply of the South Feather Water and Power Agency from the possibility of 
contamination or pollution by isolating within the consumer's internal distribution system or the consumer's 
private water system such contaminants or pollutants which could backflow into the Agency's water system; and, 

 
2.  To promote the elimination or control of cross-connections, actual or potential, between the consumer's internal 

potable water system and any non-potable water system. 
 
B. Responsibility.   
 

The South Feather Water and Power Agency shall make every reasonable effort to protect its public potable water 
distribution system from contamination or pollution due to the backflow of contaminants or pollutants from water 
service connections. 
 
Because the Agency is required to inspect and maintain all backflow prevention assemblies covered in this section, 
all necessary parts and fittings will be supplied by the Agency, and only Agency personnel are authorized to perform 
the installation.49 

 
If the Agency determines that an approved backflow prevention assembly is needed at a consumer's existing water 
service connection or within the consumer's existing private water system to eliminate an actual or potential cross-
connection between the consumer’s internal potable water system and any other water source, a written notice of the 
requirement will be sent.  The consumer will be given a reasonable amount of time to authorize the Agency to install 
the required backflow prevention assembly, including payment of a deposit equal to the estimated cost of installation.  
All costs associated with said installation shall be the consumer’s responsibility, and shall include the cost for all parts 
and fittings, as well as all labor and equipment.  Failure by the property owner to comply with the requirements 
specified herein shall ultimately require discontinuing water service to the property until the requirements have been 
satisfactorily met.50 
 
Backflow protection is required in conjunction with the installation of new service facilities.  All costs associated with 
said installation shall be the responsibility of the property owner, and shall be that amount identified herein as the 
“Residential Meter/Backflow Fee” (see Part D – Water Rates). 
 
Backflow protection is also required when a service is reactivated after being discontinued for more than 60 days.   If 
an approved backflow device does not exist, Agency personnel, at the property owner’s expense, shall install the 
required device(s) prior to reactivating the service.  In this specific instance, the property owner shall be charged only 
the cost of parts and fittings.  Payment of said cost is required in advance of the installation.51 

 
C. Definitions 
 

1.  Air gap.  The term "air gap" shall mean a physical separation between the free flowing discharge end of a potable 
water supply pipeline and an open or non-pressure receiving vessel.  An "approved" air gap shall be at least double 
the diameter of the supply pipe measured vertically above the overflow rim of the vessel - in no case less than 1 
inch (2.54 cm). 

 
2. Approved 

 
a. The term "approved," as herein used in reference to a water supply, shall mean a water supply that has been 

approved by the health agency having jurisdiction (State Department of Health Services or the Butte 
County Health Department). 

 
b. The term "approved," as herein used in reference to an air gap, a reduced pressure principle backflow 

prevention assembly or other backflow prevention assemblies or methods, shall mean an approval by the 
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Agency and the administrative authority having jurisdiction (State Department of Health Services or the 
Butte County Health Department).52 

 
3. Auxiliary Water Supply.  Any water supply on, or available to the premises other than the Agency's approved 

public water supply, will be considered as an "auxiliary water supply." Auxiliary water supplies may include 
another purveyor's public potable water supply, or any natural source such as a well, spring, river, stream, pond, 
etc., or used waters or industrial fluids.  These waters may be contaminated or polluted or they may be 
objectionable and constitute an unacceptable water source over which the water purveyor does not have sanitary 
control. 

 
4. Backflow.  The term "backflow" shall mean the undesirable reversal of flow of water or mixtures of water and 

other liquids, gases or other substances into the Agency's distribution pipes of the potable supply of water from 
any source or sources.- see "back siphonage" (7, below) and "back pressure" (6, below). 

 
5. Backflow Preventer.  The term "backflow preventer" shall mean an assembly or means designed to prevent 

backflow. 
 
6. Back pressure.  The term "back pressure" shall mean any increase of pressure in the downstream piping system 

(by pump, elevation of piping, or steam and/or air pressure) above the supply pressure at a site, which would 
cause, or tend to cause, a reversal of the normal direction of flow. 

 
7. Back siphonage.  The term "back siphonage" shall mean a form of backflow due to a reduction in system pressure, 

which causes a sub-atmospheric pressure to exist at a site in the water system. 
 
8. Contamination.  The term "contamination" shall mean an impairment of the quality of the water that creates an 

actual hazard to the public health through poisoning or through the spread of disease. 
 
9. Cross-Connection.  The term "cross-connection" shall mean any unprotected actual or potential connection 

between a public or a consumer's potable water system and any other source or system through which it is possible 
to introduce into any part of the potable system any used water, industrial fluid, gas, or substance other than the 
intended potable water with which the system is supplied.  Bypass arrangements, jumper connections, removable 
sections, swivel or change-over devices and other temporary or permanent devices through which, or because of 
which, backflow can or may occur are considered to be cross-connections. 

 
a. The term "direct cross-connection" shall mean a cross-connection that is subject to both back siphonage 

and backpressure. 
 
b. The term "indirect cross-connection" shall mean a cross-connection that is subject to back siphonage only. 

 
10. Cross-Connections - Controlled.  A connection between a potable water system and a non-potable water system 

with an approved backflow prevention assembly properly installed and maintained so that it will continuously 
afford protection commensurate with the degree of hazard. 

 
11. Hazard, Degree of. The term "degree of hazard" shall mean either a pollution or contamination hazard, and is 

derived from the evaluation of conditions within a system. 
 
12. Hazard - Health.  The term "health hazard" shall mean an actual or potential threat of contamination of a physical 

or toxic nature to the public potable water system or the consumer' s potable water system that would be a danger 
to health. 

 
13. Hazard - Plumbing.  The term "plumbing hazard" shall mean an internal or plumbing type cross-connection in a 

consumer' s potable water system that may be either a pollution or a contamination type hazard.  This includes, 
but is not limited to, cross-connections to toilets, sinks, lavatories, wash trays and lawn sprinkling systems.  
Plumbing type cross-connections can be located in many types of structures including homes, apartment houses, 
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hotels and commercial or industrial establishments.  Such a connection, if permitted to exist, must be properly 
protected by an appropriate type of backflow prevention assembly. 

 
14. Hazard - Pollution.  The term "pollution hazard" shall mean an actual or potential threat to the physical properties 

of the water system or the potability of the public or the consumer's potable water system but which would not 
constitute a health or system hazard.  The maximum degree or intensity of pollution to which the potable water 
system could be degraded under this definition would cause a nuisance or be aesthetically objectionable or could 
cause minor damage to the system or its appurtenances. 

 
15. Hazard - System.  The term "system hazard" shall mean an actual or potential threat of severe danger to the 

physical properties of the public or the consumer' s potable water system or of a pollution or contamination which 
would have a protracted effect on the quality of the potable water in the system. 

 
16. Industrial Fluids.  The term "industrial fluids" shall mean any fluid or solution which may be chemically, 

biologically or otherwise contaminated or polluted in a form or concentration which would constitute a health, 
system, pollution or plumbing hazard if introduced into an approved water supply.  This may include, but not be 
limited to: polluted or contaminated used waters; all types of process waters and "used waters" originating from 
the public potable water system which may deteriorate in sanitary quality; chemicals in fluid form; plating acids 
and alkalis; circulated cooling waters connected to an open cooling tower and/or cooling waters that are 
chemically or biologically treated or stabilized with toxic substances; contaminated natural waters such as from 
wells, springs, streams, rivers, bays, harbors, seas, irrigation canals or systems, etc.; oils, gases, glycerin, paraffin, 
caustic and acid solutions and other liquid and gaseous fluids used industrially, for other processes, or for fire 
fighting purposes. 

 
17. Pollution.  The term "pollution" shall mean an impairment of the quality of the water to a degree which does not 

create a hazard to the public health but which does adversely and unreasonably affect the aesthetic qualities of 
such waters for domestic use. 

 
18. Reduced Pressure Principle Backflow Prevention Assembly.  This term shall mean an assembly containing two 

independently acting approved check valves, together with a hydraulically operating, mechanically independent 
pressure differential relief valve located between the check valves and at the same time below the first check 
valve.  The unit shall include properly located resilient seated test cocks and tightly closing resilient seated shutoff 
valves at each end of the assembly.  This assembly is designed to protect against a pollutant or a contaminant) .  
This assembly shall not be used for backflow protection of sewage or reclaimed water, unless approved by the 
administrative authority (State Department of Health Services or the Butte County Health Department). 

 
19. System Protection.  The term "system protection" shall mean the appropriate type or method of backflow 

protection at the service connection, commensurate with the degree of hazard of the consumer's potable water 
system. 

 
20. Water - Non-potable.  The term "non-potable water" shall mean a water supply that has not been approved for 

human consumption by the health agency having jurisdiction. 
 
21. Water - Potable.  The term "potable water" shall mean any public potable water supply that has been investigated 

and approved by the health agency and operating under a valid health permit.  In determining what constitutes an 
approved water supply, the health agency has final judgment as to its safety and potability. 

 
22. Water - Service Connection.  The term "service connection" shall mean the terminal end of a service connection 

from the public potable water system, (i.e., where the Agency ceases to have jurisdiction and sanitary control of 
the water at its point of delivery to the consumer's water system).  If a water meter is installed at the end of the 
service connection, then the service connection shall mean the downstream end of the water meter.  Where a 
backflow device is installed beyond the meter, then the service connection shall mean the downstream end of the 
backflow device.53 
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D. Cross-connection Protection Requirements 
 

1. Unprotected cross-connections with the public water supply are prohibited. 
 

2. Whenever backflow protection has been found necessary, the Agency will require the property owner to have an 
approved backflow prevention assembly installed by the Agency.  Continued service is conditional upon their 
compliance.54 

 
3. Wherever backflow protection has been found necessary on a water supply line entering a property, then any and 

all water supply lines from the Agency's mains entering this property shall be protected by an approved backflow 
prevention assembly.  The type of assembly to be installed will be in accordance with the requirements of this 
ordinance. 

 
4. Agency personnel shall have reasonable access to property receiving water service for purposes relating to 

furnishing water service, including inspection of piping and equipment to determine backflow and cross-
connection compliance. 

 
5. The property owner shall provide and maintain reasonable access for Agency representatives to all service 

connections, meters, backflow devices, or their facilities pertinent to water service installed on the property. 
 
E. Where Protection Is Required 

 
1. Each new service connection to the Agency water system, and each previously discontinued service that is 

reactivated, shall be protected against backflow of water from the property into the public water system.55 
 
2. Each service connection from the Agency water system for supplying water to property having an auxiliary water 

supply shall be protected against backflow of water from the property into the public water system.  
 
3. Each service connection from the Agency water system for supplying water to any property on which any 

substance is handled in such fashion as may allow its entry into the Agency's system.  This shall include the 
handling of process waters and waters originating from the Agency water system which have been subjected to 
deterioration in sanitary quality. 

 
4. Backflow prevention assemblies shall be installed on the service connection to any property having (a) internal 

cross-connections that cannot be permanently corrected and controlled to the satisfaction of the state or local 
health department and the Agency, or (b) intricate plumbing and piping arrangements or where entry to all 
portions of the premises is not readily accessible for inspection purposes, making it impracticable or impossible 
to ascertain whether or not cross-connections exist. 

 
5. Any parcel that has multiple service laterals connected to Agency mains shall have backflow prevention 

assemblies installed on each meter. 
 
6. Backflow prevention assemblies shall be installed on the service connection to any property having a pump 

connected to the domestic system. 
 
7. Any property where there is a repeated history of cross-connections being established or re-established shall be 

required to install a backflow prevention assembly on all domestic service connections serving that property. 
 
8. Backflow prevention assemblies shall be installed on the service connection to any property having a fire sprinkler 

system.  Plans for such installations shall be reviewed and approved prior to installation by the local fire agency. 
 

F. Type of Backflow Protection Required 
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1. The type of system protection that shall be provided to prevent backflow into the approved water supply shall be 
commensurate with the degree of hazard that exists on the consumer's property.  The type of protective assembly 
that may be required (listed in an increasing level of protection) includes:  Reduced Pressure Principle Backflow 
Prevention Assembly (RP), and an Air-gap separation (AG).  The water user may choose a higher level of 
protection than required by the Agency.  The minimum type of backflow protection required to protect the 
approved water supply at the user's water connection is a reduced pressure principle (RP) device.56  

 
G. Backflow Prevention Assemblies 
  

1. Only backflow prevention assemblies that have been approved by the Agency shall be acceptable for installation 
by a water user connected to the Agency's potable water system. 

 
2. The Agency will provide an approved backflow prevention assembly at the customer’s expense.57 
 
3. Backflow prevention assemblies shall be installed in a manner prescribed as follows: 
 

a. Location of the assemblies should be as close as practical to the user's connection.  The Agency shall have 
the final authority in determining the required location of a backflow prevention assembly. 

 
b. Air-gap separation (AG).  The air-gap separation shall be located on the user's side of the service 

connection, and as close to it as is practical.  All piping from the service connection to the receiving tank 
shall be above grade and entirely visible.  No water use shall be provided from any point between the 
service connection and the air-gap separation.  The water inlet piping shall terminate a distance of a least 
two (2) pipe diameters of the supply inlet, but in no case less than one (1) inch, above the overflow rim of 
the receiving tank. 

 
c. Reduced pressure principle backflow prevention assembly (RP).  The approved reduced pressure principal 

backflow prevention assembly shall be installed on the user's side of the service connection, and as close to 
it as is practical.  The assembly shall be installed a minimum of twelve (12) inches above grade and not 
more than thirty-six (36) inches above grade measured from the bottom of the assembly and with a 
minimum of twelve (12) inches side clearance.  The assembly shall be installed so that it is readily 
accessible for maintenance and testing.  There shall be no branch lines at any point between the service 
connection and the RP assembly.  The assembly shall be protected from freezing in a manner approved by 
the Agency. 

 
H. Testing and Maintenance 
 

1. Each backflow prevention assembly must be kept in working order, which requires testing and/or inspection at 
least once each year.  

 
2. The Agency will perform all preventive maintenance and testing of the device at a cost established from time to 

time by the Board of Directors.  Repairs - including parts and labor - will be made on items considered to be from 
"normal deterioration," but will not cover the cost to repair vandalism.  The Agency will perform annual testing 
and file the required reports with the State Department of Public Health.58 

 
A monthly charge for maintenance and testing of the device will be added to the property owner’s water bill in 
accordance with the schedule - ‘Backflow Maintenance Charges’ - shown at the end of these Rules and 
Regulations.  Said monthly charge will not be assessed to inactive accounts.59 

 
4. Approval must be obtained from the Agency before a backflow prevention assembly is removed, relocated, or 

replaced. Any expense incurred by the Agency regarding such actions will be the responsibility of the property 
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a. Relocation:  An assembly may be relocated following confirmation by the Agency that the relocation will 
continue to provide the required protection and satisfy installation requirements.  A retest will be required 
following the relocation of the assembly. 

 
b. Repair:  An assembly may be removed for repair, provided the water use is either discontinued until repair 

is completed and the assembly is returned to service, or the service connection is equipped with other 
backflow protection approved by the Agency.  A retest will be required following the repair of the 
assembly. 

 
c. Replacement:  An assembly may be removed and replaced provided the water use is discontinued until the 

replacement assembly is installed.  Agency personnel will perform all replacement.60 
 

5. If a service becomes inactive after a backflow device has been installed, and it remains inactive for more than 12 
months, the Agency may remove the device to minimize future maintenance efforts and expense.  The service 
may not be reactivated until the backflow device is reinstalled, and the cost to reinstall the backflow device (labor, 
equipment and incidental parts – not the cost of the device) will be charged to the account upon its reactivation.61 

 
I. Administrative Procedures 
 

1. The Agency may require an on-premise inspection to evaluate cross-connection hazards.  The Agency will 
transmit a written notice requesting an inspection appointment to each affected water user.  Any water user who 
cannot or will not allow an on-premise inspection of their piping system shall be required to install the backflow 
prevention assembly the Agency considers necessary, and/or be subject to termination of water service.. 

 
2. The Agency may require a re-inspection for cross-connection hazards of any premise to which it serves water.  

The Agency will transmit a written notice requesting an inspection appointment to each affected water user.  Any 
water user who cannot or will not allow an on-premise inspection of his piping system shall be required to install 
the backflow prevention assembly the Agency considers necessary. 

 
3. The Agency will notify the water user of the inspection findings, listing the corrective actions to be taken, if any 

are required.  A period of 30 days will be given to complete all corrective actions required, including installation 
of backflow prevention assemblies.  The Agency shall not be responsible for any unidentified plumbing hazards 
that may result in damage or injury.  This period may be extended at the discretion of the General Manager. 

 
4. A second notice will be sent to each water user who does not take the required corrective actions prescribed in 

the first notice within the 30 days period allowed.  The second notice will give the water user a 15-day period to 
take the required corrective action.  If no action is taken within the 15-day period the Agency may terminate water 
service to the affected water user until the required corrective actions are taken. 

 
5. Final written notification shall be sent to the customer by both certified and regular mail with a minimum of 7 

calendar days to respond prior to shut-off. 
 
6. A "door-hanger" notifying of the impending service termination will be delivered to the service address a 

minimum of 24 hours prior to shut-off. 
 
7. When the Agency encounters water uses that represent a clear and immediate hazard to the potable water supply 

that cannot be immediately abated, the Agency shall notify the consumer, if possible, before terminating water 
service until the hazard is abated. 

 

Section 26 - Customer Account Records 
 
Records of customer accounts with the Agency are to be considered confidential in nature and are not to be made available for 
inspection by unauthorized persons. 
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PART B - IRRIGATION WATER SERVICE 
 
WARNING:  untreated or raw water is provided from the Agency system for irrigation purposes only.  Ditch water or piped 
raw water does not meet federal or state standards for domestic water.  Irrigation water is not for domestic use. 
 

Section 1 - Applying for Service 
 
Applications for irrigation water service to a parcel with a residence must show proof of a domestic water source before the 
Agency will accept the application. 
 
Applications for irrigation water service shall be made in person by the property owner.  To open an account for water service 
the signature of the property owner is required. 
 
Applications are taken at the business office of the Agency.  The Agency’s requirements for the type of service desired must 
be met before an application will be approved. 
 

Section 2 - Water Entitlement 
 
No water will be served to lands outside the Agency except to lands having a proven enforceable legal right to service.  Any 
exceptions to this rule can only be by action of the Board of Directors. 
 
A. Agency Members 
 

Each parcel of land within the Agency is entitled to its proportionate share of water available within the capacities of 
the Agency’s conduits and upon payment of all applicable fees and charges. 
 
Past water service that has been inactive and discontinued for at least one year may be required to wait until adequate 
capacity is available before the service can be reactivated. 

 
B. Railroad Commission Act 
 

As to land located outside the boundaries of the Agency holding a right to receive water under the terms of the 1922 
Railroad Commission Order No. 1133462, the Agency has no means of adding delinquent charges to the tax bill.  
Therefore, on any lands requesting service, the landowner must pay a deposit, prior to receipt of water service, in an 
amount estimated by Agency staff as a two-month bill.  The deposit will not earn interest. 
 
Thereafter, the landowner must pay bills as presented and must always retain on deposit an amount sufficient to cover 
a one-month billing.  Any deposit remaining at the end of the irrigation season will be refunded to the landowner. 

 
C. Surplus Water 
 

Surplus water purchases will be in accordance with the Surplus Water Agreement executed by the Agency and 
Applicant. 

 

                                                 
62  Amended 11/27/01 
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Section 3 - Irrigation Water Service 
A. Existing Service 
 

Irrigation water service may be granted where a measuring device exists at the property requesting service and the 
Agency’s requirements are met as stated in these regulations. 

B. New Service 
 
Irrigation water service may be granted provided the applicant meets the Agency’s general requirements as stated elsewhere in 
these regulations and: 
 

1. Water is available in the Agency’s ditch or raw water pipe. 
 
2. The size of the service is approved by the Agency; and  
 
3. The applicable Agency charges have been paid. 

 
The Agency at the expense of the applicant shall install the measuring device.63 

 
If the property requesting irrigation water is not adjacent to a Agency ditch or raw water pipe, a recorded easement for 
conveying water must be obtained by the property owner requesting water service. 
 
C. Water Use for Residential Purposes 
 
Congress adopted the Safe Drinking Water Act (SDWA) in 1986 and amended it in 1996 by changing the definition of a public 
water system to include any system delivering raw water for human consumption to at least 15 residences or to 25 individuals 
via any “constructed conveyances”, including ditches, canals, and flumes, as well as any pipeline (refer to Public Law 104-
182).  The new definition of a public water system applies even to systems using canals, ditches and natural waterways to 
transport irrigation water if they meet the threshold number of residential connections.  As a result, the Agency’s raw water 
system is classified as a public water supply and, therefore, must comply with the law’s prohibition against the use of untreated, 
or under-treated water for human consumption. 
 
Therefore, effective January 1, 2005, use of raw water for drinking and cooking is prohibited for all existing Agency customers, 
unless processed by an approved home-treatment facility as provided in this subsection. 
 

1. Applications for New Water Service. 
 

a. As specified in Part B Section 1, herein, applications for irrigation (raw-water) service to a parcel with a 
residence must show proof of a domestic water source before the Agency will accept the application. 

 
b. The use of commercially bottled water, hauled treated water, or the use of home-treatment facilities will not 

qualify as a “domestic water source” for the purpose of qualifying for a new raw-water service application. 
 

2. Water for Drinking or Cooking 
 

Parcels with a residence(s) served as existing Agency raw-water customers who are not using a well or spring for all 
drinking and cooking needs must take service to the residence from a public, potable, water system; use 
commercially bottled water or hauled treated water, or use water processed by an approved home-treatment facility. 
 

a. Commercially Bottled or Hauled Treated Water 
 
Commercially bottled or hauled treated water used for drinking or cooking must be delivered to the 
customer’s parcel by a commercial distributor who has been approved by the General Manager and who 
has agreed in writing to provide verification of service to Agency in accordance with Agency 
specifications. 

                                                 
63  Paragraph amended 2/27/96 
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b. Home-Treatment Facility 

 
The California State Department of Health Services must approve a home-treatment facility used to 
produce water for drinking or cooking.  The facility must be operated, monitored and maintained by the 
Agency or its agent under contract with the served property’s owner. 

 
3. Cost and Expense 

 
All costs for providing water for drinking and cooking, including Agency costs, will be the responsibility of the property 
owner. 
 
Section 4 - Responsibilities of Irrigation Water Users 
 
Water must not be used wastefully.  Any user may be refused water until conditions causing waste of water or injury to others 
is remedied. 
 
All orders for irrigation service from the Agency’s ditch system are to be placed through the Irrigation phone 533-7240, between 
the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 12:00 noon, weekdays only. 
 
Orders for delivery or shut-off must be made at least twenty-four (24) hours before the delivery or shut-off is to be made. 
 
A. Ditch System 
 
Before water is turned into a conduit not owned by the Agency, the conduit shall be in proper condition to receive water.  All 
such conduits must be kept free from weeds and other obstructions and shall be of sufficient capacity and properly constructed 
and maintained to carry the head of water applied for without danger of breaks, overflow, or undue seepage.  If not so 
unobstructed, constructed, and maintained, the Manager may shut off the delivery of water thereto.  The Manager may order 
any such conduit cleaned, repaired, and reconstructed if necessary, before water is made available.  Failure to comply with the 
order of the Manager shall relieve the Agency of any liability or responsibility for not delivering water.  Nothing herein shall 
be construed as an assumption of liability on the part of the Agency, its Directors, officers or employees for any damages 
occasioned by reason of improper construction, maintenance, or use of any private conduit or by reason of permitting the flow 
of water or turning water therein.  The Agency is not responsible for maintenance of conduits in does not own. 
 
B. Pipe System 

 
1. Responsibility.  All water facilities on the water user’s side of the meter are the responsibility of property owner 

and water user.  The Agency is not responsible for loss of water or damage that might be caused by excessive 
pressure, loss of pressure or any lack or failure of any Agency conduits, valves, regulators or other facilities.  It 
is the property owner’s responsibility to install and maintain safety devices to protect against hazards. 

 
2. Owner Facility Repairs.  The Agency assumes no responsibility for any repairs beyond the water user’s meter.  

Responsibility for making on-the-spot repairs to privately owned systems rests with the water user.  
 

Section 5 - Pumping From Agency Ditch or Water Pipe 
 
Pumps taking suction from the Agency facility require an encroachment permit.  Applicant shall submit engineered plans and 
specifications for the proposed installation to the Agency. 
 
Irrigation customers pumping water from SFWPA facilities shall be responsible for any damage to their pump(s) resulting from 
the absence of water in said facilities.  All private pumps should be equipped with low-water switches (pressure, float, etc.).64 
 

                                                 
64 Paragraph added 8/22/00 
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Section 6 - Maintenance of Private Pipelines 
 
A water measuring device/meter will be installed on the Agency’s facility at the point where the private line is attached.  
Immediately in front of the measuring device, a valve will be installed to allow for water to be turned off in the event of a 
pipeline breakage.  If the line is not attached, a water box would be installed. 
 
If the private line serves more than one party, an additional device/meter shall be installed at that point. 
 
It is recommended that private parties using one common pipeline have a maintenance agreement, which includes a response 
plan in the event of breakage. 
 
In the event of breakage, water loss is charged to the landowner.  Therefore, it is incumbent upon landowners receiving Agency 
water through their privately owned pipelines to keep them in good repair, have a rapid response plan in case of breakage and 
have an agreement that clearly spells out who is responsible for liability. 
 

Section 7 - Control of Agency Facilities 
 
No fence shall be built, or trees or vines or other obstruction placed on any right of way easement or property belonging to the 
Agency without written permission of the Agency.  Meters must not be obstructed by structures, plantings of trees, shrubs and 
other vegetation.  Suitable access for the meter reader shall be maintained.  If, after notice to user, the obstruction is not 
removed, the Agency may remove the obstruction or the meter at the expense of the user. 
 
Easements and rights of way for Agency canals, ditches and pipelines which have been acquired by prescriptive use include 
sufficient width on either side of said canal, ditch or pipeline to accommodate necessary equipment and personnel.  The 
Manager shall determine the appropriate width necessary for maintenance of said canal, ditch, or pipeline. 
 
Crossings or culverts are allowed to be constructed within the Agency’s right of way.  All crossings or culverts shall be at the 
expense of the interested landowners and to the Agency’s specifications.  Agency encroachments permits for such work shall 
be obtained from the Agency prior to commencing such work. 
 
The Agency may shut off water at any time for making repairs or improvements or for other purposes.  Except in the case of 
an emergency or disruptions in service beyond the Agency’s control, the Agency will attempt to give a minimum 48-hour 
notice by telephone to customers who might be affected by the temporary absence of water in a ditch resulting from routine 
maintenance.  The notice will include the beginning time and estimated length of the shut off. 65 
 
Except for routine maintenance (e.g., repair of minor leaks, ditch cleaning by hand or with a “bobcat” excavator, repairing 
existing flumes, repairing existing siphons, etc.), property owners will be notified by telephone a minimum of five days in 
advance when major repair or improvement projects are planned for irrigation-system facilities within the boundaries of their 
property.  The notification will inform owners of the extent of the work proposed.66 
 
Only Agency employees have authority to open, close, or adjust diverting valves and gates in Agency works.  Diverting gates, 
valves and meters may be equipped with locks, and the keys shall be under the control of the Agency. 
 
The operation and control of the works of the Agency are under the exclusive management and control of the Manger and no 
person other than authorized Agency employees shall do any of the following: 
 

1. Change, disturb or tamper with any Agency works or make any opening therein or change any setting of control 
devices. 

 
2. Place, construct or install any opening, take out pipe, siphon, pump, culvert, bridge, dam wall or other obstruction 

or structure in any Agency conduit or works, without the express approval of the Manager. 
3. Take or divert water from Agency works or from conduits supplied by the Agency without permission of the 

Manager or ditchtender in charge. 

                                                 
65  Amended 11/27/01 
66  Amended 11/27/01 
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4. Use a Agency conduit as an irrigation service ditch. 

Section 8 - Payment of Bills 
 
Bills are due and payable on the date they are mailed from the Agency Office, and are delinquent twenty-five (25) days 
thereafter.  A delinquency penalty charge as determined by the Board of Directors and as shown herein in the schedule of Fees 
and Charges, will be applied to each account’s unpaid balance when it becomes delinquent and monthly thereafter.67 
 
Water service accounts will only be established in the name of the property owner.  Landlords who make arrangements with 
their tenants to pay the monthly water bill may request that the bill be sent to their tenant’s address.  Nevertheless, the landlord 
is ultimately responsible for payment delinquencies.  Delinquency notices will be sent to landlords upon their request.68 
 

Section 9 - Delinquent Accounts 
 
Accounts are delinquent twenty-five (25) days after the bill is mailed from the Agency Office.  Water services shall be 
discontinued if an account remains delinquent fifty (50) days after the bill is mailed from the Agency Office.  A delinquency 
‘shut-off’ notice will be mailed to the customer and the property owner (if the customer is not the owner) stating the date the 
water service will be discontinued if the delinquent portion of the account remains unpaid.  The notice will provide a minimum 
of five (5) days warning.  A second shutoff notice will be posted conspicuously at the account address a minimum of forty-
eight (48) hours prior to the scheduled delinquency shutoff.69 
 
Water services shall be discontinued if the delinquent account balance has not been paid prior to the scheduled shutoff date.  
Once a service has been discontinued, the entire account balance must be paid prior to service being restored.70 
 

Section 10 - Turn-on Charge 
 
When a shutoff notice is posted at the account address, a ‘Shutoff Notice Service Fee’ shall be added to the account and included 
in the delinquent balance.  Said fee shall be determined by the Board of Directors, and is shown herein in the schedule of Fees 
and Charges.71   
 
When a water service is discontinued for delinquency a ‘Meter Lock Service Fee’ shall be added to the account and included 
in the delinquent balance.  Said fee shall be determined by the Board of Directors, and is shown herein in the schedule of Fees 
and Charges.  No additional fee will be assessed to restore service if the entire account balance is paid prior to said balance 
being assigned to the Butte County Tax Roll.72 
 
Agency staff may approve a special written payment arrangement for a customer which will provide an additional seven (7) 
calendar days in which payment of the delinquent portion of their account may be paid. Written payment arrangements may be 
approved which will provide an additional fourteen (14) calendar days in which payment of their entire account balance may 
be paid.  In either case, the customer must sign the payment arrangement and, by so doing, acknowledge that they are aware 
that their failure to abide by the terms of the payment arrangement will result in their water service being discontinued 
immediately and without further notice.73 
 
In the case where a delinquent bill is paid by check or credit card after the shutoff notice has been mailed, and the bank returns 
the check or denies credit, the service will be immediately discontinued without further notice.  Prior to restoration of service, 
the account’s entire balance and any bank charge for a returned check must be paid in cash. 
 

                                                 
67  Paragraph amended 10/27/98 
68  Paragraph added 7/28/94 
69  Paragraph amended 10/27/98 and 7/22/08 
70  Paragraph added 10/27/98 
71  Paragraph added10/27/98 
72  Paragraph amended 10/27/98 
73  Paragraph added 10/27/98 
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Section 11 - Discontinuance of Service 
 
A. Reasons for Discontinuation of Water Service: 

 
1. At Customer Request 

 
Water service will be turned off on the date requested by the customer, excepting Saturdays, Sundays, and 
holidays, provided 24-hour advance notice is furnished to the Agency. 

 
The customer will be held responsible for all service rendered to his premises until the Agency has received notice 
to terminate such service.  Only written requests by the property owner will be accepted. 

 
2. For Nonpayment of Bills 

 
The Agency will discontinue water service if an account remains delinquent fifty (50) days after the bill is mailed 
from the Agency Office.74 

 
3. For Noncompliance with These Regulations 

 
Water service will be discontinued, reclassified, or removed by the Agency for failure to comply with any of the 
regulations governing water service to customers. 

 
If service is turned off for violation of regulations, the Agency may require payment of a turn-on charge as 
determined by the Board of Directors and set forth herein in the schedule of Fees and Charges in addition to other 
amounts due from the customer before restoring the service.75 

 
In the event the customer turns on the water service or allows or causes it to be turned on after it has been turned 
off for the above reasons, the Agency may again turn off the water service, and may charge and collect a turn-on 
charge for each such event in addition to other amounts due from the customer before restoring water service. 
 

B. Continuation of Monthly Service Charge 
 
The monthly service charge assessed to all accounts is for expenses incurred by the Agency which are not related to amount of 
usage - account maintenance, administration, distribution system maintenance, fire flow, etc.  These expenses continue 
throughout the year regardless of the volume any specific account uses.  It is appropriate, therefore, that the monthly service 
charge be applied to each account on a monthly basis, regardless of usage, unless the account is discontinued. 
 
Unless water is unavailable for a period of time in excess of thirty (30) days, or unless service is physically discontinued by 
Agency personnel - at either the owner’s request or the Agency’s own initiative - the monthly service charge shall continue to 
be assessed to each account. 
 

Section 12 - Use and Resale of Water 
 
Water is served to the parcels listed on the service application.  Customer shall not permit the use of any water received from 
the Agency on any parcels other than those specified in the application.  No water received from the Agency may be resold 
without special approval from the Agency. 
 

Section 13 - Flat Rate Accounts 
 
Flat rate accounts are entitled to a maximum of ¾ miner’s inch of continuous flow not to exceed one (1) acre foot of water per 
month.  The Agency does not guarantee that water is available continuously.  Flat rate accounts do not receive water after the 
close of the irrigation season established by the Agency.  Due to the seasonal nature of irrigation service from the ditch system, 

                                                 
74  Paragraph amended 10/27/98 
75  Paragraph amended 10/27/98 
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flat rate accounts are not to be used as a source of water for a home water treatment system.  Flat rate accounts are strictly for 
irrigation and are not intended to be a substitute for a domestic water account. 
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PART C – COMPLIANCE WITH AGENCY RULES76 
 
Failure or refusal of any landowner or water user to comply with these Rules, or any interference by any landowner, water user, 
his tenants, servants or employees with the right, duties or obligations of the Agency, or its employees, shall entitle the Agency 
to discontinue the service of water to the lands of such owner or user until the land owner or water users shall furnish satisfactory 
proof to the Board of his intention to comply with these Rules, and desist from such interference and has removed any default 
existing at the time service of water is discontinued. 
 

PART D – WATER RATES77 
 

Potable Water- 
Service Charge (per month) ......................................................................................................................... $1578 
Multi-Family Residential Units Service Charge ....................................................................................... $7.9079 
 (per occupied unit per month) 
Rates-of-Use (in addition to Service Charge)80: 
 First 100 Units (10,000 cubic feet) ................................................................................................. $0.42/unit 
 After First 100 Units (over 10,000 cubic feet) ................................................................................ $0.31/unit 
Oversized Meter Charge (in addition to Service Charge; not applicable to mobile home parks, apartment 

complexes, duplexes, multiple commercial units, etc.81): 
 

 Meter Size  Monthly Charge 
 1" ...................................................................................  $6.00 
 1½" ................................................................................  $16.00 
 2" ...................................................................................  $20.50 
 3" ...................................................................................  $50.00 
 4" ...................................................................................  $72.50 
 6" ...................................................................................  $105.00 

 
Oversized Meter Charges will be reduced by 50% if all watering is done between the hours of 9:00 PM and 6:00 AM 

(i.e., NO watering may be done during the day).  Customers must come to the SFWPA office and apply for this 
reduction annually. 

 

Non-Potable Water- 
Service Charge (per month) .................................................................................................................... $17.5082 
Rates-of-Use (in addition to Service Charge): 
 Miners Inch Accounts .................................................................................................................... $1.95/MI83 
 Metered (unit = 100 cubic feet) ........................................................................................................... 8.67¢84 
Flat Rate Accounts (per month) .............................................................................................................. $56.5085 
 (All non-potable rates-of-use equate to $39.00 per acre-foot.) 
 

                                                 
76   Changed from Part B, Section 14 on 2/27/01 
77  Originally affected 2/13/90, “Part D” added 6/26/01. 
78  Authorized 2/23/93; effective 3/1/93; multi-family residential units excluded as of 2/23/99. 
79  Effective 2/23/99. 
80  Amended 11/22/11 (effective 1/1/12) 
81  Effective 2/23/99. 
82  Authorized 2/23/93; effective 3/1/93; multi-family residential units excluded as of 2/23/99. 
83  Reduced from $2.25/MI on 11/22/11 to:  $2.08/MI effective 1/1/12, and $1.95/MI effective 1/1/14 
84  Reduced from 10¢ on 11/22/11to:  9.64¢ effective 1/1/12, and 8.67¢ effective 1/1/14. 
85  Authorized 3/23/93; effective 4/1/93.  Amended 3/26/96 to clarify that the flat rate is $45/month, and that flat rate customers 

also pay the $17.50/month service charge, for a total monthly rate of $62.50.  Reduced from $62.50 on 11/22/11 to:  $59.50 effective 
1/1/12, and $56.50 effective 1/1/14. 
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Fees & Charges86 
New Service Charge (installation estimates, processing, etc.) ................................................................. $4087 
Account Transfer Charge (processing, meter reading, etc.) ..................................................................... $2088 
Turn-on Charge ...................................................................................................................................... $  1789 
 (After Hours .................................................................................................................................... $ 11190) 

                                                 
86  Originally authorized  2/13/90 
87  Authorized 6/23/92; effective 7/1/92; renamed 2/27/01 
88  Effective 2/27/01 
89  Authorized 10/27/98; amended 7/22/08.  Fee to be increased annually, commencing January 1, 2009 by the same percentage 

as the annual cost-of-living adjustment granted to the Agency’s Water Treatment and Distribution Employees. 
90  Effective 2/23/99; amended 7/22/08.  Fee to be increased annually, commencing January 1, 2009 by the same percentage as 

the annual cost-of-living adjustment granted to the Agency’s Water Treatment and Distribution Employees. 
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Residential Meter/Backflow Fee ......................................................................................................... $1,13891 
Development Plan Check (of Engineer’s Estimate - potable water) ...................................................... 3% ea. 
Development Inspection Fee (of Engineer’s Estimate - potable water) .............................................. 3% ea.92 
Encroachment Permit (includes inspection) ............................................................................... $5093 $338.00 
Non-Standard Service94 
 Temporary Building-Construction Service (6 month max.) .................................................... $10/month95 

 Bulk-Service Meter Deposit ............................................................................................................. $91096 
 Failure-to-report Usage Fee ..................................................................................................... $20/month97 
 Water-Truck or –Container Backflow Inspection Fee ........................................................................ $3098 
 Bulk-Service Meter Charge ..................................................................................................... $20/month99 
 Bulk-Service Volume-of-Usage Rage ..................................................................................... $1.50/unit100 
 Minimum Bulk-Service Meter Damage Repair Fee .......................................................................... $25101 
 Bulk Raw-Water Charge (2,500 gal. max.) .................................................................................. $5/load102 
 Filling Station Charge (2,500 gal. max.) ...................................................................................... $5/load103 
Flow Test Fee  ............................................................................................................................... $50/test104 
Returned Check Fee (returned by bank) ........................................................................................$20/check105 
Escrow Information Charge ................................................................................................................ $5/order 
Meter Tampering Fee (resetting, damaging, cutting locks, etc.) 
 First Incident ............................................................................................................... $25 + repair costs106 
 Second and Subsequent Incidents ..............................................................................$250 + repair costs107 
Delinquent Penalty .................................................................................. 1½%/month penalty after 25 days108 
Shutoff Notice Service Fee ................................................................................................................... $  33109 
Meter Lock Service Fee ........................................................................................................................ $  61110 
Annexation Processing Fee (estimate) ............................................................................................... $6,000111 
Quitclaim Deed Processing Fee .................................................................................................................. $25 

                                                 
91  Effective 9/26/06, charged whenever water service is requested for a parcel with an existing service line and meter set.  

Payment in full for installation of ⅝” residential radio-read meter and ¾” backflow prevention device.  Fee to be increased annually, 
commencing January 1, 2008 in accordance with Engineering News Record’s National Construction Cost Index, subject to suspension on a 
year-by-year basis by the Board of Directors. 

92  Name amended 2/27/01 
93  Amended 10/27/98 
94  Renamed 11/27/01 
95  Renamed 11/27/01 
96  Added 11/27/01; amended 7/22/08.  If customer fails to report monthly usage for two consecutive months, deposit will be 

retained if meter is not returned in good condition upon request. 
97  Added 7/22/08.  Fee assessed if customer fails to report monthly usage.   
98  Added 11/27/01 
99  Added 11/27/01 
100  Added 11/27/01 
101  Added 11/27/01 
102  Added 11/27/01 
103  Added 11/27/01 
104  Effective 8/26/97 
105  Authorized 3/23/93; effective 4/1/93; amended 2/27/01 
106  Effective 2/27/01 
107  Effective 8/26/97 
108  Effective 2/27/01/ amended 07/22/08 
109  Authorized 10/27/98; amended 7/22/08.  Fee to be increased annually, commencing January 1, 2009 by the same percentage 

as the annual cost-of-living adjustment granted to the Agency’s Water Treatment and Distribution Employees. 
110  Authorized 3/23/93; effective 4/1/93; amended 2/27/01 and 7/22/08.  Fee to be increased annually, commencing January 1, 

2009 by the same percentage as the annual cost-of-living adjustment granted to the Agency’s Water Treatment and Distribution 
Employees. 

111  Added 11/22/11 
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Meter Check Fee: 
 ⅝” Meter ............................................................................................................................... $45 prepaid112 
 Meters Over ⅝” ....................................................................................................... per estimate, prepaid113 

SFWPA will check accuracy of water user’s meter at user’s request.  If meter is within 2% accurate, 
SFWPA will retain fee.  If inaccuracy exceeds 2% fast, fee will be returned.  Adjustments for any 
over-charge will be made on next billing, with adjustment not to exceed three (3) months. 

 

System Capacity Charges114 
On single-family residential parcels up to four acres in area, even if a meter size greater than a ⅝” standard residential meter is 
needed to satisfy the flow demands of a fire-suppression system, the amount of the System Capacity Charge applied shall be 
the same as for a ⅝” standard residential meter.  If a larger meter is requested for fire-suppression systems in non-single-family-
residential structures, or for purposes other than to satisfy the flow demands of a residential fire-suppression system, the System 
Capacity Charge for the requested meter size shall apply, regardless of the parcel area. 
 
On single-family residential parcels between four and ten acres in area, the General Manager shall have discretion to apply the 
System Capacity Charge of a ⅝” standard residential meter where it is clear that the only purpose for a meter size greater than 
⅝” is to satisfy the flow demands of a fire-suppression system, and not for other purposes (e.g., irrigation, commercial 
enterprises, manufacturing processes, etc.).  
 
On single-family residential parcels greater in area than ten acres, the Board of Directors may consider individual requests from 
builders and/or property owners to apply the System Capacity Charge of a ⅝” standard residential meter where it is clear that 
the only purpose for a meter size greater than ⅝” is to satisfy the flow demands of a fire-suppression system. 
 

Miners Ranch Treatment Plant: 
 
 Meter Size ........... Capacity Charges .................. GPM .........................  Plant Capacity            
 ⅝” ......................... $4,363 ............................. 20 .................................. 0.206% 
 1" ........................ $10,903 ............................ 50 .................................. 0.514% 
 1½" ....................... $21,808 ........................... 100 ................................. 1.029% 
 2" ........................ $34,897 ........................... 160 ................................. 1.646% 
 3" ........................ $69,781 ........................... 320 ................................. 3.291%                  
 4" ....................... $109,035 .......................... 500 ................................. 5.143% 
 6" ....................... $218,071 ......................... 1,000 .............................. 10.286%  
 8" ....................... $523,368 ......................... 2,400 .............................. 24.686% 
 10" ...................... $828,665 ......................... 3,800 .............................. 39.086% 
 12" ..................... $1,090,349 ....................... 5,000 .............................. 51.429% 

• See Attachment for Capacity Charge Discussion 
Larger meters will require evaluation of peak flows needed for service.  Applicant will be responsible for providing required 
data.  Based on this information, SFWPA will determine the capacity charge. 
 
The System Capacity Charge shall be paid prior to the physical connection of any service to the domestic water system.  For 
meter sizes greater than 2”, payment of the System Capacity Charge may be required at the time the application for service is 
approved and prior to construction of the structure for which service is requested.

115
 

 
 Bangor Treatment Plant: .................................................................................................................................... $4,363 
 
The System Capacity Charge shall be paid prior to the physical connection of any service to the domestic water system.  
Connections to this system shall be limited to ⅝” residential meters only.116  

                                                 
112  Authorized 6/23/92; effective 7/1/92 
113  Authorized 6/23/92; effective 7/1/92 
114  Effective 10/1/91, amended 3/23/99 (increases annually in accordance with Engineering News Record’s National Construction Cost 

Index), and 1/25/00; amended 4/24/12 regarding fire-suppression systems. 
115  Paragraph added 6/26/01 
116  Paragraph amended 9/23/03 
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Backflow Maintenance Charges117 
 
Monthly Charges for maintenance and testing of backflow prevention devices shall be as follows: 

Size Monthly Cost 
¾" $   5.42 
1" $   8.11 

1 ½" $  10.85 
2" $  12.19 
3" $  27.11 
4" $  32.52 
6" $  47.42 
8” 

10” 
 

$  57.36 
$  66.54 

 
 

Reduced Pressure Principle Detector Assemblies (RPDA) for fire systems will be charged for both the base assembly and the 
detector assembly.  Example:  4" RPD would be charged $30.64 for the base assembly and $5.11 for the ¾" detector assembly. 

 

                                                 
117  Effective 7/28/94, amended 3/25/97 and 3/23/99 (increase annually in accordance with the Engineering News Record’s National 

Construction Cost Index), and 1/25/2000 
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TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Art Martinez, Manager of Information Systems 
 
DATE: July 16, 2018 
 
RE:  Delinquent Accounts to be Added to 2018-2019 Taxes 

 Agenda Item for 7/24/18 Board of Directors Meeting 
 
 
Once a year Butte County allows this agency to place unresolved debts to the Butte County tax roll as a 
means of debt collection. Although we have made every effort to contact the responsible parties we 
currently have 14 accounts which have not responded by the deadline. Each of the 14 accounts have been 
terminated within the last year and for most no communication has been received regarding these 
accounts. These unresolved accounts usually result from a change in the ownership status of the property; 
death of the owners and unresolved distribution of the estate; abandonment of the residence; ongoing 
lawsuits; etc.  This agency has made every attempt to contact the owners on file and the owners listed with 
the county. 
 
As a public agency, South Feather Water and Power Agency (SFWPA) is able to collect delinquent 
accounts by placing them on the Butte County tax rolls.  The cost for this service, levied by the Tax 
Collector, is 30¢ per parcel, for a total this year of $4.20. 
 
Attached is a list of the 14 accounts and their individual total delinquencies.  Through the diligent efforts of 
our office staff this agency was able to collect all but $2,848.70  of our delinquencies this year through 
routine collection procedures.  
 
The recommended form of action is: 
 

"I move adoption of Resolution 18-7-1, authorizing 18 accounts, for a total of $2,848.70 
including fees, be added to the 2018-2019 Butte County tax roll." 
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Resolution No. 18-7-1 

 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the South Feather Water and Power Agency acknowledges the 
Agreement entered into in 1990 between Butte County and South Feather Water and Power Agency (formerly 
Oroville-Wyandotte Irrigation District) providing for the collection and distribution of special assessments by Butte 
County for and on behalf of the Agency; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the County of Butte has tendered a form of Agreement for the provision of such services to 
the Agency at a cost of 30¢ per parcel.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the South Feather Water and 
Power Agency that the schedule of delinquent accounts attached hereto as Exhibit A, be collected by the Butte 
County Tax Collector and submitted to the Agency for the year 2018-2019; and, 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Butte County Auditor-Controller, per the consolidation schedule 
of prior charges submitted, be authorized to add these charges to the Butte County Tax Rolls for the year 2018-2019 
under the appropriate heading “SFWPA Prior Charges,” such consolidation schedule consisting of delinquent 
accounts as aforementioned.  It is understood that the property deeded by the Agency or by Butte County is not 
included in this schedule submitted because the County will not include these parcels on their active roll.  Such 
delinquent accounts shall be payable in two installments under and pursuant to the provisions of §25806(a)(1) of the 
Water Code of the State of California and is without regard to property valuation. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the South Feather Water and Power Agency at 
the regular meeting of said Board on the 24th day of July 2018 by the following vote: 
 
 AYES:  
 
 NOES:   
 
 ABSTAINED:  
 
 ABSENT:  
 
 
       
   Todd Hickman, President 
 (seal) 
 
 
 
   
 Rath Moseley, Secretary 



Exhibit A 
 

    
 $     205.64   50 District Center Drive 027-030-007 
 $     279.32   3600 Fletcher Road 027-140-030 
 $     236.74   532 Silverleaf Drive 069-140-049 
 $     218.28   c/o Henderson Trustee 079-290-051 
 $     178.72   17 Leslie Lane 033-430-042 
 $     176.64   56 Quincy Place 069-410-007 
 $     178.62   P.O. Box 8157 079-200-019 
 $     182.42   4959 Autrey Lane 078-260-003 
 $     153.98   6145 Kanaka Ave 069-250-087 
 $     172.96   505 E. Sagebrush St 069-140-023 
 $        92.44   94 Bethridge Road 027-010-008 
 $     170.14   6368 Lincoln Blvd Space 36 026-020-049 
 $     432.18   8128 Marshall St 025-360-078 
 $     170.62   1191 Mt Ida Road 079-330-011 

    
    
    

 
 Total:   $2,848.70 
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TO:   Board of Directors 
 
FROM:   Steve Wong, Finance Division Manager 
 
DATE:   July 18, 2018 
 
RE:   Annual Financial Report with Independent Auditor’s Report 

7/24/18 Board of Directors Meeting 
 
The 2017 Annual Financial Report accompanied by the independent auditor’s opinion is hereby submitted. 
The auditors, Richardson & Company, issued an “unqualified” opinion as stated on the second page of their 
report: 

In our opinion, the financial statements . . . present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Agency, as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 and the results of 
its operations and cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. . . 
 

Letters to the Board regarding internal control, governance, a management letter and a report on the 
Agency’s Appropriations Limit are also included. The conclusion by Richardson & Company regarding 
internal control is stated as follows: “We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider 
to be material weaknesses.” 
 
Governmental accounting standards report most of the data in a summarized form, presenting the Agency’s 
financial activity and position in various consolidated formats. Activity within the Agency’s various funds 
(General Fund, Joint Facilities Operating Fund, etc.) is presented as Supplementary Information in the 
Combining Schedules on pages 47 through 55. As detailed in the Report, the Agency’s net financial 
position was $86,799,345 for the year ended December 31, 2017.  Current assets exceeded current 
liabilities by $25,332,073.  This year’s report includes the early adoption of a new accounting standard 
recognizing the total liability of the Agency’s Other Post-Employment Benefits, or OPEB (GASB 75)  
 
Ingrid Sheipline, Managing Partner from Richardson & Company, will present a brief report to the Board 
and will be available to answer questions.  
 
I would also like to take this opportunity to acknowledge the members of the Finance Division team and the 
other Agency administrative staff for their participation, assistance and cooperation in assembling this 
report and for their good work exhibited throughout the year. Their efforts are much appreciated. 
 
If the Board is satisfied with the Auditor’s report and staff’s responses at this time, the following action is 
requested: 
 

“I move acceptance of the Independent Auditor’s Report and Financial Statements 
 for the Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.” 



SOUTH FEATHER WATER AND POWER AGENCY 
AUDIT PRESENTATION AGENDA 

July 24, 2018 

 

Presentation by Richardson & Company, LLP of the Audit, including the following 
communications required by Generally Accepted Auditing Standards: 

Reports issued 
Audited Financial Statements with auditors opinion 
Internal Control and Compliance Reports 
Governance (Required communications) letter 
Management letter with recommendations 
Appropriation Limit Report 

Independent Auditor’s Report  
Unmodified (clean) opinion 

Discussion of financial statements 
Statement of Net Position (pages 13 and 14) 

Capital project expenditures of $9.2 million 
Unrestricted reserves available of $9 million 
Decreased $8.4 million due to change in accounting for OPEB 

Statement of Revenues and Expenses (page 15) 
$4.0 million of net income 
Restatement for OPEB change of $7.7 million 

Designations of net position (page 31) 
Pension disclosure (pages 31 to 36) 
OPEB liability increasing due to no prefunding other than reserves (pages 36 to 40) 

Reports on Internal Control and Compliance (page 56) 
No internal control weaknesses 
Agency complied with applicable laws, regulations 

Required Communications letter 
Audit adjustments 

18 adjustments identified and corrected (listed in letter) 
Unadjusted differences noted (immaterial) 

6 items identified (list attached to letter) 
Net impact is $29,047 understatement of net income 

No difficulties in performing the audit and no unusual accounting practices 

Management letter 
No material weaknesses in internal control 
Good controls in place 
Other items noted  

Power inventory controls over adjustments and release of parts 
Power inventory listing updating 
Bank reconciliation duties not segregated from other accounting functions 
Written accounting procedures to be completed 
Net position accounts to be adjusted 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Board of Directors 
South Feather Water and Power Agency 
Oroville, California 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of South Feather Water and Power Agency (the 
Agency), which comprise the statements of net position as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the 
related statements of revenues, expenses, changes in net position, and cash flows for the years then ended 
and the related notes to the financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.  We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the State Controller’s Minimum Audit 
Requirements for California Special Districts.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.  

 



To the Board of Directors 
South Feather Water and Power Agency 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Agency as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 and the results of its operations and 
cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America as well as accounting systems prescribed by the State Controller’s Office and 
state regulations governing special districts. 

Change in Accounting Principles 

As discussed in Note P to the financial statements, in 2017 the Agency adopted new accounting guidance, 
GASB No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions.  
Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

Report on Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management’s 
discussion and analysis, the Schedule of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability, Schedule of 
Contributions to the Pension Plan, Schedule of Funding Progress for Other Post-Employment Benefits, 
and Schedule of Changes in the Agency’s Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information 
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures 
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Report on Other Information  

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Agency’s financial statements.  The combining fund financial statements are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The combining fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and were derived from and 
relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements.  Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the information is 
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated July 17, 2018, 
on our consideration of the Agency’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations and contracts and grant agreements and other 
matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Agency’s internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance. 

 
July 17, 2018 
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____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

This discussion and analysis is part of the overall financial report.  The basic financial statements that follow make 
up the other part of the report. 

The South Feather Water and Power Agency, formerly Oroville-Wyandotte Irrigation District (OWID), was formed 
in 1919 as an irrigation district under the Irrigation District Law, Division 11 of the Water Code (§ 20500 et seq.) of 
the State of California, for purposes of supplying water for irrigation.  The Agency presently includes approximately 
54,000 acres in south eastern Butte County and encompasses the unincorporated areas adjacent to the City of Oroville, 
as well as the unincorporated communities of Kelly Ridge, Bangor, and Palermo.  The Agency area has a population 
of approximately 17,500, and currently provides water services to approximately 6,700 residential customers 
(domestic water) and 500 irrigation customers (raw water). 

The Agency has water rights from the south fork of the Feather River and certain tributaries for hydroelectric 
generation purposes, which water may also be diverted by the Agency each year for consumptive uses.  The Agency 
owns certain hydroelectric facilities, the power from which is presently sold to Pacific Gas and Electric Company 
(PG&E). 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

 The South Feather Water & Power Agency December 31, 2017 net position of $86,799,345 is a decrease of 
$3,695,189 (4.08%) when compared with the December 31, 2016 net position of $90,494,534. 

 The Agency's operating revenues increased by $1,070,822 or 5.32% from the prior year.  An unusually wet 
2016-17 winter increased income from the sale of electricity by $1,111,117 in 2017.  The Agency's 2017 
operating expenses increased by $5,590,493 or 34.09% in 2017 because of costs associated with repair of 
facilities damaged by the 2016-17 winter storms and the Oroville Dam spillway incident. 

 The Agency’s capital contributions increased by $3,267,503 to the 2017 amount of $4,029,935 because of 
resumption of work on the Lost Creek Dam Crest Modification project and substantial progress on the Miners 
Ranch Water Treatment Plant Improvement project. 

 Construction-in-Progress increased by $26,204,468 from last year to $54,693,982.  The Lost Creek Dam 
Crest Modification project, improvement of the Miners Ranch Treatment Plant and refurbishment of the 
Kelly Ridge Powerhouse components comprise the current Construction-in-Progress balance. 

 Relicensing costs accumulated through 2012 in the amount of $5,716,306 will be amortized over the life of 
the license beginning when the FERC license is issued.  Costs incurred subsequent to 2012 have been 
minimal and have been expensed. 

 The total of the Agency’s long-term liabilities increased by $10,849,475 due to the recognition of pension 
liabilities, and other post-employment benefits (OPEB) in accordance with current accounting standards and 
accounting for a loan payable to PG&E for the Agency’s share of the Lost Creek Dam Crest Modification 
project.  This increase reflects the implementation of GASB No. 75 related to OPEB. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Agency’s basic financial statements.  They 
are comprised of two components: 1) fund financial statements and, 2) notes to the financial statements. 

Fund financial statements – A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources 
that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.  The Agency, like other state and local governments, 
uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.  The Agency 
presents one major proprietary fund on the Statement of Net Position. 
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Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements.  As such, the 
Agency has chosen to present only fund financial statements. 

The 2017 proprietary fund financial statements may be found on pages 13 - 17 of this report. 

Notes to the financial statements – The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding 
of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.  The notes to the financial statements can 
be found on pages 18 - 43 of this report. 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

Year-over-year changes in net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position.  
In the case of South Feather Water & Power Agency, assets plus deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities 
plus deferred inflows by $86,799,345 as of December 31, 2017. 

The largest portion of the Agency’s net position (87.9%) are invested in capital assets (e.g. land and water rights, 
source of supply, hydroelectric facilities, pumping plant, water treatment facilities, transmission and distribution 
facilities, buildings and equipment, construction-in-progress and relicensing-in-progress), less any related debt used 
to acquire those assets that is still outstanding.  The Agency uses these capital assets to provide services to the 
community; consequently these assets are not available for future spending.  Although the Agency’s investment in 
its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be 
provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to pay these liabilities. 

The following table summarizes the Agency’s assets, liabilities and net position as of December 31, 2017, December 
31, 2016 and December 31, 2015. 

2017 2016 2015

Current and other assets  $          31,426,988  $          32,361,410  $        35,220,784 
Restricted assets 3,969,435 20,014,266 549,475
Net capital assets 103,440,881 77,865,438 70,663,623

TOTAL ASSETS 138,837,304 130,241,114 106,433,882

Deferred outflows of resources 2,441,322 2,514,429 1,692,734

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 2,441,322 2,514,429 1,692,734

Current liabilities 6,094,915 4,585,543 4,085,099
Long‑term liabilities 48,081,558 37,232,083 17,727,754

TOTAL LIABILITIES 54,176,473 41,817,626 21,812,853

Deferred inflows of resources 302,808 443,383 676,850

Net investment in capital assets 76,266,518 69,324,139 60,757,508
Restricted 1,512,906 1,841,315 1,400,273
Unrestricted 9,019,921 19,689,080 23,479,132

TOTAL NET POSITION  $          86,799,345  $          90,854,534  $        85,636,913 

SOUTH FEATHER WATER & POWER AGENCY'S NET POSITION

 

A portion of the Agency’s net position, categorized as Restricted Net Position of $1,512,906 (1.7%) represents 
resources that are subject to external restriction on how they may be used.  The portion of the Agency’s Net Position 
categorized as Unrestricted Net Position $9,019,921 (10.4%) may be used to meet the Agency’s ongoing obligations 
to the public and its customers.  As of December 31, 2017, the Agency reported positive balances in all three 
categories of net position. 
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Analysis of the Agency’s operations: 

The following chart provides a summary of the Agency’s Sources of Revenue for the year ended December 31, 2017. 

 

As the Sources of Revenue Chart above shows, $18,364,438, or 68% of the Agency’s 2017 revenue came from the 
generation of hydroelectric power. An additional $2,344,429 or 9% came from Domestic and Irrigation Water Sales 
and $3,999,506 or 15% from Capital Reimbursements.  The remaining $2,175,828 or 8% came from a variety of 
sources as shown above. 
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The following chart provides a summary of the Agency’s Sources of Revenue for the year ended December 31, 2016. 

As the Sources of Revenue Chart above shows, $17,253,321, or 80% of the Agency’s 2016 revenue came from the 
generation of hydroelectric power.  An additional $2,279,064, or 11% came from Domestic and Irrigation Water 
Sales.  The remaining $2,069,535 or 9% came from a variety of sources as shown above. 
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The following chart provides a summary of the Agency’s Expenses for the year ended December 31, 2017. 

 

The Expenses Chart above shows 2017 expenses for plant operations of $9,004,997 or 39%. 2017 depreciation and 
amortization expense was $2,138,830, or 9%.  General and administrative expenses accounted for $6,326,785, or 
28% of the total; transmission and distribution accounted for $2,017,961 or 9% of the total; and the remaining 
$3,379,436, or 15%, was made up of various other expenses as shown above. 
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The following chart provides a summary of the Agency’s Expenses for the year ended December 31, 2016. 

 

The Expenses Chart above shows 2016 expenses for plant operations of $5,628,388, or 34%.  2016 depreciation and 
amortization expense was $2,507,988, or 15%.  General and administrative expenses accounted for $4,028,823, or 
24% of the total; transmission and distribution accounted for $1,891,722, or 11% of the total; and the remaining 
$2,687,378, or 16%, was made up of various other expenses as shown above. 
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The following table provides a summary of the Agency’s operations for the years ended December 31, 2017, 
December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015. 

2017 2016 2015

REVENUES

Operating Revenues
Domestic Water Sales  $         2,116,331  $      2,051,320  $        2,009,002 
Irrigation water sales                228,098             227,744               242,306 
Sales of electricity           18,364,438        17,253,321          12,541,221 
Other services                487,836             593,496            7,721,784 

Total operating revenue           21,196,703        20,125,881          22,514,313 

Non-operating revenues:
Property taxes                568,094             531,696               517,354 
Insurance refund                822,581                 2,004                 10,858 
Gain or loss on sale of fixed assets                           -                         -               (40,361)
Investment earnings                266,888             179,907               100,163 
Miscellaneous non-operating revenue                           -                          - 

Total non-operating revenue             1,657,563             713,607               588,014 

Capital contributions             4,029,935             762,432            5,601,821 

TOTAL REVENUES           26,884,201        21,601,920          28,704,148 

EXPENSES

Operating           21,989,322        16,398,829          16,154,920 
Non-operating                878,687             345,470               170,869 

TOTAL EXPENSES           22,868,009        16,744,299          16,325,789 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 4,016,192           4,857,621         12,378,359        

NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF YEAR           90,494,534        85,636,913 73,258,554        

Restatement (7,711,381)

NET POSITION END OF YEAR 86,799,345$       90,494,534$     85,636,913$      

SOUTH FEATHER WATER & POWER AGENCY'S CHANGES IN NET POSITION

 

As the table above shows, the Agency received operating revenues of $21,196,703 or 79% of the 2017 total revenue, 
$20,125,881, or 93% of the 2016 total revenue and $22,514,313, or 78% of the 2015 total revenue.  Operating 
revenues consist of domestic and irrigation water sales, generation of hydroelectric power, water transfer sales, 
customer services and installations. 

Non-operating revenues account for only $1,657,563, or 6%, $713,607 or 3%, and $588,014, or 2%, of total revenue 
in 2017, 2016 and 2015 respectively.  General revenues come from property taxes, investment earnings, insurance 
refunds and any gains or losses on the sale or disposal of an asset. 

Total revenue increased by $5,282,281, or 24%, between 2017 and 2016.  The wet winter of 2016-2017, capital 
contributions and insurance refunds funded the increase.  Total revenue decreased by $7,102,228, or 25%, between 
2016 and 2015.  A $7,400,000 water transfer sale in 2015 caused the decrease in total revenues in 2016 when 
compared to 2015. 
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Total expenses increased by $6,123,710, or 36.6%, in 2017 compared to 2016.  The increase was caused by additional 
emergency repair work for damage caused by the 2016-2017 winter storms.  Total expenses increased by $415,510, 
or 2.5%, in 2016 compared to 2015. 

The 2017 net position at the beginning of the year is restated to account for the implementation of GASB Statement 
No. 75 regarding Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB). 

CAPITAL ASSETS 

The South Feather Water & Power Agency’s investment in capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) amounts 
to $103,440,881 as of December 31, 2017.  In 2017, the net capital assets made up 75% of the Agency’s total assets. 

The following table provides a detailed breakdown of net capital assets for 2017, 2016 and 2015. 

2017 2016 2015

Land, land rights and water rights 2,138,103$          2,138,103$        2,138,103$           
Source of supply 101,197,995       100,200,879     99,709,259          
Pumping plant 362,297              362,297            362,297               

Miners Ranch Tratment Plan, tratment and 
transmission and distribution facilities 32,666,623         32,617,556       32,533,163          

General plant and yard 11,924,855         11,521,273       10,947,847          
Tailwater Depression System 124,445              124,445            124,445               
Photovoltaic System - MRTP 2,142,701           2,142,701         2,142,701            
Recreational facilities 963,302              948,385            948,385               
Construction in progress 54,693,982         28,489,513       19,929,149          
FERC relicensing in progress 5,716,306           5,716,306         5,716,306            

Less: Accumulated Depreciation (108,489,728)      (106,396,020)   (103,888,032)      

TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS  $     103,440,881  $    77,865,438  $       70,663,623 

CAPITAL ASSETS NET OF ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

 

Major capital asset events during 2017 included refurbishment of the Kelly Ridge Powerhouse, the Miners Ranch 
Treatment Plant Improvement Project and the Lost Creek Dam Crest Modification project. 

Additional information on the Agency’s capital assets can be found in note C of this report. 

DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

As of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, the Agency’s debt consisted of the following: 

2017 2016 2015

Revenue bonds payable  $                 -  $                 -  $   2,369,727 
Loan payable to PG&E       2,240,010          112,614       7,536,388 
Certificates of Participation     26,760,000     27,010,000                     - 

TOTAL FINANCING DEBT  $ 29,000,010  $ 27,122,614  $   9,906,115 

OUTSTANDING FINANCING DEBT

 



SOUTH FEATHER WATER & POWER AGENCY 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 
 

12 

 
In 2016, the Agency issued Certificates of Participation to defease outstanding 2012 Water Revenue Refunding Bonds 
and provide funds for the construction of the Miners Ranch Treatment Plant Improvement Project.  The certificates 
are rated “AA” by Standard and Poors. 

Additional information on the Agency’s long-term debt can be found in note D of the financial statements. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS & SIGNIFICANT EVENTS 

In May of 2005 an agreement was reached with Yuba County Water District, now the North Yuba Water District 
(NYWD) that defines the settlement of water rights and disposition of net hydroelectric project revenues effective 
July 1, 2010.  SFWP will continue to own, in its own name - not jointly - its historic consumptive water rights on the 
South Fork of the Feather River. NYWD will be given sole title to the previously jointly held permits – 11516 and 
11518.  Both districts supported the other’s efforts to extend the permits and jointly pursued the environmental 
documents to receive permit time extensions.  The CEQA processing was completed in May of 2006 for the 
water-right permit time extension application and the petition was filed with the State Resources Control Board in 
June of 2006. 

The FERC License that allows the Agency to operate its hydroelectric project operations expired in March of 2009.  
In January of 2002, the Agency approved a FERC Relicensing consulting services agreement between SFWPA and 
Devine Tarbell and Associates (DTA).  The draft license application was distributed in July of 2006.  The license 
application was filed with FERC in March of 2007.  The Agency and its consultants continue to cooperate in all 
matters with FERC related to the relicensing process.  Until the relicensing process is completed, operations continue 
under the current FERC license conditions. 

In July, 2008, the Agency joined the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS) to serve as the 
retirement program for Agency employees.  In July, 2012, the Agency purchased 25% Prior Service to enhance the 
Agency’s retirement program. 

A 50 year power-purchase agreement with PG&E terminated on June 30, 2010.  At its April 28, 2009 Board meeting, 
the Agency agreed to enter into a ten-year power purchase agreement with PG&E beginning July 1, 2010.  Revenue 
to the Agency from this agreement is based on hydropower generation and a combination of variable, market based 
payments, and a fixed monthly payment.  Operating the facilities continues to be the responsibility of the Agency.  
The Agency has commenced with planning for a new power purchase agreement with a beginning date of July 1, 
2020. 

An October, 2015 water transfer sale resulting in significant additional income offset a decline in revenues from power 
generation and conservation efforts by customers in response to the drought conditions experienced in California in 
recent years. 

Heavy winter storms in 2017 and the Oroville Dam Spillway incident in February, 2017 caused damage to the Miners 
Ranch Canal, access roads to the Canal and a disruption in operations of the Kelly Ridge Powerhouse.  
Reimbursements for the Agency’s costs, and the cost of lost power generation, associated with the storms and the 
Spillway incident have been and are being filed with FEMA, ACWA/JPIA (the Agency’s property insurance provider), 
and the State of California Department of Water Resources. 

FINANCIAL CONTACT 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the South Feather Water and Power Agency’s 
finances for those with an interest in the Agency’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in 
this report or requests for additional financial information should be directed to South Feather Water and Power 
Agency, at 2310 Oro-Quincy Hwy, Oroville, California 95966. 



2017 2016
ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and investments 27,435,486$     28,671,633$     
Accounts receivable 2,624,666        2,308,183        
Accrued interest receivable 55,170             28,234             
Property taxes receivable 281,006           259,856           
Inventory 736,588           752,930           
Prepaid expenses 285,137           326,457           
Loans receivable 8,935               14,117             

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 31,426,988      32,361,410      

RESTRICTED ASSETS
Cash with fiscal agents for capital projects 2,745,236        19,085,608      
Cash with fiscal agents for contract retentions 1,224,199        928,658           

TOTAL RESTRICTED ASSETS 3,969,435        20,014,266      

CAPITAL ASSETS
Not being depreciated 62,548,391      36,343,923      
Being depreciated 149,382,218    147,917,535    
Less: accumulated depreciation (108,489,728)   (106,396,020)   

TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS, NET 103,440,881    77,865,438      

TOTAL ASSETS 138,837,304    130,241,114    
 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pensions 2,355,327 2,415,846
Deferred loss on bond refunding 85,995             98,583

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 2,441,322 2,514,429

December 31, 2017 and 2016

SOUTH FEATHER WATER AND POWER AGENCY

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
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2017 2016
LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 2,635,987$       2,325,411$       
Accrued payroll 258,109           277,987           
Accrued interest payable 218,369           173,256           
Deposits 231,309           147,972           
Retainage payable 1,751,473        1,001,742        
Other payables 30,991             33,351             
Current portion of long-term liabilities 968,677           625,824           

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 6,094,915        4,585,543        

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES   
Long-term debt, net of current portion 28,917,400      27,376,907      
Compensated absences, net of current portion 811,867           762,764           
Net OPEB obligation 13,604,233      5,230,136        
Net pension liability 4,748,058 3,862,276

TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 48,081,558      37,232,083      

TOTAL LIABILITIES 54,176,473      41,817,626      

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pensions 302,808 443,383

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 76,266,518      69,324,139      
Restricted for capacity expansion 1,512,906        1,481,315        
Unrestricted 9,019,921        19,689,080      

TOTAL NET POSITION 86,799,345$    90,494,534$    
  

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
 

December 31, 2017 and 2016

SOUTH FEATHER WATER AND POWER AGENCY

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION (Continued)
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2017 2016
OPERATING REVENUES

Domestic water sales 2,116,331$       2,051,320$       
Irrigation water sales 228,098           227,744           
Sale of electricity 18,364,438      17,253,321      
Other services 487,836 593,496           

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 21,196,703      20,125,881      

OPERATING EXPENSES
Source of supply 13,852             13,582             
Water treatment 1,229,143        1,157,375        
Environmental health and safety 503,288           510,150           
Transmission and distribution 2,017,961        1,891,722        
Customer accounts 734,957           603,770           
Plant operations 9,004,997        5,628,388        
General and administrative 6,326,785        4,028,823        
Other operating expenses 19,509             57,031             
Depreciation 2,138,830        2,507,988        

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 21,989,322      16,398,829      

NET (LOSS) INCOME FROM OPERATIONS (792,619)          3,727,052        

NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES)
Interest and penalty income 266,888           179,907           
Property taxes 568,094           531,696           
Insurance reimbursements 822,581           2,004               
Interest expense (878,687)          (345,470)          

TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 778,876           368,137           

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
Capital reimbursements 3,999,506        698,467           
System capacity charges 30,429             63,965             

TOTAL CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 4,029,935        762,432           

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 4,016,192        4,857,621        

Net position at beginning of year - as previously reported 90,494,534      85,636,913      
Restatement for change in accounting principles - Note P (7,711,381)                               
Net position, beginning of year - as restated 82,783,153      85,636,913      

NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR 86,799,345$     90,494,534$     

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

SOUTH FEATHER WATER AND POWER AGENCY

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
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2017 2016
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from customers 20,963,557$   22,584,480$   
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services (9,820,110)    (4,798,425)    
Cash paid to employees for services (8,523,203)    (8,474,109)    

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2,620,244     9,311,946     

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Property taxes received 546,944        530,450        

NET CASH PROVIDED BY
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 546,944        530,450        

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
  FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Capital reimbursements received 3,999,506     698,467        
System capacity charges received 30,429          63,965          
Acquisition of capital assets (26,580,141)  (9,257,536)    
Proceeds from insurance refund 822,581        2,004            
Proceeds from loans payable 6,019,020     28,678,881   
Payments on bonds and loans payable (4,141,624)    (10,955,272)  
Interest paid (837,889)       (178,320)       

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY CAPITAL
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES (20,688,118)  9,052,189     

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment income received 239,952        163,188        

NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 239,952        163,188        

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH (17,280,978)  19,057,773   

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 48,685,899   29,628,126   

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 31,404,921$   48,685,899$   

RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS TO THE 
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

Cash and investments 27,435,486$   28,671,633$   
Cash with fiscal agents 3,969,435     20,014,266$   

TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 31,404,921$   48,685,899$   

SOUTH FEATHER WATER AND POWER AGENCY

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

(Continued)
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2017 2016
RECONCILIATION OF NET INCOME FROM OPERATIONS TO  NET
  CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net income from operations (792,619)$      3,727,052$     
Adjustments to reconcile net income from operations

to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 2,138,830     2,507,988     
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable (316,483)       2,394,991     
Inventory 16,342          53,016          
Prepaid expenses 41,320          29,369          
Loans receivable 5,182            (7,055)           
Accounts payable (73,825)         (36,025)         
Accrued payroll (19,878)         15,769          
Deposits 83,337          63,608          
Other payables (2,360)           (10,711)         
Compensated absences 71,956          (38,089)         
OPEB obligation 662,716        598,945        
Net pension liability 885,782        1,080,838     
Deferred outflows related to pensions 60,519          (834,283)       
Deferred inflows related to pensions (140,575)       (233,467)       

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2,620,244$     9,311,946$     

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

SOUTH FEATHER WATER AND POWER AGENCY

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
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NOTE A – REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The basic financial statements of the South Feather Water and Power Agency (the Agency) have been 
prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to government 
units.  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for 
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.  The more significant of the 
Agency’s accounting policies are described below. 

Reporting Entity:  The South Feather Water and Power Agency (formerly known as Oroville-Wyandotte 
Irrigation District) was formed November 18, 1919, under Irrigation Law, Division II, of the California 
Water Code.  The Agency provides domestic and irrigation water, and generates electrical power that is 
sold to the Pacific Gas & Electric Company. 

In April, 1995, the Agency approved the formation of the Oroville-Wyandotte Irrigation District 
Financing Corporation, now known as the South Feather Water and Power Agency Financing 
Corporation (the Corporation).  This corporation is a nonprofit public benefit corporation and is organized 
under the Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Law (commencing at Section 5110 of the California 
Corporations Code).  The purpose of the Corporation is to provide assistance to public agencies in the 
State of California, in the financing, acquiring, constructing, rehabilitating or financing various public 
facilities, land and equipment for the use, benefit and enjoyment of the public. 

Although the Agency and Corporation are legally separate entities, the Agency exercises oversight 
responsibility over the Corporation.  The Corporation is reported as if it were part of the primary 
government because it shares a common Board of Directors with the Agency and its sole purpose is to 
provide financing to the Agency under the debt issuance documents of the Agency.  Debt issued by the 
Corporation is reflected as debt of the Agency in these financial statements.  The Corporation has no other 
transactions and does not issue separate financial statements.  

Basis of Presentation:  The Agency’s resources are allocated to and accounted for in these basic financial 
statements as an enterprise fund type of the proprietary fund group.  The enterprise fund is used to 
account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises, 
where the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing 
goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through 
user charges, or where the governing body has decided that period determination of revenues earned, 
expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management 
control, accountability, or other policies.  Net position for the enterprise fund represents the amount 
available for future operations. 

Basis of Accounting:  The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by 
its measurement focus.  The enterprise fund type is accounted for on a flow of economic resources 
measurement focus.  With this measurement focus, all assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, and deferred 
inflows associated with the operation of the fund are included on the balance sheet.  Net position is 
segregated into amounts invested in capital assets, net of related debt, amounts restricted and amounts 
unrestricted.  Enterprise fund type operating statements present increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases 
(i.e., expenses) in net total position. 

In the Statement of Net Position and Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, 
business-like activities are presented using the accrual basis of accounting.  Under the accrual basis of 
accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred 
or the economic asset used.  Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from 
exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place. 
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NOTE A – REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(Continued) 

Those revenues susceptible to accrual include taxes, intergovernmental revenues, interest and charges for 
services. 

Grant revenues are recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements are met.  Under the 
terms of grant agreements, the Agency may fund certain programs with a combination of cost-
reimbursement grants and general revenues.  Thus, both restricted and unrestricted net position are 
available to finance program expenses.  The Agency’s policy is to first apply restricted grant resources to 
such programs, followed by general revenues, if necessary. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.  Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in 
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal operations.  The principal operating revenues of the 
Agency are charges to customers for sales and services.  Operating expenses for enterprise funds include 
the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation of capital assets.  All revenues 
and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.  When both 
restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Agency’s policy to use restricted 
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

Cash and Investments:  For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the Agency's cash and cash 
equivalents include restricted and unrestricted cash on hand or on deposit, and demand deposits and short-
term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. 

The Agency has adopted a formal investment policy as required by Section 53600et seq., of the California 
Government Code.  The Agency Treasurer has responsibility for selecting depositories and investing idle 
funds in accordance with the adopted investment policy.  See Note B for additional information on the 
Agency's cash and investments. 

Investments for the Agency are reported at fair value. The Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) is a 
special fund of the California State Treasury through which local governments may pool investments. The 
Agency may invest up to $40,000,000 in the fund.  Investments in LAIF are highly liquid as deposits can 
be converted to cash within 24 hours without loss of interest. Funds deposited in LAIF are invested in 
accordance with Government Code Sections 16430 and 16480.  Oversight of LAIF is provided by the 
Pooled Money Investment Board whose members are the California State Treasurer, California Director 
of Financial and the California State Controller.  For the purpose of these financial statements, the fair 
value of amounts in LAIF is equivalent to dollars held. 

Receivables and Payables:  Receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not yet received.  
Receivables are recorded in the financial statements net of any allowance for doubtful accounts, if 
applicable, and estimated refunds due.  Business-type activities report utilities, reimbursements, and 
interest earnings as their major receivables.  Activities between funds that are representative of 
lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due 
to/from other funds" (i.e. the current portion of the interfund loans) or "advances to/from other funds" (i.e. 
the non-current portion of the interfund loans).  All other outstanding balances between funds are reported 
as "due to/from other funds." 
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NOTE A – REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(Continued) 

The Agency utilizes the allowance method with respect to its accounts receivable.  Delinquent water 
charges are submitted to the County Tax Assessor annually to be encumbered on the secured property tax 
bills.  Therefore, no allowance was deemed necessary at December 31, 2017 and 2016. 

Property Taxes:  Property tax revenue is recognized in the fiscal year for which the tax and assessment is 
levied.  The County of Butte levies, bills and collects property taxes and special assessments for the 
Agency.  Under the County's "Teeter Plan", the County remits the entire amount levied and handles all 
delinquencies, retaining interest and penalties. 

The term "unsecured" refers to taxes on personal property other than real estate, land and buildings.  
These taxes are secured by liens on the property being taxed.  Property tax revenues are recognized by the 
Agency in the fiscal year they are assessed. 

Secured property tax is due in two installments, on November 1 and February 1, and becomes a lien on 
July 1.  It becomes delinquent on December 10 and April 10, respectively.  Unsecured property tax is due 
on July 1, and becomes delinquent on August 31. 

Inventories and Prepaid Items:  Inventories are valued at average cost using the first-in, first out method. 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as 
prepaid items in the financial statements. 

Loans Receivable:  The Agency has a computer acquisition program, where the Agency purchases a 
computer for an employee and is then repaid through payroll deductions from the employee's pay. 

Capital Assets:  Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets, are 
reported on the Statement of Net Position.  Capital assets are currently defined by the Agency as assets 
with an initial individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year.  
Capital assets are valued at historical cost.  Donated capital assets are recorded at the acquisition value, 
which is the price that would be paid to acquire an asset with equivalent service potential in an orderly 
market transaction at the acquisition date. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or materially extend 
asset lives are not capitalized. 

Interest is capitalized on assets acquired with debt.  The amount of interest to be capitalized is offset by 
interest earned in invested debt proceeds over the construction period. 

Depreciation is provided over the useful lives of assets using the straight-line method.  Estimated useful 
lives of all depreciable assets are as follows: 

Dams, powerhouses and treatment plant 40 - 50 years
Pipelines 50 years
Other general assets 3 - 10 years
Other power-related assets 5 - 50 years  



SOUTH FEATHER WATER AND POWER AGENCY 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

December 31, 2017 and 2016 

21 

NOTE A – REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(Continued) 

Compensated Absences:  The Agency policy allows employees to accumulate earned but unused annual 
leave, which will be paid to employees upon separation from the Agency’s service.  The cost of annual 
leave is recognized in the period earned.  Upon separation from the Agency, employees can elect to be 
paid one-half of their accumulated sick leave time.  This amount is also recognized in the period earned. 

Long-Term Liabilities:  Long-term liabilities and other long-term obligations are reported on the 
Statement of Net Position. Initial issue bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the 
life of the bonds using the straight-line method.  The difference between the reacquisition price of 
refunding bonds and the net carrying amount of refunded debt (deferred amount on refunding) is 
amortized over the shorter of the lives of the refunding debt or remaining life of the refunded debt.  
Amortization of bond premiums or discounts and deferred amounts on refunding is included in interest 
expense.  The cost of issuing debt is expensed as incurred. 

Interfund Transactions:  Transactions between funds of the Agency are recorded as interfund transfers on 
the Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position.  The unpaid balances at 
year end, as a result of such transactions, are shown as due to and due from other funds.  These amounts 
are eliminated from the combined financial statements. 

Net Position:  The net position amount is the difference between assets and liabilities.  Net investment in 
capital assets are capital assets, less accumulated depreciation and any outstanding debt related to the 
acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets excluding unspent debt proceeds.  Net position is 
reported as restricted when there are legal limitations imposed on their use by the Agency or external 
restrictions by other governments, creditors or grantors. 

Management Estimates:  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities at the reporting date and revenues and expenses during the reporting 
period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Pensions:  For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources 
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Agency’s 
California Public Employee’s Retirement System (CalPERS) plans (Plans) and additions to/deductions 
from the Plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by 
CalPERS.  For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions are 
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.  Investments are reported at fair 
value. 

Deferred Inflows and Outflows:  The statement of net position includes a separate section for deferred 
outflows and deferred inflows of resources.  Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of 
net position by the government that is applicable to a future reporting period.  Deferred inflows of 
resources represent an acquisition of net position that is applicable to a future reporting period.  These 
amounts will be not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expenditures/expense) or an inflow of 
resources (revenue) until the earnings process is complete.  Deferred outflows and inflows of resources 
include amounts deferred related to the Agency’s pension plan as described in Note F. 
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NOTE A – REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(Continued) 

New Pronouncements:  In November 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement 
Obligations.  This Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for certain asset retirement 
obligations (AROs). An ARO is a legally enforceable liability associated with the retirement of a tangible 
capital asset (example is decommissioning a water treatment plant). A government that has legal 
obligations to perform future asset retirement activities related to its tangible capital assets should 
recognize a liability based on the guidance in this Statement. This Statement requires that recognition 
occur when the liability is both incurred and reasonably estimable. The determination of when the liability 
is incurred should be based on the occurrence of external laws, regulations, contracts, or court judgments, 
together with the occurrence of an internal event that obligates a government to perform asset retirement 
activities. This Statement requires the measurement of an ARO to be based on the best estimate of the 
current value of outlays expected to be incurred. The best estimate should include probability weighting 
of all potential outcomes, when such information is available or can be obtained at reasonable cost.  The 
requirements of this Statement are effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2018. 

In January 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities.  This Statement establishes 
criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments. The focus of the criteria 
generally is on (1) whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary activity and (2) the 
beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. Separate criteria are included to identify fiduciary 
component units and postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary activities.   This Statement 
describes four fiduciary funds that should be reported, if applicable: (1) pension (and other employee 
benefit) trust funds, (2) investment trust funds, (3) private-purpose trust funds, and (4) custodial funds. 
Custodial funds generally should report fiduciary activities that are not held in a trust or equivalent 
arrangement that meets specific criteria. This Statement also provides for recognition of a liability to the 
beneficiaries in a fiduciary fund when an event has occurred that compels the government to disburse 
fiduciary resources. Events that compel a government to disburse fiduciary resources occur when a 
demand for the resources has been made or when no further action, approval, or condition is required to 
be taken or met by the beneficiary to release the assets.  The requirements of this Statement are effective 
for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018. 

In March 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 85, Omnibus 2017.  The objective of this Statement is to 
address practice issues that have been identified during implementation and application of certain GASB 
Statements. This Statement addresses a variety of topics including issues related to blending component 
units, goodwill, fair value measurement and application, and postemployment benefits (pensions and 
other postemployment benefits (OPEB)).  Topics that may be applicable include criteria for an enterprise 
fund to blend a component unit, measuring certain money market investments at amortized cost, timing of 
pension and OPEB liabilities and expenditures under the current financial resources measurement focus, 
presenting payroll related measures in RSI for OPEB plans, classifying employer paid member 
contributions for OPEB plans, accounting and financial reporting for multiple-employer defined benefit 
OPEB Plans.  The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 
15, 2017. 

In May 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 86, Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues. The primary 
objective of this Statement is to improve consistency in accounting and financial reporting for in-
substance defeasance of debt by providing guidance for transactions in which cash and other monetary 
assets acquired with only existing resources—resources other than the proceeds of refunding debt—are 
placed in an irrevocable trust for the sole purpose of extinguishing debt. This Statement also improves  
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NOTE A – REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(Continued) 

accounting and financial reporting for prepaid insurance on debt that is extinguished and notes to 
financial statements for debt that is defeased in substance.  For governments that extinguish debt, whether 
through a legal extinguishment or through an in-substance defeasance, this Statement requires that any 
remaining prepaid insurance related to the extinguished debt be included in the net carrying amount of 
that debt for the purpose of calculating the difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying 
amount of the debt.  The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after 
June 15, 2017. 

The Agency is currently analyzing the impact of the required implementation of these new statements. 

NOTE B – CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

Cash and investments are classified in the financial statements as shown below: 

2017 2016

Cash and investments 27,435,486$   28,671,633$   
Restricted cash with fiscal agents 3,969,435       20,014,266     

Total cash and investments 31,404,921$   48,685,899$   
 

Cash and cash equivalents were comprised of the following: 

2017 2016

Cash on hand 950$               950$               
Deposits with financial institutions 3,103,699       2,743,378       

Total cash 3,104,649       2,744,328       

Money market mutual funds 4,548,694       20,396,818     
Local Agency Investment Fund 15,893,512     18,394,789     
Negotiable certificates of deposit 6,667,769       6,067,444       
U.S. government agency securities 1,190,297       1,082,520       

Total investments 28,300,272     45,941,571     

Total cash and investments 31,404,921$     48,685,899$      
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NOTE B – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized by the Agency’s investment policy: 

Maximum
Maximum Maximum Total Investment in

Authorized Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio One Issuer

Bonds issued by the Agency None No Limit None
U.S. Treasury Obligations None No Limit None
State of California Obligations None No Limit None
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A No Limit None
Banker's Acceptances 270 days 40% 30%
Commercial Paper - U.S. Companies 180 days 15% None
Certificates of Deposit None 30% None
Repurchase Agreements None Per Government Per Government

Code Code
Medium Term Notes 5 years 30% None
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A 15% None
Mortgage Obligations 5 years 30% None
Other Investments as permitted by the Per Government Per Government

California Government Code N/A Code Code  

Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements:  Investments held by the bond/COP fiscal agents (trustees) 
are governed by the provisions of the various debt indenture agreements rather than the general provisions 
of the Agency's investments policy or the California Government Code. 

Disclosures relating to Interest Rate Risk and Credit Risk:  Interest rate risk is the risk in the market rate 
changes that could adversely affect the fair values of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of 
an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. One of the 
ways that the Agency manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter 
and longer term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is 
maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over time as necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity 
needed for Agency operations. 

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder 
of an investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical 
rating organization. 
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NOTE B – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the Agency's investments (including investments 
held by the bond trustee) to market rate fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows the 
distribution of the Agency's investments by maturity, as well as the credit ratings, as applicable from 
Standard & Poor's or Moody's as of December 31, 2017 and 2016: 

Credit 12 months
Rating or less 1-5 years Fair Value

December 31, 2017
Money market mutual funds Not Rated 4,548,694$    4,548,694$    
Local Agency Investment Funds (LAIF) Not Rated 15,893,512    15,893,512    
Negotiable certificates of deposits Not Rated 2,909,725      3,758,044$    6,667,769      
U.S. government agency securities AAA 1,190,297      1,190,297      

23,351,931$  4,948,341$    28,300,272$  

Credit 12 months
Rating or less 1-5 years Fair Value

December 31, 2016
Money market mutual funds Not Rated 20,396,818$  20,396,818$  
Local Agency Investment Funds (LAIF) Not Rated 18,394,789    18,394,789    
Negotiable certificates of deposits Not Rated 2,247,967      3,819,477$    6,067,444      
U.S. government agency securities AAA 240,094         842,426         1,082,520      

41,279,668$  4,661,903$    45,941,571$  

Remaining Maturity

Remaining Maturity

 

Fair Value Measurement: The Agency categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value 
hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation 
inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for 
identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant 
unobservable inputs. 

The Agency has the following recurring fair value measurements as of December 31, 2017: 

Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Other Significant

Markets for Observable Unobservable
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs

Total (Level 1)  (Level 2) (Level 3)
Investments by fair value level
    Money Market Funds 4,548,694$    4,548,694$    
    Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 6,667,769      6,667,769      
    U.S. Government Agency Obligations 1,190,297      1,190,297      

Total investments by fair value level 12,406,760    -              12,406,760$  -              

Investments measured at net asset value
    California Local Agency Investment Fund 15,893,512    

28,300,272$  

Fair Value Measurements Using
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NOTE B – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

All securities classified in Level 2 are valued using pricing models that are based on market data, such as 
matrix or model pricing, which use standard inputs, which include benchmark yields, reported trades, 
broker/dealer quotes, issue spreads, two sided markets, benchmark securities, bids, offers and reference 
data including market research publications. 

Concentration of Credit Risk:  The investment policy of the Agency contains no limitations on the 
amount that can be invested in any one issuer beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code. 
As of December 31, 2017 and 2016 there were no investments in any one issuer (other than U.S. Treasury 
securities, mutual funds and external investment pools) that represented 5% or more of the total Agency 
investments. 

Custodial Credit Risk:  Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a 
depository financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to 
recover collateral securities that are in possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for 
investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counter-party (e.g., broker-dealer) to a 
transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities 
that are in the possession of another party. The California Government Code and the Agency's investment 
policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure of custodial risk for 
deposits or investments, other than the following provision for deposits: The California Government Code 
requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state and local governmental units by 
pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless 
so waived by the governmental unit). The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool 
must be equal to at least 100% of the total amount deposited by public agencies. California law also 
allows financial institutions to secure Agency deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having 
a value of 150% of the secured public deposits. 

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the deposits with financial institutions, in excess of the federal 
depository insurance limits, were collateralized as required by law. As of December 31, 2017, the 
carrying amount of the Agency's bank deposits totaled $3,103,699 and the bank balances totaled 
$3,930,303. The differences between the carrying amounts and the bank totals are due to the normal 
deposits in transit and outstanding checks. At December 31, 2017, there was an uninsured balance for the 
Agency of $2,782,533. 

Investment in LAIF:  The Agency is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 
that is regulated by the California Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of 
California. The fair value of the Agency's investments in this pool is classified as a cash equivalent in the 
accompanying financial statements. 

LAIF is stated at fair value.  The LAIF is a special fund of the California State Treasury through which 
local governments may pool investments.  The total fair value amount invested by all public agencies in 
LAIF is $74,320,250,742, managed by the State Treasurer.  Of that amount, 3.59% is invested in 
structured notes and asset-backed securities.  The Local Investment Advisory Board (Board) has oversight 
responsibility for LAIF.  The Board consists of five members as designated by state statute.  The fair 
value of the District’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at 
amounts based upon the District’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF 
portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio).  The balance available for withdrawal is 
based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. 
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NOTE C – CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2017 was as follows: 

Balance at Balance at
January 1, December 31,

2017 Additions Disposals Transfers 2017
Capital assets, not being
  depreciated:

Land, land rights and
water rights 2,138,103$      2,138,103$       

Construction in progress 28,489,514    27,393,516$  (1,189,048)$ 54,693,982     
FERC relicensing in progress 5,716,306      5,716,306       

Total capital assets,
not being depreciated 36,343,923    27,393,516                   (1,189,048)   62,548,391     

Capital assets, being
  depreciated:

Source of supply 100,200,879  12,006          985,110       101,197,995   
Pumping plant 362,297         362,297          
Miners Ranch Treatment                       

Plant, treatment and                       
transmissions and                       
distribution facilities 32,617,556    49,067         32,666,623     

General plant and yard 11,521,272    293,834        (45,122)$   154,871       11,924,855     
Tail water depression system 124,445         124,445          
Photovoltaic system 2,142,701      2,142,701       
Recreational facilities 948,385         14,917          963,302          

Total capital assets
being depreciated 147,917,535  320,757        (45,122)    1,189,048    149,382,218   

Less: accumulated
  depreciation:                        

Source of supply (79,013,361)   (926,888)       (79,940,249)    
Pumping plant (316,556)        (4,255)           (320,811)         
Miners Ranch Treatment                       

Plant, treatment and                                              
transmissions and                                              
distribution facilities (18,912,898)   (611,701)       (19,524,599)    

General plant and yard (6,494,717)     (510,156)       45,122     (6,959,751)      
Tail water depression system (124,445)        (124,445)         
Photovoltaic system (672,562)        (53,568)         (726,130)         
Recreational facilities (861,481)        (32,262)         (893,743)         

Total accumulated
depreciation (106,396,020) (2,138,830)    45,122                         (108,489,728)  

                       
Total capital assets

being depreciated, net 41,521,515    (1,818,073)                    1,189,048    40,892,490     

CAPITAL ASSETS, NET 77,865,438$    25,575,443$  -$          -$              103,440,881$   
 

Depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2017 totaled $2,138,830. 
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NOTE C – CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2016 was as follows: 
Balance at Balance at
January 1, December 31,

2016 Additions Disposals Transfers 2016
Capital assets, not being
  depreciated:

Land, land rights and
water rights 2,138,103$      2,138,103$       

Construction in progress 19,929,149    9,176,015$    (615,650)$     28,489,514     
FERC relicensing in progress 5,716,306      5,716,306       

Total capital assets,
not being depreciated 27,783,558    9,176,015                     (615,650)      36,343,923     

Capital assets, being
  depreciated:

Source of supply 99,709,259    491,620       100,200,879   
Pumping plant 362,297         362,297          
Miners Ranch Treatment

Plant, treatment and 
transmissions and 
distribution facilities 32,533,163    4,998            79,395         32,617,556     

General plant and yard 10,947,847    528,790        44,635         11,521,272     
Tail water depression system 124,445         124,445          
Photovoltaic system 2,142,701      2,142,701       
Recreational facilities 948,385                         948,385          

Total capital assets
being depreciated 146,768,097  533,788                        615,650       147,917,535   

Less: accumulated
  depreciation:                        

Source of supply (77,680,709)   (1,332,652)    (79,013,361)    
Pumping plant (312,301)        (4,255)           (316,556)         
Miners Ranch Treatment

Plant, treatment and                                              
transmissions and                                              
distribution facilities (18,296,188)   (616,710)       (18,912,898)    

General plant and yard (6,026,176)     (468,541)       (6,494,717)      
Tail water depression system (124,445)        (124,445)         
Photovoltaic system (618,994)        (53,568)         (672,562)         
Recreational facilities (829,219)        (32,262)         (861,481)         

Total accumulated
depreciation (103,888,032) (2,507,988)                                        (106,396,020)  

                       
Total capital assets

being depreciated, net 42,880,065    (1,974,200)                    615,650       41,521,515     

CAPITAL ASSETS, NET 70,663,623$    7,201,815$    -$          -$              77,865,438$     
 

Depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2016 totaled $2,507,988. 
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NOTE D – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

The following is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2017: 

Restated
January 1, December 31, Due Within

2017 Additions Reductions 2017  One Year .

2016 Certificates of Particpation 27,010,000$  (250,000)$      26,760,000$  570,000$    
Loan Payable 112,614         6,019,020$    (3,891,624)     2,240,010      

Total 27,122,614    6,019,020      (4,141,624)     29,000,010    570,000      

Unamortized premiums 504,293         (16,903)          487,390         
Total Debt and Loans 27,626,907    6,019,020      (4,158,527)     29,487,400    570,000      

Compensated absences 1,138,588      398,677         (326,721)        1,210,544      398,677      
Other post-employment benefits 12,941,517    961,345         (298,629)        13,604,233    
Net pension liability 3,862,276      885,782         4,748,058      

Total Long-Term Liabilities 45,569,288$  8,264,824$    (4,783,877)$   49,050,235$  968,677$    
 

The following is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2016: 

January 1, December 31, Due Within
2016 Additions Reductions 2016  One Year .

2012 Revenue Refunding Bonds 2,369,727$    (2,369,727)$   
2016 Certificates of Particpation 27,010,000$  27,010,000$  250,000$    
Loan Payable 7,536,388      1,161,771      (8,585,545)     112,614         

Total Long-Term Debt 9,906,115      28,171,771    (10,955,272)   27,122,614    250,000      

Unamortized premiums 507,110         (2,817)            504,293         
Total Debt and Loans 9,906,115      28,678,881    (10,958,089)   27,626,907    250,000      

Compensated absences 1,176,677      449,670         (487,759)        1,138,588      375,824      
Other post-employment benefits 4,631,191      884,862         (285,917)        5,230,136      
Net pension liability 2,781,438      1,080,838      3,862,276      

Total Long-Term Liabilities 18,495,421$  31,094,251$  (11,731,765)$ 37,857,907$  625,824$    
 

A description of the long-term liabilities is as follows: 

2012 Revenue Refunding Bonds:  In October 2012, the District issued $3,342,264 of Revenue Refunding 
Bonds with interest of 2.68%.  Semi-annual principal payments, ranging from $96,000 to $217,000, were 
due on April 1 and October 1 through April 1, 2024 and semi-annual interest payments, ranging from 
$1,400 to $41,900 were due on April 1 and October 1 through April 1, 2024.  These 2012 Revenue 
Refunding Bonds were issued to refund the 1980 Miners Ranch Domestic Revenue Bonds and the 2003 
Certificates of Participation.  The bonds were defeased in 2016 with the proceeds of the 2016 Certificates 
of Participation. 

2016 Certificates of Participation: In October 2016, the Agency issued $27,010,000 of Certificates of 
Participation with interest rates of 2% to 4%. These 2016 Certificates of Participation were issued to 
refund the 2012 Revenue Refunding Bonds and finance the Miners Ranch Water Treatment Plant  
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NOTE D – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued) 

Improvement Project. The Agency is required to collect rates, fees, and charges that will be sufficient to 
yield net revenues equal to 125% of debt service payments on any future debt issued. Annual principal 
payments, ranging from $570,000 to $1,395,000, are due on April 1 through April 1, 2046 and semi-
annual interest payments ranging from $22,669 to $436,738 are due on April 1 and October 1 through 
April 1, 2046. 

The following is a schedule of debt service requirements to maturity for the 2016 Certificates of 
Participation Bonds as of December 31, 2017: 

Year ended
December 31, Principal Interest Totals

2018 570,000$        873,475$        1,443,475$     
2019 580,000          862,075          1,442,075       
2020 600,000          844,675          1,444,675       
2021 615,000          826,675          1,441,675       
2022 635,000          808,225          1,443,225       

2023-2027 3,495,000       3,722,125       7,217,125       
2028-2032 4,220,000       2,997,375       7,217,375       
2033-2037 4,945,000       2,270,775       7,215,775       
2038-2042 5,770,000       1,440,888       7,210,888       
2043-2046 5,330,000       439,888          5,769,888       

Total 26,760,000$   15,086,176$   41,846,176$    

Loan Payable:  In February 2010, the Agency entered into a cost-sharing agreement with PG&E for 
funding of the Sly Creek Dam Crest Modification Project and the Lost Creek Dam Crest Modification 
Project.  The agreement states that the Agency shall reimburse PG&E 60% of the final project costs 
incurred from January 1, 2009, plus simple interest that accrues monthly at a rate equal to the Wall Street 
Journal Prime Rate.  If the actual costs exceed the initial cost estimate, the Agency shall reimburse PG&E 
80% of the costs.  All amounts due to PG&E from the Agency are due and payable by March 31, 2019.  
As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the amount due to PG&E including interest totaled $2,251,494 and 
$112,614, respectively. 

Pledged Revenue: The Agency pledge future revenues, net of specified expenses, to repay the 2016 
Certificates of Participation in the original amount of $27,010,000. Proceeds of the Certificates of 
Participation were used to refund the 2012 Revenue Refunding Bonds and finance the Miners Ranch 
Water Treatment Plant Improvement Project. The Certificates of Participation are payable solely from net 
revenues and are payable through April 2046. Annual principal and interest payments on the Certificates 
are expected to require less than 25% of net revenues. Total principal and interest remaining to be paid on 
the Certificates of Participation was $41,846,176 at December 31, 2017. 

Total principal and interest paid on all debt payable from net revenues was $1,079,612 and $379,392 and 
the total water system net revenues were $3,003,774 and $6,948,647 for the years ended December 31, 
2017 and 2016, respectively.  At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the District’s net revenues were 278% and 
1,832% of debt service payments, respectively. 
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NOTE D – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued) 

Refundings:  In October 2016, the Agency issued the 2016 Certificates of Participation in the amount of 
$27,010,000 with interest rates of 2% to 4%, to refund $2,051,813 of the 2012 Revenue Refunding Bonds 
with an interest rate of 2.68%.  The Agency completed the advance refunding to reduce its total debt 
service payments over the next 30 years by $56,966 and to obtain an economic gain (difference between 
the present values of the old and new debt service payments) of $63,873. 

In October 2012, the Agency issued the 2012 Revenue Refunding Bonds in the amount of $3,342,264 
with an interest rate of 2.68%, to refund $1,150,000 of the 1980 Miners Ranch Domestic Revenue Bonds 
and $2,295,000 of the 2003 Certificates of Participation with an average interest rate of 5.04%.   The 
Agency completed the advance refunding to reduce its total debt service payments through 2024.  The 
advance refunding resulted in differences between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of 
the outstanding debt of $98,583 at December 31, 2016, net of accumulated amortization.  This deferred 
amount on refunding, reported in the accompanying financial statements as a deferred outflow, continues 
to be charged to operations through 2024 using the straight-line method.   

NOTE E – NET POSITION 

Restrictions:  Restricted net position consist of constraints placed on net position use through external 
requirements imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws and 
regulations of other governments or constraints by law through constitutional provisions or enabling 
legislation.  Restricted net position consisted of the following at December 31:   

Restricted for capital facilities – As required by Section 66013 of the Water Code of the State of 
California, the restriction for capacity expansion represents system capacity fees to be used to 
construct new capital facilities to benefit existing Agency customers. 

Designations:  Designations of unrestricted net position may be imposed by the Board of Directors to 
reflect future spending plans or concerns about the availability of future resources.  Designations may be 
modified, amended or removed by Board action.  Designations included the following as of December 31: 

2017 2016

Retiree benefits 3,382,097$      3,354,379$      
Undesignated 5,637,824       16,334,701     

Total Unrestricted Net Position 9,019,921$      19,689,080$    
 

NOTE F – PENSION PLANS 

Plan Descriptions:  All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the 
Agency’s cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plans administered by the California 
Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS).   The Board has the following cost-sharing Plans: 

• Miscellaneous Plan  
• PEPRA Miscellaneous Plan 
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NOTE F – PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

Benefit provisions under the Plans are established by State statute and Board resolution. CalPERS issues 
publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension plans regarding benefit provisions, 
assumptions and membership information that can be found on the CalPERS website at 
www.calpers.ca.gov. 

Benefits Provided:  CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living 
adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries.  
Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment. Members with 
five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 (52 for PEPRA Miscellaneous Plan) with 
statutorily reduced benefits.  All members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 10 years of 
service.  The death benefit is the following: the Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit.  The cost of living 
adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law. 

The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at December 31, 2017 and 2016, are summarized as follows: 

PEPRA
Miscellaneous Miscellaneous
Plan (Prior to Plan (On or after

Hire date January 1, 2013) January 1, 2013)

Benefit formula (at full retirement) 3.0% @ 60 2.0% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50 - 60 52 - 67
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 2.0% to 3.0% 1.0% to 2.5%
Required employer contribution rates:

January 1 to June 30, 2017 11.995% 6.555%
July 1 to December 31, 2017 12.036% 6.533%
January 1 to June 30, 2016 11.065% 6.237%
July 1 to December 31, 2016 11.995% 6.555%

Required employee contribution rates:
2017 8.000% 6.250%
2016 8.000% 6.250%  

In addition to the contribution rates above, the Agency was required to make payments of $166,144 and 
$130,207 toward its unfunded actuarial liability during the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, 
respectively. 

The Miscellaneous Plan is closed to new members that are not already CalPERS eligible participants. 

Contributions:  Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the 
employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and 
shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Funding contributions for the 
Plans are determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS. The actuarially determined 
rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the 
year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The Agency is required to 
contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees. 
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NOTE F – PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the contractually required contributions made to the 
Plans were $652,362 and $596,806. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions:  
As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Agency reported a net pension liability for its proportionate share 
of the net pension liability of the Plan of $4,748,058 and $3,862,276, respectively. 

The Agency’s net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension 
liability. The net pension liability of the Plan is measured as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, and the total 
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by actuarial valuations as of 
June 30, 2016 and 2015 rolled forward to June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively, using standard update 
procedures. The Agency’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the 
Agency’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plans relative to the projected contributions of 
all participating employers, actuarially determined. The Agency’s proportionate share of the net pension 
liability for the Plan as of June 30, 2017 and 2016 was as follows: 

Proportion - June 30, 2016 0.11118%
Proportion - June 30, 2017 0.12045%
Change - Increase (Decrease) 0.00926%

Proportion - June 30, 2015 0.10138%
Proportion - June 30, 2016 0.11118%
Change - Increase (Decrease) 0.00979%  

For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Agency recognized pension expense of $1,776,209 
and $741,883, respectively. At December 31, the Agency reported deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to all Plans combined from the following sources: 

Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of Outflows of Inflows of
 Resources Resources  Resources Resources

Pension contributions subsequent
to measurement date 405,275$      465,128$      

Differences between actual and
expected experience 8,460            (121,221)$    24,804          (5,683)$        

Changes in assumptions 1,049,822     (80,050)        (234,669)      
Differences between the employer's 

contribution and the employer's
proportionate share of contributions 78,380          (329)             91,721          (167,320)      

Change in employer's proportion 575,964        (101,208)      612,820        (35,711)        
Net differences between projected and

actual earnings on plan investments 237,426        1,221,373     

Total 2,355,327$   (302,808)$    2,415,846$   (443,383)$    

2017 2016
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NOTE F – PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

The $405,275 and $465,128 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date at December 31, 2017 and 2016 will be recognized as a reduction of 
the net pension liability in the following year. Other amounts reported as net deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows: 

Year Ended
December 31

2018 594,950$      
2019 715,545        
2020 477,715        
2021 (140,966)       

1,647,244$   
 

Actuarial Assumptions:  The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2017 and 2016 actuarial valuations 
for each of the Plans were determined using the following actuarial assumptions: 

2017 2016

Valuation Date June 30, 2015 June 30, 2015
Measurement Date June 30, 2016 June 30, 2016
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 7.15% 7.65%
Inflation 2.75% 2.75%
Payroll Growth 3.0% 3.0%
Projected Salary Increase 3.2% - 14.2% (1) 3.2% - 14.2% (1)
Investment Rate of Return 7.15%(2) 7.65%(2)
Mortality Derived using CalPERS 

Membership Data for all Funds
Derived using CalPERS 

Membership Data for all Funds

(1) Depending on entry age and service
(2) Net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation  

The underlying mortality assumptions and all other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2016 
valuation were based on the results of a January 2014 actuarial experience study for the period 1997 to 
2011.  The underlying mortality assumptions used in the June 30, 2015 valuation were based on the 
results of a 2010 CalPERS experience study for the period from 1997 to 2004.  Further details of the 
Experience Study can found on the CalPERS website. 

Discount Rate:  The discount rates used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15% and 7.65% for 
the June 30, 2017 and 2016 valuations, respectively.  To determine whether the municipal bond rate 
should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for each plan, CalPERS stress tested plans that would 
most likely result in a discount rate that would be different from the actuarially assumed discount rate. 
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NOTE F – PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

Based on the testing, none of the tested plans run out of assets.  Therefore, the current 7.15 percent 
discount rate is adequate and the use of the municipal bond rate calculation is not necessary.  The long-
term expected discount rate of 7.15 percent will be applied to all plans in the Public Employees 
Retirement Fund (PERF).  The stress test results are presented in a detailed report that can be obtained 
from the CalPERS website. 

In Fiscal Year 2016-2017, the financial reporting discount rate for the Plan was lowered from 7.65 
percent to 7.15 percent.  Deferred outflows of resources for changes of assumptions represent the 
unamortized portion of this assumption change. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of 
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and 
long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical 
returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound returns were calculated over the short-term 
(first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected 
nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each 
fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived 
at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-
term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated 
above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent. 

The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class for each of the Plans. The 
rate of return was calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate 
and asset allocation. These rates of return are net of administrative expenses. 

New New
Strategic Real Return Real Return Strategic Real Return Real Return

Asset Class Allocation Years 1 - 10(a) Years 11+(b) Allocation Years 1 - 10(a) Years 11+(b)

Global Equity 47.0% 4.90% 5.38% 51.0% 5.25% 5.71%
Global Fixed Income 19.0% 0.80% 2.27% 20.0% 0.99% 2.43%
Inflation Sensitive 6.0% 0.60% 1.39% 6.0% 0.45% 3.36%
Private Equity 12.0% 6.60% 6.63% 10.0% 6.83% 6.95%
Real Estate 11.0% 2.80% 5.21% 10.0% 4.50% 5.13%
Infrastructure and

Forestland 3.0% 3.90% 5.36% 2.0% 4.50% 5.09%
Liquidity 2.0% (0.40)% (0.90)% 1.0% (0.55)% (1.05)%

Total 100.0% 100.0%

(a)  An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period.
(b)  An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period.

2017 2016
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NOTE F – PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate:  The 
following presents the Agency’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plans, calculated 
using the discount rate for the Plans, as well as what the Agency’s proportionate share of the net pension 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-
percentage point higher than the current rate: 

2017 2016

1% Decrease 6.15% 6.65%
Net Pension Liability 8,208,572$     6,755,431$     

Current Discount Rate 7.15% 7.65%
Net Pension Liability 4,748,058$     3,862,276$     

1% Increase 8.15% 8.65%
Net Pension Liability 1,881,998$     1,471,227$      

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position:  Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary net 
position is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports. 

Payable to the Pension Plan:  At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Agency reported payables for the 
outstanding amount of contributions payable to the pension plan of $24,568 and $23,941, respectively. 

NOTE G – OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) 

The Agency implemented GASB Statement No. 75 as of January 1, 2017.  As a result, GASB Statement 
No. 45 was effective for 2016 and GASB Statement No. 75 was effective for 2017.  The following 
disclosures are required under GASB Statement No. 45. 

Description of the Plan:  The Agency participates as a single-employer in the Public Employees' Medical 
and Hospital Care Act (PEMHCA) provided through the California Public Employees' Retirement System 
(CalPERS). Employees can choose one of four medical options: Blue Shield HMO, PERSCare PPO, 
PERSChoice PPO, or PERSSelect PPO. In addition, dental and vision insurance are provided to 
employees, spouses, and dependents at no cost to the employee, through the Association of California 
Water Agencies Joint Power Insurance Authority (ACWA-JPIA). 

For the year ended December 31, 2016, the Agency had 29 retired employees participating in the 
program. The Agency currently has 59 active employees who may become eligible to retire and receive 
benefits in the future. Employees become eligible to retire and receive Agency-paid medical, dental, and 
vision benefits upon attainment of age 55 and 10 years of Agency service.  The Agency also pays a 0.33% 
premium administrative charge for all retirees. 

The Agency does not issue a separate stand-alone financial report for its OPEB plan.  

Funding Policy:  For active employees and dependents, the Agency contributes to the plan at a rate equal 
to the average of the premiums for all CalPERS plans available, excluding the plan with the lowest 
premium and the plan with the highest premium, in any given year.  The Agency is currently funding the 
benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis.  As of December 31, 2016, the Agency had $3,354,379, designated in 
its Retiree Benefits Fund for future OPEB obligations.  The Agency has also adopted a policy to 
contribute $1,000,000 to the Retiree Benefits Fund in any year following two consecutive years of power 
generation revenue in excess of $20,000,000. 
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NOTE G – OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued) 

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation:  The Agency's annual OPEB cost for 2016 is calculated 
based on the annual required contribution (ARC) of the Agency, an amount that is actuarially determined 
in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding, 
that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover the normal cost each year and amortize any 
unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) of the plan over a period not to exceed thirty years. The 
following table shows the components of the Agency's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount 
contributed to the plan, and the changes in the Agency's net OPEB obligation.  

2016
Annual required contribution

Service cost at year-end 429,570$        
30-year amortization of funded liability 527,565         

Total annual required contribution 957,135         

Interest on net OPEB obligation 185,248         
Adjustment on net OPEB obligation (257,521)       

Annual OPEB cost 884,862         

Employer contibutions (285,917)       
Net change in OPEB obligation 598,945         

Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year 4,631,191      

Net OPEB obligation, end of year 5,230,136$     
 

Annual Percentage of
Annual Employer Annual Cost Net 

Year Ended OPEB Cost Contribution Contributed Ending OPEB

December 31, 2014 917,625$    232,686$     25% 3,990,149$    
December 31, 2015 894,865      253,823       28% 4,631,191      
December 31, 2016 884,862      285,917       32% 5,230,136       

Funded Status and Funding Progress:  The funded status of the plan based on an actuarial study using 
age-adjusted premiums as of December 31, 2014 (the most recent actuarial report prepared under GASB 
45), was as follows: 

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL)
Active employees 5,605,316$     
Retired employees 3,882,259      

9,487,575      
Actuarial value of plan assets -                 

Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) 9,487,575$     

Funded Ratio (actuarial value of plan assets / AAL) 0.00%
Covered payroll (active plan members) 6,035,251$     
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 157%  



SOUTH FEATHER WATER AND POWER AGENCY 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

December 31, 2017 and 2016 

38 

NOTE G – OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued) 

Actuarial valuations for an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and 
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Actuarially determined 
amounts are subject to continuous revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new 
estimates about the future are formulated. Although the valuation results are based on the values which 
the Agency's actuarial consultant believes are reasonable assumptions, the valuation results reflect a long-
term perspective and, as such, are merely an estimate of what future costs may actually be. Deviations in 
any of several factors, such as future interest rates, medical cost inflation, Medicare coverage, and 
changes in marital status, could result in actual costs being less or greater than estimated. 

The schedule of funding progress presented as required supplementary information following the notes to 
the financial statements, will present multi-year trend information that shows whether the actuarial value 
of the plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for 
benefits. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions:  Calculations of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based 
on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types 
of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs 
between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used are 
designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, 
consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. 

In the 2014 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit cost method was used. The actuarial assumptions 
included a 4.0% investment rate of return. The turnover rates were taken from a standard actuarial table 
according to the Crocker-Sarason Table T-5 less mortality, decreased by 20% at all ages. This factor was 
expected to match historical Agency turnover experience. Retirement rates for the valuation were based in 
part on the Agency's own experience and in part on the actuarial consultant's experience with agencies of 
similar size and charter. 10% of future retirees were assumed to waive coverage under PEMHCA. 60% of 
future retirees were assumed to have spouses at the time of retirement. Female spouses were assumed to 
be three years younger than male spouses. The healthcare trend rates are based on the actuarial 
consultant's knowledge of the general healthcare environment and the specific coverages offered by the 
Agency. 

The following disclosures for 2017 are required under GASB 75.  

Plan Description:  The Agency’s defined benefit OPEB plan, South Feather Water and Power Agency 
Retiree Benefits Plan (SFWPARB Plan), provides OPEB benefit for all permanent full-time employees of 
the Agency. Benefits are set by the Memoranda of Understandings with the applicable employee 
bargaining units and may be amended by agreement between the Agency and the bargaining units.  
SFWPARB Plan is a single employer defined benefit OPEB plan administered by the Agency.  No assets 
are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of Statement 75.  As of December 31, 
2017, the Agency has $3,382,097 designated in its Retiree Benefits Fund for future OPEB obligations.  
Since these funds are not held in an irrevocable trust to provide benefits to plan members, these funds do 
not meet the criteria in paragraph 4 of Statement 75. 

Benefits Provided:  SFWPARB Plan provides healthcare and insurance benefits all permanent full-time 
employees who retire directly from the Agency, at a minimum age of 55, with a minimum of ten years of 
service   Eligible employees’ surviving spouses are also eligible for benefits.  The Agency participates in  
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NOTE G – OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued) 

the Public Employees' Medical and Hospital Care Act (PEMHCA) provided through the California Public 
Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS). Employees can choose one of four medical options: Blue 
Shield HMO, PERSCare PPO, PERSChoice PPO, or PERSSelect PPO. In addition, dental and vision 
insurance are provided to employees, spouses, and, through the Association of California Water Agencies 
Joint Power Insurance Authority (ACWA-JPIA). The contribution is based on the rate equal to the 
average of the premiums for all CalPERS plans available, excluding the plan with the lowest premium 
and the plan with the highest premium. 

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms:  As of the December 31, 2017 actuarial valuation, the following 
current and former employees were covered by the benefit terms under the SFWPARB Plan:  

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 31
Active employees 59

Total 90
 

Total OPEB Liability:  The Agency's total OPEB liability was measured as of December 31, 2017, and 
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.  This liability was rolled back to determine the 
December 31, 2016 total OPEB liability. 

Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs:  The total OPEB liability in the December 31, 2017 actuarial 
valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all 
periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified: 

Actuarial assumptions:
Inflation 3.50%
Salary increases 3.00%
Discount rate 3.16%
Mortality rate RP-2014 Mortality

Pre-retirement turnover Crocker-Sarason Table T-5 less mortality, 
reduced by 20% for all ages

Healthcare trend rate Medical 6% for 2017, 5% for 2018 and after
Dental and Vision 4%  

The discount rate was based on the Standard and Poor’s Municipal Bond 20 Year High Grade Index at 
December 30, 2017.  

Mortality information was based on the Society of Actuaries (SOA) RP-2014 Mortality Tables based on 
the results from of an actuarial experience study for the period 2004 to 2008. The experience study report 
may be accessed on the SOA website at https://www.soa.org/research/topics/pension-exp-study-list/. 
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NOTE G – OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued) 

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability 

Increase
(Decrease)

Total OPEB
Liability

Balance at January 1, 2017 12,941,517$     
Changes in the year:

Service cost 557,075            
Interest 404,270            
Benefit payments (298,629)          

Net changes 662,716            

Balance at December 31, 2017 13,604,233$     
 

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate:  The following presents the total 
OPEB liability of the Agency, as well as what the Agency's total OPEB liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the 
current discount rate: 

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

2.16% 3.16% 4.16%

Net OPEB liability 15,548,144$        13,604,233$        11,896,228$         

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates:  The following 
presents the total OPEB liability of the Agency, as well as what the Agency’s total OPEB liability would 
be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage 
point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates: 

Current Healthcare Cost
1% Decrease Trend Rates 1% Increase
(5% Medical (6% Medical (7% Medical

decreasing to 4%) decreasing to 5%) decreasing to 6%)

Net OPEB liability 11,881,552$        13,604,233$        15,756,277$         

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
OPEB:  For the year ended December 31, 2017, the Agency recognized OPEB expense of $961,345. At 
December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Agency had no deferred outflows or inflows related to the OPEB plan. 
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NOTE H – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Various claims have been filed against the Agency. In the opinion of the Agency’s management and legal 
counsel, the claims will not have a material impact on the basic financial statements. 

The Agency entered into a contract on November 14, 2014 in the amount of $19,626,090 for the Lost 
Creek Dam Improvement Project construction, of which $12,582,734 was expended as of December 31, 
2016.  This contract has been terminated.  The Agency has entered into a contract with Granite 
Construction Company on May 12, 2017 to complete the project at a cost not to exceed $20,444,839, of 
which $7,824,046 was expended as of December 31, 2017.  The total project cost is estimated to be 
approximately $40,000,000. 

The Agency entered into a construction contract for the Miners Ranch Water Treatment Improvement 
Project in the amount of $25,533,622, of which $23,743,624 has been expended on the project through 
December 31, 2017. 

In 2012, the Agency was sued by the State Water Contractors (SWC) alleging the Agency’s activities 
have a negative effect on the temperature of the Feather River.  The SWC, through the Department of 
Water Resources (DWR), agreed as part of their renewal of the FERC license to operate the Oroville 
facilities to maintain water temperature standards in the Feather River.  The SWC’s lawsuit claimed the 
Agency’s water discharge from the Kelly Ridge Powerhouse affects DWR’s ability to meet the 
temperature requirements.  The Agency reached a settlement with the SWC resulting in the dismissal of 
the lawsuit.  As part of the agreement, DWR may request the Agency to discharge water in Lake Oroville 
instead of through the Kelly Ridge Powerhouse for periods of seven to twenty-one days.  As a result, the 
Agency would lose the capability to generate power, but would be reimbursed by DWR for the lost power 
revenue. 

NOTE I – ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY 

During 2017 and 2016, the Agency received 80% and 83%, respectively, of its total revenue from PG&E 
for power generated from the Agency’s power plants.  

NOTE J – RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Agency participates in the Association of California Water Agencies Joint Powers Insurance 
Authority (ACWA/JPIA) a public entity risk pool of California water agencies, for general and auto 
liability, public officials liability, property damage, fidelity insurance and workers compensation liability.  
ACWA/JPIA provides insurance through the pool up to a certain level, beyond which group-purchased 
commercial excess insurance is obtained. 
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NOTE J – RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 

The Agency pays an annual premium to ACWA/JPIA that includes its pro-rata share of excess insurance 
premiums, charges for the pooled risk, claims adjusting and legal costs, and administrative and other costs 
to operate the ACWA/JPIA.  The Agency’s deductibles and maximum coverage are as follows: 

Commercial
Coverage ACWA/JPIA Insurance Deductible

General and Auto Liability 5,000,000$     55,000,000$     None
(Includes public officials liability)

Property Damage 100,000          150,000,000     $ 1,000 to 50,000
Fidelity 100,000          1,000,000         1,000
Workers' Compensation Liability 2,000,000       Statutory None
Employers Liability 2,000,000       2,000,000         None  

The Agency continues to carry commercial insurance for all other risks of loss to cover all claims for risk 
of loss to which the Agency is exposed.  Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded 
commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 

NOTE K – AGREEMENT WITH PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY 

The Agency has entered into a ten-year power purchase agreement with PG&E beginning July 1, 2010. 
Revenue to the Agency from this agreement is a combination of variable, market-based payments and a 
fixed monthly payment. Operations of the facilities will continue to be the responsibility of the Agency. 

NOTE L – AGREEMENT WITH NORTH YUBA WATER DISTRICT 

In May of 2005, an agreement was reached with North Yuba Water District (NYWD), previously known 
as the Yuba County Water District, which defines the settlement of water rights and the disposition of net 
hydroelectric project revenues beginning July 1, 2010. The agreement provides first for the payment of 
normal operating and maintenance expenses for the project, repayment of re-licensing expenses incurred 
by the Agency, payment of a minimal annual amount to the Agency and NYWD, the creation of a 15% 
working capital reserve, and the creation of an $18,000,000 contingency reserve. Following the 
satisfaction of the obligations, then the remaining funds, or net power revenues, are distributed equally 
between the Agency and NYWD.  The net power revenue is also adjusted by loans payable and 
unexpected expenditures.  There was a distribution of net power revenue for the year ended December 31, 
2017 of $4,429,288.  Due to the uncertainty of the amount, and if a distribution will be made, the Agency 
does not accrue this amount at year end. 

NOTE M – RELICENSING 

The Agency has been preparing for the relicensing of its Power Projects as required by the Federal 
Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC). In connection with the relicensing, the Agency has incurred 
expenses, entered into service contracts, and established cash reserves to pay for anticipated costs.  Initial 
costs incurred for the relicensing are being capitalized, and will be amortized over the life of the new 
license once it has been issued by FERC.  Total cost capitalized as of December 31, 2017 amounted to  
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NOTE M – RELICENSING (Continued) 

$5,176,306.  Current costs in the relicensing process are minimal and are being expensed.  The relicensing 
process is nearing its completion. The current FERC license expired on March 31, 2009. Until the 
relicensing process is completed, operations continue under the current FERC license conditions. 

NOTE N – STORM DAMAGE 

During January and February 2017, the Agency suffered significant storm damage that impacted a 
number of its facilities, canals and roads.  The Agency has applied for Federal Emergency Management 
Agency (FEMA) reimbursements for the storm damage expenses through the California Office of 
Emergency Services (CalOES) totaling $2.5 million.  As of December 31, 2017, projects totaling $35,000 
have been awarded reimbursement.   The Agency has not accrued a receivable for any additional 
reimbursements of grant funded expenses incurred because management does not believe the awards have 
received final approval from the granting agencies and the award may not actually be realized. 

In addition, as a result of the storms at the beginning of 2017 and the failure of the Oroville Dam 
spillways, the Agency’s Kelly Ridge Powerhouse was flooded and suffered severe damage.  The Agency 
so far has received reimbursements totaling $800,000 from their insurance company for the cost of 
repairs.  The Agency has included the $250,000 insurance deductible as part of their claim with FEMA. 

NOTE O – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

The Agency terminated a construction contract for the Lost Creek Dam Improvement Project in 2017.  
The contractor filed a lawsuit against the Agency alleging they were not compensated for all the work 
performed under the contract.  In February 2018, the Agency entered into settlement agreements with the 
contractor.  The Agency agreed to pay $295,000 for work performed under the contract and to dismiss the 
lawsuit filed against the Agency.  The contractor filed a separate lawsuit for additional work performed 
under the contract totaling $6 million.  The Agency believes most of the claims are without merit and 
plans to contest this lawsuit. 

The Agency entered into a separate settlement agreement in February 2018 related to a dispute over the 
turbine shutoff valve at the Kelly Ridge Powerhouse.  The valve was initially replaced in 2013 but did not 
operate properly and subsequently had to be reinstalled multiple times.  The Agency filed a lawsuit 
against the construction contractor and the design engineer.  An agreement was reached where the design 
engineer would pay the Agency $275,000 and the construction contractor would pay the Agency 
$150,000.  The installed valve can be used by the Agency through December 31, 2019, at which time it 
must be returned to the contractor. 

NOTE P – CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES 

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Agency adopted GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions.  This Statement requires the 
Agency recognize in its financial statements the total OPEB liability for the health benefits provided to 
retirees, since the Agency does not hold assets in an irrevocable trust for heath benefits.  Due to the 
implementation of this Statement, total liabilities increased by $7,711,381 and total net position decreased 
by $7,711,381 as of January 1, 2017. 
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2017 2016 2015 2014

Proportion of the net pension liability 0.120450% 0.111181% 0.101384% 0.110077%
Proportionate share of the net pension liability 4,748,058$      3,862,276$      2,781,438$      2,720,542$      
Covered - employee payroll - measurement period 5,627,825$      5,570,519$      5,746,942$      5,118,332$      
Proportionate share of the net pension liability as a percentage of

covered payroll 84.37% 69.33% 48.40% 53.15%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 81.13% 74.06% 78.40% 79.82%

Notes to Schedule:

2017 2016 2015 2014

Contractually required contribution (actuarially determined) 652,363$         596,806$         729,747$         431,342$         
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contributions (652,363)          (596,806)          (729,747)          (431,342)          
Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     

Covered - employee payroll - calendar year 5,843,236$      5,374,903$      5,527,640$      5,382,338$      
Contributions as a percentage of covered - employee payroll 11.16% 11.10% 7.57% 8.01%

Valuation date:  June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013 June 30, 2012
Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Amortization method
Remaining amortization period 12 years 13 years 14 years 15 years
Asset valuation method
Inflation 2.75% 2.75% 2.75% 2.75%
Salary increases
Investment rate of return

Retirement age

Omitted years: GASB Statement No. 68 was implemented during the year ended December 31, 2014. No information was available prior to this
date.

Change in Benefit Terms: The figures above do not include any liability impact that may have resulted from plan changes which occurred after
June 30, 2016 as they have minimal cost impact. This applies for voluntary benefit changes as well as any offers of Two Years Additional Service
Credit (a.k.a. Golden Handshakes).  

Changes in assumptions:  In 2017, the accounting discount rate was reduced fom 7.65% to 7.15%.

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE PENSION PLAN - MISCELLANEOUS PLAN

SOUTH FEATHER WATER AND POWER AGENCY

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

SCHEDULE OF THE PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE
NET PENSION LIABILITY

Last 10 Years

Last 10 Years

Omitted years: GASB Statement No. 68 was implemented during the year ended December 31, 2014. No information was available prior to this
date.

Entry age normal
Level percentage of payroll, closed

5-year smoothed market

Varies by entry age and service

50-67 years

7.50%, net of pension plan investment expense,
 including inflation
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UAAL as a
Actuarial Normal Actuarial Liability Annual Percentage
Valuation Accrued Value of (Excess Funded Covered of Covered

Date Liability Assets Assets) Status Payroll Payroll

12/31/08 6,770,457$     -$              6,770,457$     0% 4,879,030$     139%
12/31/11 7,615,707$     -$              7,615,707$     0% 5,319,312$     143%
12/31/14 9,487,575$     -$              9,487,575$     0% 6,035,251$     157%

SOUTH FEATHER WATER AND POWER AGENCY

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS FOR  

December 31, 2016
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2017
Total OPEB liability
Service cost 557,075$          
Interest 404,270            
Benefit payments (298,629)          
Net change in total OPEB liability 662,716            
Total OPEB liability - beginning 12,941,517       
Total OPEB liability - ending 13,604,233$     

Covered-employee payroll - measurement period 5,843,236$       

Total OPEB liability as percentage of covered-employee payroll 232.82%

Notes to schedule:
Valuation date
Measurement period - calendar year ended
Discount Rate 3.16%

Changes in assumptions.  None since December 31, 2017.

Omitted years: GASB Statement No. 75 was implemented during the year ended December 31, 2017. No
information was available prior to this date. Information will be added prospectively as it becomes available
until 10 years are reported.

For the measurement periods ended December 31

SOUTH FEATHER WATER AND POWER AGENCY

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

Benefit changes.  None since December 31, 2017.

Note: No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in GASB Statement 75, paragraph 4, to pay 
related benefits.

December 31, 2017
December 31, 2017
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Fund 01 - General Fund: This fund is used to account for the Agency's general operations, as well as 
activities related to the Sly Creek Power Project. 

Fund 06 - Legacy Projects: This fund is used to account for activities related to the Agency's remaining 
cost-sharing projects under the Power Purchase Agreement with Pacific Gas & Electric. 

Fund 07 - Joint Facilities Fund: This fund is used to account for revenues and expenses in accordance 
with the Agency's 2005 agreement with North Yuba Water District. 

Fund 12 - Miners Ranch Treatment Plant (MRTP) System Capacity Fees: This fund is used to account for 
activity related to increasing the Miners Ranch Treatment Plant system capacity. The source of funds for 
these expenses are system capacity charges (one-time development fees) collected with the installation of 
new accounts. 

Fund 51 - Retiree Benefits Fund: This fund is used to account for the Agency's Other Post Employment 
Benefits (OPEB) obligations. 

Fund 59 - Debt Service Fund:  This fund is used to account for the issuance of the 2016 Certificates of 
Participation. 

 



General Legacy Joint
Fund Projects Facilities

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and investments 6,917,453$      437,727$       16,692,313$  
Accounts receivable 462,095 690,768         1,471,803
Accrued interest receivable 55,170                       
Property taxes receivable 281,006                       
Inventory 150,195                       586,393
Prepaid expenses 186,986 3,600             94,551
Loans receivable 8,935                       
Due from other funds                       22,551,941

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 8,061,840      1,132,095      41,397,001    

RESTRICTED ASSETS
Cash with fiscal agents for capital projects
Cash with fiscal agents for contract retentions 1,080,622 143,577         

TOTAL RESTRICTED ASSETS 1,080,622 143,577

CAPITAL ASSETS
Not being depreciated 24,811,173 30,193,710    7,543,508
Being depreciated 54,245,902                       95,136,316
Less: accumulated depreciation (32,838,224)                         (75,651,504)   

TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS, NET 46,218,851    30,193,710    27,028,320    

TOTAL ASSETS 55,361,313    31,469,382    68,425,321    

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pensions 1,274,366 1,080,961
Deferred loss on bond refunding 85,995                       

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 1,360,361 1,080,961

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 1,663,241 684,239         288,507
Accrued payroll 138,412 5,853             113,844
Accrued interest payable 1 (1)                   
Deposits 228,739                       2,570
Retainage payable 1,187,181 564,292
Other payables 31,012 (21)                 
Due to other funds 26,319,227    18,295,045    
Current portion of long-term liabilities 234,902                       163,775

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 29,802,715    19,549,407    568,696         

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Compensated absences, net of current portion 383,297         428,570         
Long-term debt, net of current portion 2,240,010
Net OPEB obligation 7,346,286 6,257,947
Net pension liability 2,516,470 2,231,588

TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 10,246,053                          11,158,115    

TOTAL LIABILITIES 40,048,768    19,549,407    11,726,811    

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pensions 160,488 142,320

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 21,716,697 29,772,995 24,776,826
Restricted for capacity expansion
Unrestricted (5,204,279) (17,853,020)   32,860,325

TOTAL NET POSITION 16,512,418$  11,919,975$  57,637,151$  

SOUTH FEATHER WATER AND POWER AGENCY

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION

December 31, 2017
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MRTP
System Retiree Debt 

Capacity Benefits Service Total

55,833$         3,333,160$    (1,000)$          27,435,486$     
2,624,666         

55,170              
281,006            
736,588            
285,137            

8,935                
8,618,073 48,937 13,395,321 44,614,272       
8,673,906      3,382,097      13,394,321    76,041,260       

2,745,236      2,745,236         
1,224,199         

2,745,236 3,969,435

62,548,391       
149,382,218     

(108,489,728)   
                                                                  103,440,881     

8,673,906      3,382,097      16,139,557    183,451,576     

2,355,327         
85,995              

2,441,322

2,635,987         
258,109            

218,369 218,369            
231,309            

1,751,473         
30,991              

44,614,272       
570,000 968,677            

                                            788,369         50,709,187       

811,867            
26,677,390 28,917,400       

13,604,233       
4,748,058         

                                            26,677,390    48,081,558       

                                            27,465,759    98,790,745       

302,808            

76,266,518       
1,512,906 1,512,906         
7,161,000 3,382,097      (11,326,202)   9,019,921         

8,673,906$    3,382,097$    (11,326,202)$ 86,799,345$     
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General Legacy Joint
Fund Projects Facilities

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and investments 30,710$           567,877$         24,714,482$    
Accounts receivable 312,628 124,102 1,871,453
Accrued interest receivable 28,234
Property taxes receivable 259,856
Inventory 158,369 594,561
Prepaid expenses 184,660 3,600 138,197
Loans receivable 14,117
Due from other funds 4,098,720 8,535,476

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 5,087,294        695,579           35,854,169      
RESTRICTED ASSETS

Cash with fiscal agents for capital projects
Cash with fiscal agents for contract retentions 293,607 635,051

TOTAL RESTRICTED ASSETS 293,607 635,051

CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital assets

Not being depreciated 8,401,625 19,684,212 8,258,086
Being depreciated 54,032,852 93,884,683
Less: accumulated depreciation (31,693,339) (74,702,681)

TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS, NET 30,741,138      19,684,212      27,440,088      

TOTAL ASSETS 36,122,039      21,014,842      63,294,257      

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pensions 1,306,441 1,109,405
Deferred loss on bond refunding 98,583

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 1,405,024 1,109,405

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 1,525,063 157,725 642,623
Accrued payroll 146,458 5,853 125,676
Accrued interest payable 1
Deposits 147,234 738
Other payables 33,372 (21)
Retainage payable 366,691 635,051
Due to other funds 7,769,541 12,295,785
Current portion of long-term liabilities 224,518 151,306

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 10,212,878      13,094,393      920,343           

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Compensated absences, net of current portion 375,945           386,819           
Long-term debt, net of current portion                         112,614
Net OPEB obligation 3,315,297 1,914,839
Net pension liability 2,047,006 1,815,270

TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 5,738,248                                4,229,542        

TOTAL LIABILITIES 15,951,126      13,094,393      5,149,885        

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pensions 234,993 208,390

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 22,312,453 19,684,212 27,327,474
Restricted for capacity expansion
Unrestricted (971,509) (11,763,763) 31,717,913

TOTAL NET POSITION 21,340,944$    7,920,449$      59,045,387$    

SOUTH FEATHER WATER AND POWER AGENCY

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION

December 31, 2016
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System Retiree Debt 
Capacity Benefits Service Total

25,404$           3,333,160$      28,671,633$    
2,308,183        

28,234             
259,856           
752,930           
326,457           

14,117             
7,409,911 21,219 20,065,326      
7,435,315        3,354,379                                52,426,736      

19,085,608$    19,085,608      
928,658           

19,085,608 20,014,266

                        
36,343,923      

147,917,535    
(106,396,020)   

                                                                        77,865,438      

7,435,315        3,354,379        19,085,608      150,306,440    

2,415,846        
98,583             

2,514,429

2,325,411        
277,987           

173,255 173,256           
147,972           

33,351             
1,001,742        

20,065,326      
250,000 625,824           

                                                423,255           24,650,869      

762,764           
27,264,293 27,376,907      

5,230,136        
3,862,276        

                                                27,264,293      37,232,083      

                                                27,687,548      61,882,952      

443,383

69,324,139      
1,481,315$      1,481,315        
5,954,000 3,354,379        (8,601,940)       19,689,080      

7,435,315$      3,354,379$      (8,601,940)$     90,494,534$    
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General Legacy Joint
Fund Projects Facilities

OPERATING REVENUE   
Domestic water sales 2,116,331$    
Irrigation water sales 228,098
Sale of electricity 2,053,932 16,310,506$  
Other services 444,286 43,550

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 4,842,647                            16,354,056    
 

OPERATING EXPENSES  
Source of supply 13,852
Water treatment 1,229,143
Environmental health and safety 245,328 257,960
Transmission and distribution 2,017,961
Customer accounts 734,957
Plant operations 803,507 8,201,490
General and administrative 2,333,582 3,992,203
Other operating expenses 19,509           
Depreciation 1,144,887 993,943

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 8,542,726                            13,445,596    
  

NET INCOME (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS (3,700,079)                           2,908,460      
  

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)   
Interest and penalty income 46,690 20$                165,327
Property taxes 568,094
Insurance refund 822,581
Interest expense (12,588)                                (8,278)

TOTAL NON-OPERATING
REVENUES (EXPENSES) 602,196         20                  979,630         

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
Capital reimbursements 3,999,506
System capacity charges                       

TOTAL CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS                       3,999,506                            

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS (3,097,883)     3,999,526      3,888,090      

TRANSFERS                                             
Transfers in 2,339,656
Transfers out (397,177)                              (1,258,067)     

TOTAL TRANSFERS 1,942,479                            (1,258,067)     

CHANGE IN NET POSITION (1,155,404)     3,999,526      2,630,023      

Net position at beginning of year - as previously reported 21,340,944 7,920,449      59,045,387    
Restatement for change in accounting principles - Note P (3,673,122)     (4,038,259)     
Net position, beginning of year - as restated 17,667,822 7,920,449 55,007,128

NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR 16,512,418$   11,919,975$   57,637,151$   

SOUTH FEATHER WATER AND POWER AGENCY

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

For the year ended December 31, 2017
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MRTP
System Retiree Debt 

Capacity Benefits Service Total
    

2,116,331$    
228,098         

18,364,438    
487,836         

                                                                  21,196,703    
   
   

13,852           
1,229,143      

503,288         
2,017,961      

734,957         
9,004,997      

1,000$           6,326,785      
19,509           

2,138,830      
                                            1,000             21,989,322    
   
                                            (1,000)            (792,619)        
   
   

1,162$           27,718$         25,971           266,888         
568,094         
822,581         

(857,821) (878,687)        

1,162             27,718           (831,850)        778,876         

3,999,506      
30,429 30,429           
30,429                                                       4,029,935      

31,591           27,718           (832,850)        4,016,192      

                      
1,207,000 397,177 3,943,833      

                      (2,288,589) (3,943,833)     
1,207,000                            (1,891,412)                           

1,238,591      27,718           (2,724,262)     4,016,192      

7,435,315      3,354,379      (8,601,940)     90,494,534    
(7,711,381)     

7,435,315 3,354,379 (8,601,940)     82,783,153

8,673,906$     3,382,097$     (11,326,202)$  86,799,345$   
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General Legacy Joint
Fund Projects Facilities

OPERATING REVENUE   
Domestic water sales 2,051,320$                                                
Irrigation water sales 227,744                                                     
Sale of electricity 1,760,567                            15,492,754$  
Other services 219,877                               373,619         

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 4,259,508                            15,866,373    
 

OPERATING EXPENSES  
Source of supply 13,582
Water treatment 1,157,375
Environmental health and safety 255,988 254,162
Transmission and distribution 1,891,722
Customer accounts 603,770
Plant operations 853,992                       4,774,396
General and administrative 1,825,965 1,779,875
Other operating expenses 57,031
Depreciation 1,155,786 1,352,202

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 7,815,211                            8,160,635      
  

NET INCOME (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS (3,555,703)                           7,705,738      
  

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)   
Interest and penalty income (15,417)          220$              156,622         
Property taxes 531,696         
Insurance refund 2,004
Interest expense (60,960)                                (114,072)

TOTAL NON-OPERATING
REVENUES (EXPENSES) 455,319         220                44,554           

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
Capital reimbursements 698,467
System capacity charges 40                                        

TOTAL CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 40                  698,467                               

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS (3,100,344)     698,687         7,750,292      

TRANSFERS                                             
Transfers in 3,323,015                                                  
Transfers out                                             (1,268,350)     

TOTAL TRANSFERS 3,323,015                            (1,268,350)     

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 222,671         698,687         6,481,942      

Net position at beginning of year 21,118,273    7,221,762      52,563,445    

NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR 21,340,944$  7,920,449$    59,045,387$  

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

For the year ended December 31, 2016

SOUTH FEATHER WATER AND POWER AGENCY
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MRTP
System Retiree Debt 

Capacity Benefits Service Total
    

2,051,320$    
227,744         

17,253,321    
593,496         

                                                                  20,125,881    
   
   

13,582           
1,157,375      

510,150         
1,891,722      

603,770         
5,628,388      

422,983$       4,028,823      
57,031           

2,507,988      
                                            422,983         16,398,829    
   
                                            (422,983)        3,727,052      
   
   

17,117$         21,219$         146                179,907         
531,696         

2,004             
(170,438) (345,470)        

17,117           21,219           (170,292)        368,137         

698,467         
63,925 63,965           
63,925                                                       762,432         

81,042           21,219           (593,275)        4,857,621      

                      
5,954,000                                                  9,277,015      

                                            (8,008,665)     (9,277,015)     
5,954,000                            (8,008,665)                           

6,035,042      21,219           (8,601,940)     4,857,621      

1,400,273      3,333,160                            85,636,913    

7,435,315$    3,354,379$    (8,601,940)$   90,494,534$  
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550 Howe Avenue, Suite 210 
Sacramento, California 95825 

Telephone: (916) 564-8727 
FAX: (916) 564-8728 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING 
STANDARDS 

To the Board of Directors 
South Feather Water and Power Agency 
Oroville, California  

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the South Feather 
Water and Power Agency (the Agency) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2017, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Agency’s basic financial statements, 
and have issued our report thereon dated July 17, 2018. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Agency’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s internal control.  Accordingly, we 
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the Agency’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance.  

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may 
exist that were not identified.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

  



To the Board of Directors 
South Feather Water and Power Agency 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Agency’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s internal 
control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Agency’s internal control and compliance. 

 
July 17, 2018 
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GOVERNANCE LETTER 

To the Board of Directors 
South Feather Water and Power Agency 
Oroville, California 

We have audited the financial statements of the South Feather Water and Power Agency (the Agency) for 
the year ended December 31, 2017, and have issued our report thereon dated July 17, 2018.  Professional 
standards require that we provide you with the information about our responsibilities under generally 
accepted auditing standards and, if applicable, Government Auditing Standards, as well as certain 
information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit.  Professional standards also require that 
we communicate to you the following information related to our audit. 

Our Responsibility under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards (GAAS) and Government 
Auditing Standards 

As stated in our engagement letter dated May 27, 2015, our responsibility, as described by professional 
standards, is to express an opinion about whether the financial statements prepared by management with 
your oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted 
accounting principles.  Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve you or management of your 
responsibilities. 

As part of our audit, we considered the internal control of the Agency.  Such considerations were solely 
for the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such 
internal control. 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of the Agency’s compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts and grants.  However, the objective of our tests was not to provide an opinion on 
compliance with such provisions. 

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit 

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements; therefore, our audit involves judgment about the number of transactions to be 
examined and the areas to be tested. 

Our audit included obtaining an understanding of the entity and its environment, including internal 
control, sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to design the 
nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures.  Material misstatements may result from (1) errors, 
(2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental 
regulations that are attributable to the entity or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of 
the entity.  We noted no material weaknesses in internal control as a result of our audit. 
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We performed the audit according to the planned scope previously communicated to you in our 
engagement letter dated May 27, 2015. 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies.  The significant 
accounting policies used by the Agency are described in Note A to the financial statements.  The Agency 
adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 75, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions as of January 1, 2017, which 
resulted in the Agency recording a restatement of beginning net position at January 1, 2017 to record an 
other postemployment benefit (OPEB) liability related to health benefits provided to retirees as discussed 
in Note P of the financial statements.  Implementation of GASB No. 75 resulted in an increase in the 
OPEB liability of $7,711,381 as of January 1, 2017.  Additional required disclosures under GASB 
Statement No. 75 were also added to Note G to the financial statements due to the adoption of this 
Statement. We noted no transaction entered into by the Agency during the year for which there is a lack 
of authoritative guidance or consensus.  All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial 
statement in the proper period. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are 
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about 
future events.  Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the 
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ 
significantly from those expected.  The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were: 
depreciable lives and method used to depreciate capital assets, litigation and claims, and the accruals for 
pension and postemployment benefits.   We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop 
the estimates in determining that they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a 
whole.  The disclosures and amounts recorded in the financial statements related to litigation and claims 
were based on the Agency’s attorney’s evaluation and agreements that were reached prior to the issuance 
of the financial statements.  The accrual for postemployment benefits was determined by an actuarial 
valuation, which is required to be performed every two years and updated every year.  The accrual for the 
unfunded pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation performed by CalPERS, which is 
performed annually. 

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial 
statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statements were the following: 

 Information on the Agency’s pension plans, including the Agency’s share of the unfunded 
pension liability, as shown in Note F.  The Agency’s share of the unfunded pension liability at 
June 30, 2017, the most recent measurement date, was $4,748,058, which is reflected as a liability 
in the Agency’s financial statements as of December 31, 2017. 

 The postemployment benefit (OPEB) disclosure in Note G shows that the Agency has a total 
OPEB liability of $13,598,233 as of December 31, 2017.  The Agency has designated $3,382,097 
in its Retiree Benefits fund for the OPEB, but since these funds are not held in an irrevocable 
trust specifically for retiree health benefits, these amounts are not permitted to offset the total 
OPEB liability. 

 The agreement with North Yuba Water District is discussed in Note L of the financial statements, 
which describes the amount held by the Agency in excess of required reserves, if any.  The actual 
payment, if any, is typically not know until after the audited financial statements are completed 
and can be adjusted for significant events occurring prior to the distribution.  As a result, no 
payment is accrued at December 31, 2017. 
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The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.   

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit. 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the 
audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.  
Management has corrected all such misstatements.  Adjustments included 18 closing and audit 
adjustments needed to correct the balances of the accounts and transactions, related to the following: 

 Adjust net position to the prior year ending balance. 

 Reclassify amounts among funds to balance the individual funds. 

 Reclassify balances between cash and investments for liquid accounts. 

 Update the inventory balances. 

 Update depreciation on capital assets. 

 Record the disposal of capital assets. 

 Reclassify accrued payroll among the funds. 

 Record retentions and reclassify amounts from accounts payable. 

 Adjust accrued interest on the PG&E loan. 

 Update the pension liability and related activity for the year. 

 Update the beginning and ending OPEB liability to implement GASB 75. 

 Update the net investment in capital assets accounts. 

 Accrue unpaid 2017 construction costs and reimbursement revenue from PG&E for Lost Creek 
Dam Modification Project. 

The attached schedule summarizes uncorrected misstatements in the financial statements.  Management 
has determined that the effects are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate to the financial 
statements taken as a whole. 

Disagreements With Management 

For purposes of this letter a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or 
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial 
statements or the auditor’s report.  We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the 
course of our audit. 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated July 17, 2018. 
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Management Consultations With Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations.  If a consultation involves 
application of an accounting principle to the Agency’s financial statements or a determination of the type 
of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the 
consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts.  To our 
knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 

Issues Discussed Prior to Retention of Independent Auditors 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Agency’s auditors.  However, these 
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a 
condition to our retention. 

Other Matters 

We applied certain limited procedures to the Management Discussion and Analysis, Schedule of the 
Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability, Schedule of Contributions to the Pension Plan, the 
Schedule of Funding Progress for OPEB and Schedule of Changes in the Agency’s Total OPEB Liability 
and Related Ratios, which are required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic 
financial statements.  Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to 
our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financial statements.  We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the RSI. 

We were engaged to report on the Combining Schedules of Net Position and Revenue, Expenses and 
Changes in Fund Net Position.  With respect to this supplementary information accompanying the 
financial statements, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and 
methods of preparing the information to determine that the information complies with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed 
from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the 
financial statements.  We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying 
accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or the financial statements themselves. 

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management of the Agency 
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

 
July 17, 2018 



Description (Nature)  Total Total Net Change in 

of Audit Difference Assets  Liabilities Position Net Position

To accrue unbilled domestic water sale revenue at December 31 (70,919)$              (70,919)$             (2,492)$         

To accrue interest receivable on the investments (23,725)                (23,725)               (7,731)           

To record LAIF at fair market value 30,301                 30,301                (19,702)         

To adjust the useful life on the office remodel 376,062               376,062              34,187          

To accrue the settlement of a lawsuit. (295,000)              (295,000)$              

To accrue FEMA revenue on projects approved in 2017 (33,309)                (33,309)               (33,309)         

Net Unadjusted Audit Differences - This Year (16,590)                (295,000)                278,410              (29,047)         

Financial Statement Caption Totals 138,837,304$      54,176,473$          86,799,345$       4,016,192$   

Net Audit Differences as % of Financial Statement Captions -0.01% -0.54% 0.32% -0.72%

SOUTH FEATHER WATER AND POWER AGENCY
         SUMMARY OF UNADJUSTED DIFFERENCES

         YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

  Financial Statement Effect - Amount of Overstatement (Understatement) 
of: 
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MANAGEMENT LETTER 

To the Board of Directors and Management 
South Feather Water and Power Agency 
Oroville, California 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the South Feather Water and Power 
Agency (the Agency) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2017, in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the Agency’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the 
purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the Agency’s internal control. 

The following items noted in prior audits warrant further consideration: 

Inventory Controls 

We noted there is not a formal requisition process for inventory items at the Power Division.  We 
recommend employees be required to fill out a requisition form indicating the parts to be used and project 
the parts are to be used for.  Ideally, these forms would be approved by a supervisor or the Power 
Division Manager prior to taking the parts. 

Inventory Listing 

During the count of inventory items at the Power Division, the Agency identified damaged or obsolete 
items that were included on the final inventory listing.  We recommend the Agency periodically review 
the inventory items and reduce the value to the net realizable value in the period the items are impaired or 
no longer considered usable.  In addition, the Agency has inventory items in the warehouse that were not 
included on the final inventory listing.  We recommend the Agency ensure the final inventory listing 
contains all inventory items.  

Bank Reconciliations 

The Finance Division Manager currently prepares the reconciliations of the bank statements, due to the 
retirement of the employee that previously prepared them.  A formal review of the reconciliations is not 
currently performed, but other employees review transactions in the bank accounts.  We recommend that 
as the Agency’s staff becomes more experienced, or as new staff is hired, the Agency determine if it is 
feasible to have another employee prepare the reconciliations and the Finance Division Manager review 
the reconciliation. 
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Accounting Policies 

The Agency does not currently have extensive written accounting policies and procedures, but we noted 
the Agency has begun to document procedures.  The development of these items may benefit the Agency 
in the future, especially when there is turnover in staff, so we encourage the Agency to continue working 
on these items. 

Net Position Accounts 

We noted that the year-end general ledger ending balance in total and for some funds were out of balance.  
This appears to be due to prior year net income amounts not properly being recorded in the net position 
accounts.  We recommend the income statement accounts be investigated to ensure they properly setup.  
Also, we recommend the net position accounts, including the net investment in capital assets accounts, be 
reviewed and updated as part of the year-end closing process.   

*  *  *  *  *   

We would like to take this opportunity to acknowledge the courtesy and assistance extended to us during 
the course of the examination.  This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of 
Directors, management, and others within the organization and is not intended to be and should not be 
used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

 
July 17, 2018 
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 
APPLIED TO APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT TESTING 

To the Board of Directors 
South Feather Water and Power Agency 
Oroville, California 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below to the accompanying calculation of the 
Appropriations Limit of the South Feather Water and Power (the Agency) for the year ended December 31, 
2017.  These procedures, which were agreed to by the Agency and the League of California Cities (as 
presented in the publication entitled Agreed-Upon Procedures applied to the Appropriations Limitation 
Prescribed by Article XIII-B of the California Constitution) were performed solely to assist the Agency in 
meeting the requirements of Section 1.5 of Article XIIIB of the California Constitution.  The Agency’s 
management is responsible for the Appropriations Limit calculation. This agreed-upon procedures 
engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute 
of Certified Public Accountants.  The sufficiency of the procedures is solely the responsibility of those 
parties specified in this report.  Consequently, we make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the 
procedures described below either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or for any other 
purpose. 

The procedures performed and our findings were as follows: 

1. We obtained the Agency’s calculation of the 2017 Appropriations Limit and compared the limit and 
annual adjustment factors included in the calculation to the limit and annual adjustment factors that 
were adopted by resolution of the Board of Directors. 

Finding: We noted a discrepancy in the population adjustment factor, which results in an immaterial 
difference of $4,380. 

2. We compared the methodology used to determine the cost of living adjustment component to Article 
XIIIB, which states that the Agency may annually adjust the component for either the change in 
California per capita personal income or, the percentage change in the Agency’s assessed valuation 
which is attributable to non-residential new construction.  We recalculated the factor based on the above 
information. 

Finding:  No exceptions were noted as a result of our procedures. 

3. We compared the methodology used to determine the population adjustment component to Article 
XIIIB which states that the Agency may annually choose to adjust the component for either the change 
in population in the County in which the Agency is located, or the change in population within the 
unincorporated area of the County in which the Agency is located.  We recalculated the factor based 
on the above information. 
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Finding:  We noted a discrepancy in the population adjustment factor, which results in an immaterial 
difference of $4,380. 

4. We compared the prior year Appropriations Limit presented in the accompanying Appropriations Limit 
Calculation to the prior year Appropriations Limit adopted by the Board of Directors for the prior year. 

Finding:  In the 2016 Appropriations Limit calculation, we noted an immaterial discrepancy of $1,301 
as a result of a difference in the population adjustment factor.  The prior year Appropriations Limit 
presented in the accompanying Appropriations Limit Calculation agreed to the prior year 
Appropriations Limit adopted by the Board of Directors for the prior year and not the corrected limit, 
resulting in an immaterial discrepancy of $1,353. 

5. We recalculated the 2017 Appropriations Limit by multiplying the product of the two above factors by 
the prior year Appropriations limit. 

Finding:  As a result of the differences in the population adjustment factor and 2016 appropriation limit 
used in the calculation, the appropriation limit calculation for 2017 was overstated by the immaterial 
amount of $5,733. 

6. We compared the Agency’s budgeted and actual revenues to the computed Appropriations Limit for 
2017. 

Finding:  No exceptions were noted as a result of our procedures. 

We were not engaged to, and did not perform an audit, the objective of which would be the expression of 
an opinion on the accompanying Appropriations Limit Calculation.  Accordingly, we do not express such 
an opinion.  Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that 
would have been reported to you.  No procedures have been performed with respect to the determination 
of the Appropriations Limit for the base year, as defined by Article XIII-B of the California Constitution. 

This report is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management of the Agency and 
should not be used by those who have not agreed to the procedures and taken responsibility for the 
sufficiency of the procedures for their purposes.  However, this report is a matter of public record and its 
distribution is not limited. 

 
July 17, 2018 



Appropriation Limit
Adopted by Agency:

Recorded in Final 2017 Budget 1,016,988$    

Appropriation Limit
Computation Per Review:

2016 Appropriation Limit 972,080$       

Cost of Living Factor:
Change in Califirnia per Capita Income 1.0369

Population Adjustment Factor:
Population Change 1.0033

Auditor Computed Limitation 1,011,255

Variance 5,733$            

South Feather Water and Power Agency
Appropriation Limit Calculation
Year Ended Deccember 31, 2017



 
  

 
NOTICE OF MID-TERM VACANCY 

AND 
SCHEDULE OF BOARD APPOINTMENT 

July 24, 2018 
  
 
 
 TAKE NOTICE that a vacancy exists in the position of Director of Division 2, of South 
Feather Water and Power Agency.  The vacancy has occurred due to the resignation of Lou 
Lodigiani, the sitting Director in Division 2 as he will be moving outside of Division 2 and the 
District. 
 
 TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that, in accordance with Government Code Section 1780, the 
Board of Directors of the South Feather Water and Power Agency intends to fill the vacant 
directorship by appointment.  The appointment shall remain in effect until the next General 
District Election, scheduled for November 2020, at which time the position shall be subject to 
election for a full four-year term.   
 
 Persons interested in being considered for appointment to the position should notify the 
General Manager of the District, in writing, no later than fifteen (15) days after the date of this 
Notice, printed above.  The Board of Directors will interview those individuals interested and 
considered for the directorship at a regular/special meeting of the Board of Directors, which will 
be held on August 28, 2018. 
 
 Eligible Directors of South Feather Water and Power Agency must be residents of Division 
2, the boundaries of which are described on the attached map, and registered voters.  Interested 
candidates requiring further information are urged to contact the office of the District’s General 
Manager, Rath T. Moseley, at (530) 533-4578.  Only those candidates submitting written requests 
for consideration by the Board will be considered.  This Notice was authorized by the Board of 
Directors at its regular meeting of June 26, 2018. 
 
 
     SOUTH FEATHER WATER AND POWER AGENCY 
 
 
     RATH T. MOSELEY, Secretary to the Board of Directors 
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TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Rath Moseley, General Manager 
 
DATE: July 10, 2018 
 
RE: General Election Calendar 
 
 
The Candidate Filing Period to seek election for “end of term” Director Positions with SFWPA will be accepted 
at the Butte County Clerk-Recorder-Elections Division July 16 – August 10th. 
 
The following Divisions are up for re-election this year. 
Division 1(Tod Hickman) 
Division 3 (Dennis Moreland) 
Division 5 (John Starr) 
 
The Butte County Elections Calendar is attached with key dates and requirements for the November 6, 2018 
General Election. 
 
  
          
 
 

 
  

 
  



 

 

 

For the 2018 election calendar, South Feather Water and Power Agency is announcing three Directors’ 
terms are ending December 2018. The terms ending are for Tod Hickman (Division 1), Dennis Moreland 
(Division 3) and John Starr (Division 5). 

To be eligible for candidacy with South Feather Water and Power Agency, each candidate shall be a 
voter and a landowner in the district and a resident of the division that he or she represents at the time 
of his or her nomination or appointment and through his or her entire term. A map on South Feather 
website (http://southfeather.com/assets/2013/07/Division-Boundaries-Map.pdf) shows the division 
boundaries. If you have questions regarding candidacy, please call Rath Moseley at (530) 533-4578. 

Candidate filing requirements and information can be found on the Butte County Elections page 
(https://clerk-recorder.buttecounty.net/elections/electhome.html) 

 

 

http://southfeather.com/assets/2013/07/Division-Boundaries-Map.pdf
https://clerk-recorder.buttecounty.net/elections/electhome.html


 

 

 

Candace J. Grubbs, County Clerk-Recorder/Registrar of Voters 
Hall of Records | 155 Nelson Avenue Oroville, CA 95965 
Elections Division 
Tel: 530-538-7761 | Toll free in Butte County: 1-800-894-7761 | Fax:530-538-6853 
Email: elections@buttecounty.net  | Website: www.buttevotes.net | Twitter: @ButteVotes 
 

Summary of Qualifications and Requirements at the 
November 6, 2018 General Election for office of 

Director, South Feather Water and Power Agency 
 

Division Number of Positions 
to be Elected 

Term of Office Filing Fee 

1 1 Director 4 years $0.00 

3 1 Director 4 years $0.00 

5 1 Director 4 years $0.00 
 

I. Term of Office 
4 year Term of Office beginning December 7, 2018.    10554 
 

II. Qualifications 
Every candidate shall: 
A. Be a citizen of the United States of America.   Cal. Const., Art. IV, Section 2(c)1 

 
B. Be a registered voter and otherwise qualified to vote for that office at the time 

nomination papers are issued to the person.        2012 
 

C. Not have been convicted of a felony involving accepting or giving, or offering to 
give, any bribe, the embezzlement of public money, extortion or theft of public 
money, perjury, or conspiracy to commit any of those crimes.   20 
 

D. Each director shall be a voter and a landowner in the district and a resident of the 
division that he or she represents at the time of his or her nomination or 
appointment and through his or her entire term Water Code 21100 (a) 

 
III. Requirements 

 
A. Nomination Documents 

Between July 16, 2018 (E-113) and August 10, 2018 (E-88), obtain nomination 
documents from this office.  Nomination documents include a Declaration of 
Candidacy that must be executed by the candidate.      333, 10511 

 
If the eligible incumbent fails to file the nomination documents by 5:00pm on 
August 10, 2018 (E-88), there is an extension to the filing period, and any other 
person, if otherwise qualified, may obtain and file the nomination documents by 
5:00pm on August 15, 2018 (E-83).      10510 

  

                                                
1 Article IV, section 2(c), of the California Constitution requires one year of residency in the district and three years of residency in 
California; however, it is the legal opinion of the California Secretary of State’s Office that these provisions violate the U.S. Constitution 
and are unenforceable. 
2 All code section references are to the California Elections Code unless otherwise stated. 

mailto:elections@buttecounty.net
http://www.buttevotes.net/
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1. Ballot Designation Worksheet 
a. Each candidate who submits a ballot designation shall file a completed 

ballot designation worksheet that supports the use of that ballot designation.  
The ballot designation worksheet shall be filed with this office at the same 
time that the candidate files the Declaration of Candidacy.      13107.3 

 
b. The designation shall remain the same for all purposes of both the Primary 

and General elections, unless the candidate, at least 98 days prior to the 
General Election, requests in writing a different designation which the 
candidate is entitled to use at the time of the request.  The written request 
must be accompanied by a ballot designation worksheet.     13107(e) 

 
2. Declaration of Candidacy 

a. The Declaration of Candidacy shall be obtained from, and filed in this office. 
10510 

 
b. All candidates must subscribe to the Oath or Affirmation provided under 

Section 3 of Article XX of the Constitution printed on the Declaration of 
Candidacy.           200, 10512 
 

3. Code of Fair Campaign Practices 
a. At the time the candidate is issued nomination documents a copy of the 

Code of Fair Campaign Practices will be provided.  The candidate must 
review and decide whether they are going to subscribe to the Code.     20440 
 

b. It is the ultimate intent of the Legislature that every candidate for public 
office in this state who subscribes to the Code of Fair Campaign Practices 
will follow the basic principles of decency, honesty, and fair play in order 
that, after vigorously contested, but fairly conducted campaigns, the citizens 
of this state may exercise their constitutional right to vote, free from 
dishonest and unethical practices which tend to prevent the full and free 
expression of the will of the voters. 
 
The purpose in creating the Code of Fair Campaign Practices is to give 
voters guidelines in determining fair play and to encourage candidates to 
discuss issues instead of untruths or distortions.    20400 
 

c. In no event shall a candidate for public office be required to subscribe to or 
endorse the code.         20444 

 
d. The Code of Fair Campaign Practices pursuant to this chapter is a public 

record open for public inspection.  The elections official shall accept, at all 
times prior to the election, all completed forms that are properly subscribed 
to by a candidate for public office and shall retain them for public inspection 
until 30 days after the election              20442, 20443 

  



Qualifications and Requirements for November 6, 2018 General Election 
South Feather Water and Power Agency                    Page 3 
 

B. Campaign Finance 
Any individual who intends to be a candidate for elective office shall: 
 
1. Candidate Intention Statement 

File with this office a Candidate Intention Statement (Form 501) for the specific 
office sought.  A separate Form 501 must be filed for each election, including 
re-election to the same office.  This statement shall be signed under penalty of 
perjury and filed any time prior to the solicitation or receipt of any contribution 
or loan, including expenditures made from personal funds used for campaign 
purposes.              GC 85200 

 
2. Campaign Contribution Account 

a. A Statement of Organization – Recipient Committee (Form 410) shall be 
filed anytime with the Secretary of State’s Political Reform Division within 
10 days of qualifying as a committee by receiving contributions totaling 
$2,000 or more in a calendar year.            GC 82013(a), 84101 

 
b. Establish one campaign contribution account at an office of a financial 

institution located in California after filing the Candidate Intention 
Statement.             GC 85201(a) 

 
c. All contributions or loans made to the candidate, to a person on behalf of 

the candidate, or to the candidate’s controlled committee shall be deposited 
in the account.                GC 85201(c) 

 
d. Any personal funds, which will be used to promote the election of the 

candidate, shall be deposited in the account prior to the expenditure. 
GC 85201(d) 

 
e. All campaign expenditures shall be made from the account.  

GC 85201(e) 
3. Exceptions 

a. Parts 1 and 2(d) and (e), above, do not apply to a candidate’s payment of a 
filing fee and candidate’s statement of qualifications fee from his or her 
personal funds.       GC 85200, 85201(f) 

 
b. Part 2, above, does not apply if the candidate does not receive contributions 

and makes campaign expenditures from personal funds of less than $2,000 
in a calendar year, excluding payment of filing fee and candidate’s 
statement of qualifications.       GC 85201(g) 

 
 

c. A candidate who does not raise or spend $2,000 (or anticipate raising or 
spending $2,000) in the calendar year and do not have an open campaign 
committee, may file form 470 no later than the deadline for the 1st pre-
election campaign statement filing.         GC 84206 
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d. An individual who raises contributions from others for his or her campaign, 
but who raises or spends less than $2,000 in a calendar year, shall establish 
a campaign contribution account but is not required to file a Statement of 
Organization (Form 410) or other statement of bank account information. 

GC 85201(h) 
 

C. Statement of Economic Interests (Form 700) 
Each candidate must file a Statement of Economic Interests (Form 700) with this 
office disclosing investments, interests in real property, and any income received 
during the immediately preceding 12 months pursuant to the requirements of the 
Political Reform Act of 1974, as amended.      GC 87200, 87201, 87500 
 
This statement is to be filed between July 16, 2018 (E-113) and August 10, 2018 
(E-88).  It is not required if the incumbent has filed such statements within the past 
60 days for the same jurisdiction.         GC 87201 

 
D. Write-In Candidates Only 

 
1. Statement of Write-In Candidacy 

a. Between September 10, 2018 (E-57) and October 23, 2018 (E-14), file a 
Statement of Write-In Candidacy with this office.    8601 

 
IV. General Information 

A. Candidates may authorize a representative to obtain and file Declaration of 
Candidacy and other nomination documents.  The authorization must be in writing 
from the candidate and include: 

 Name of Representative;  
 Wording to authorize the representative to act on candidate’s behalf; 
 Date of Request; 
 Candidate’s signature         8028 

 
B. Candidates may download all the latest campaign information from the Fair 

Political Practices Commission’s (FPPC) website at www.fppc.ca.gov or contact 
by phone 916-322-5660 or 866-275-3772. 
 

C. Refer to the Candidate Guide for information on the optional Candidate Statement 
of Qualifications and other election information. 
 

D. Refer to Services Guide for data you may purchase from this office. 
 

E. Refer to the Election Calendar for important dates. 
 

Important Notice 
 

This information sheet of candidate qualifications and procedures is for general information 
only and does not have the force and effect of law, regulation or rule.  In case of conflict, the 
law, regulation or rule will apply. 
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TO: Public Recipients of Agenda Information 
 
FROM: Rath Moseley, General Manager 
 
DATE: July 12, 2018 
 
RE: Real Property Negotiations, and Anticipated and Existing Litigation 
 Closed Session Agenda Item for 7/24/18 Board of Directors Meeting 
 
 
The information provided to directors for this agenda item is not available to the public.  The purpose for 
this item is to give the Board an opportunity to confer with legal counsel about litigation in which the Agency 
is already involved or is anticipating. The Board is permitted by law (Brown Act) to confidentially discuss 
information that might prejudice its legal position, to have a confidential and candid discussion about meet-
and-confer issues. Such discussions are exempt from the Brown Act’s requirement that matters before the 
Board be discussed in public.  Attendance during the closed-session will be limited to directors, together 
with such support staff and legal counsel as determined necessary by directors for each subject under 
discussion. 
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